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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of Chashma Sugar Mills Limited are pleased to present Directors’ Report of the
Company together with rhe audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2024.

Chashma Sugar Mills Linuted (“the Company") was incorpornted in Paldstsn on May 05, 1988 and
commenced its commetcial production from October 01, 1992.The Company is principally engaged in
manufacturing, production, processing, compounding, preparation and sale of sugar, other allied
compound, intermediates and allied products,

1. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial results of the Company for the year under review are as below; -

2024 2025
Rupees in thousand
(Loss)/Profit before revenue tax and income tax (3,813,820) 1579280
- Minimum tax - levy (390,371) (300,825
(Loss) / profit before income tax (4,204,191) 1,278 455
- Taxation 1,566,943 420,684
(Loss) /Profit after taxation (2,637,248) 1,699,139
Rupees --—-—
(Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rs) (91.92) 59.22

The financial year ended 30 Seprember 2024 was challenging, with the Company reporting a net loss
after tax of Rs. 2.64 billion, compared to a profit of Rs. 1,70 billion in the previous year. This decline
was primagly due o inconsistent government policies for exports and delayed decisions on export-
relared marters.

The Sugar Division achieved net sales of Rs. 24.72 hillion, up 24% from Rs. 19,88 hillion. However,
gross profit of the division dropped to Rs, 793.64 million from Rs. 2.98 billion, as sugar was sold below
praduction cost due to elevated sugarcane prices driven by higher support sates and market pressures.

The Fthanal Division recorded net sales of Rs. 8.85 billion, up from Rs. 803 billion. Despite higher
sales, gross profit of the ethanol division fell to Rs. 1.43 billion from Re. 3.20 billion teflecting the
impact of reduced ethanol prices, increased raw material costs, and higher transportation CXpeTIses.

Finance costs rose significantly to Ra. 4.07 billion from Rs. 274 billion deiven, by rising interest rates

and higher working capitl requirement reduction in profitability and worsening the financinl
difficulties.

Factories: CSM I - University Road, Dera Ismail Khan Tel: (0966) 750090-91 Fax: (0966) 750092
: CSM 11 - Ramak, Dera Ismuil Khan Tel: (0966) 756365, 756368 Fax: (0966) 756327
: Chashms Ethanol Fuel Plant- Ramalk, Dear Ismail Khan Tel: (0966) 756023




2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Operational Highlights 2023-2024 2022-2023
Diate of Crushing Started November 27, 2023 November 28, 2022
Date of Crushing Closed March 6, 2024 March 13, 2024
Crushing - M. Tons 1,726,610 1,963,169
Sucrose Recovery 9.94% 10.80%
Sugar Producton - M. Tons 171,591 211,871
Ethanol Fuel Plant Production-M. Tons 34,443 33,889

2.1- CRUSHING SEASON 2023-24

The sugarcane crushing season 2023-24 commenced on November 27,2023 continued till March 6,2024,
The mills have crushed 1,726,610 tons (2023 1,963,169 tones) of sugarcane and have produced 171,591
tons (202% 211,871 tons) of sugar having an average recovery of 9.94% (2023; 10.80%). The Provincial
Government of Punjab and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa (KPK) fixed sugar cane price @ Rs. 400/- per 40 kg

22- CRUSHING SEASON 2024-25

The suparcane erushing season for 2024-25 bepan on November 21, 2024, The mills have erashed
1,112,879 tons of sugarcane, resulting in the production of 104,353 tons of sugar till February 02, 2025,
Unlike previous years, the Provincial Governments have not regulared sugareane prices for this season.
According 1o government forecasts, supgar production for the 2024-25 season is expected be 6.1 million
tons.

While domestic sugar consumption is anticipated to prow, driven by population increase and rising
demand from the food processing industry, export opportunities remain limited due o government
measures aimed ar stabilizing damestic prices and maintaining supply.

3. SUGAR PRICE

The government has allowed supar export of 790,000 tons to address surplus production and stock
levels. International sugar prices manged berween $500 and $530 per ton, but the restocted export quota
and delays in spproval processes prevented rthe indusiry from capitalizing on these faverable conditions.
Government-imposed limits on export volumes have further weakened profitability, and the missed
opportunity to take advantage of high plobal prices, combined with ongoing market inseability,
continues to put pressure on the supar sector.

The current pricing and export policies do not appear to provide a sustainable path for the industry. To
ensure long-term growth and profitability, a more consistent pricing mechanism and deregulation is
compulsory.

4. ECONOCMIC OVERVIEW

The financial year 2024 started with high inflaion, strict financial policies, and economic pressures,
These factars increased business costs and reduced consumer spending, which led to slower demand
and manufacturing, However, some improvements were seen toward the énd of the year.
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In Seprember 2024, the IMF approved a loan of about US§T billion for Pakistan. Between June and
December 2024, the State Bank of Pakistan reduced interest mtes from 22% to 13%, which will help
lower business costs and improve profits in the future, with more rate cuts expected.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Faor the 2024/25 sugar season, the industry is facing challenges such as carryover stocks, limited funds,
and higher costs. According to povernment forecasts, Pakistan is expected to produce 6.1 million tons
of sugar, which should be enouph for local demand.

ET (8]

The Ethanol Fuel Plant produced 34,443 MT (2023: 33,899 MT) of Ethanel during the year and
contributed towards the profitability of the Company.

Ethanol prices are anticipated to remain low in the international market for the 2024-25 period, which
will likely put pressute on profitability and margins.

FLO 1

The subsidiary Company, "Ultimate Whole Foods (Private) Limited," has commenced operations
following the successful eompletion of its ttial run. Equipped with state-of-the-art lour mills with a
capacily of 285 rons pee day (TPD), the facility is located in Ramak, Dera Ismail Khan,

SILOS PROJECT

Commercial Operations Date (COD) as per concession agreements of both sites i.ec Nomk Centre,
Dnstnet Bhakkar and Head Varery Centre, District Layyah has been completed. However, commercinl
operations of the Company have not starred yet.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAFF/GROWERS

The Management and Labor relations remained cordial during the year. The Company enjoys cordial
relationship with the farmers’ community in the form of timely payments through bank it considers the
growers (o be its backbone,

PATTE 5
The Patrern of Shareholding, as required under section 227(2)(f) of the Companies Act, 2017 is
anmexed.

ORPORATE AND G

- The financial statements, prepared by the management of Chashma Sugar Mills Limited present
faitly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of account have been maintsimed.

- All appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied while preparing financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards, 2¢ applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the
prepataticon of the financial statements.
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- The system of internal conwols is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon Company’s ability to continue as n ‘gaing corncern’,
= The Company has followed eorporate governance as detailed in the Listed Companies (CCG)
Repulations, 2019.

- Key operating and financial data for the last decade in summarized form is annexed.

- There are no statory payments on account of txes, dutics, levies and charges which are
outstanding as ar September 30, 2024, except for those disclosed in the financial statements.

- The value of investmenrs of smff provident fund, based on audited aceounts, was
Ra.418.064 million as ar Seprember 30, 2024 peivanted il

. TRADING IN SHARES

Dugng the year, no tade in the shares of the Company were carried-out by the Directors, CFO),
Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children except Mr, Abbas Sarfaraz Khan —Director of
the Company who purchased 84,186 ordinary shares during the year.

VDING U IN LT 2

The matter disclosed in Note 9.4 of the financial statements concerns the subseription of 50,000,000
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, amounting to Re. 500 million, in Premier Geain Ethanol Limited
(PGEL), out of the proposed share capital of Re. 650.020 million.

P{%EL did not commence ts operations. Subscquently, on January 14, 2025, the Board of Ditectors of
PGEL passed a resolution (o wind up the Company due to financial and operational challenges. This
decision has been formally communicared to the Seeurities and Exchanpe Commussion of Palkistan,

The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. The
scape of internal audinng within the Company is clearly defined which broadly involves review and

evaluanon of its' internal control systems.
A P SACT

The Related Parties transactions mentioned in Note 43 to the financial statements were placed before
the Board Audit Committee and were approved by the Board. These transactions were in line with the
requirements of Inremational Financinl Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Companies Aet, 2017, The
Company mainmins a complete record of all such wansactions: All transactions entered into with the
related parties will also be placed before sharchalders in theie AGM for approval purposes. The
directars have no interest in any of the trnsactions, and all transactions are conducted on an arm'y
length basis. '

. PRIN UMNCE \

The Company is exposed to the following risks and uncertminties;
o+ Sugarcane Availability on competitive prices
Higher inflation
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*  Inconsistent policies speaially for export

These risks may have a significant impact on the Company’s performance and require
careful mansgement to mitigate potential negative effects,

* BOARD AND B
The tom] number of Directors on the Board is 7 and its composition is as follows:

1. Male Divecrors 4
2 Female Directors 3

During the veat, a total of eleven (11) meetings were held and the attendance of each director is
shown as follows;

Name of Directors Board Board Audit | Human

Meetings | Committee Resource  and
Meetings Remuneration
Commitiee

Attended Attended Atended

MNon- Executive Directors

Ms. Zarmine Sarfaraz 3 -

Mr. Abdul Qadar Khattak | 2 2 z

{Retired)

Mr. Tskander M. Khan 0 ] 1

Ms Mehnae Sapal -4 2 1

Executive Directors

Bepum Laila Sarfrae 5 s

Me. Abbas Sarfaraz Khan ] <

Independent Ditectors

Il Mariarm Al Khan (Late)
Ms. Sarmia Lisquat Ali IKhan
M. Frisal Kemal Khan

| e e—
]

- Leave of absence was granted 1o directors who could not attend some of the Board Meetings.
ROLE OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Board aims to ensure that the Company's sharcholders are timely informed about the major
developments affecting the Company's state of affairs. To achieve this objective, information is
communicated to the sharcholders through quarterly, hall vearly and annual reports. The Board of
Directors encourages the shareholder's participation at the annual general meeting to ensure high level
of accountability. '

GENDER PAY GAP ANALYSIS

The Company is committed 1o promoting equal pay and follows o strict pender pay gap policy to ensure
faimess and transparency in compensation. We do not tolerite any form of hias in our pay practices and
ensure that all employees, regardless of gender, recelve equal pay for equal work. The Company
regulardy reviews its compensation structure o ellminate any diserepancies and ensure that bath men

and women are compensated farly for cheir skills, experience, and Pt'_ffcln'unnce. By fostering an
mclusive and equirable work environment, we aim to support the growth and development of all

employees, repardless of gender.
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20. CONTIRBUTION TO THE NATIONAL/PROVINCIAL EXCHEQUER

The Company made a total contribution of Rs 947.375 million (2023: Rs 636.174 million) 1o the
government treasury in the form of income mx, sales tax, excise duty and levies.

21. DIVIDEND

The Ditectars have not recommended any dividend for the year ended September 30, 2024, due to the
financial constraints and losses suffered by the Company during the year.

22. EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee and the Board have recommended to the shareholders the appointment of M /s
ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, Lahore, a5 auditors in place of the
retiting auditors, M/s A.F. Fergusons & Co., Chartered Accountants, Islamabad, in sccordance
with the Code of Corporate Governance, for the year ending September 30, 2025.

@ 25 STATUS OF THE COMPANY

In the light of the directions of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the Company has
been treated a subsidiary of The Premier Sugar Mills & Distillery Company Limited with effect from the
financial year 2010.

The requirements of the Code of Corporate Govetnance set out by SECP in Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governanee) Regularions, 2019, relevant for the year ended September 30, 2024 have
been duly complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed with the report.

25, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to express their gratitude for the hard work and dedication displayed by Staff
and the Executives of the QOrpaniraton and the valuable support of our Bankers.

Finally, the Board wishes ta thank the valued shareholders for thelr patronage and confidence reposed

in the Company and consistent support in the present challenging scenario,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

”-’/.-'. B ——%\_——F‘ .
g
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DIRECTOR™ o CHIEF EXECUTIVE/DIRECTOR
— e
Mardan; -

February 03, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS
LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Chashma Sugar Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs
as at September 30, 2024 and of the loss, and other comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountarnits’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do nol provide a separate opinion on these matters.

ACF TERGLSON & COx Chortermed Avvountonts, o membér firm of the Pudd network
74-Bust, 2rd Floor, Blue Area, Jinnah Averve, P.OBox 3020, Idamaboad-gqgoon, Pakistan
Tl 02 (5} 2er3d57-00/ 200403447 Fax: <08 (51) 22524 <wnwwnpe.corn/ok >

"KARACH! *LAHORE "2 AMARAD
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Following are the key audit matters:
S.No. Key Audit Matter

i)

Revaluation of property, plant and
equipment
(Refer note 6, 7.1 and 18 to the financial
statemenis)

Under the Intemational Accounting Standard 16
‘Property, Flant and Equipment”, the Company
carries its freehold land, leasehold land, building
& roads, plant & machinery and electric
installations at revaluation model. Under the
said model if fair value can be measured
reliably, an entity may carry all items of property,
plant and equipment of a class at a revalued
amount, which is the fair value of the items at the
date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairmant losses; if any.

As at September 30, 2024, the carmrying value of
free hold land, leasehold land, buildings &
roads, plant & machinery and electric
installations was Rs 20,493 698 thousand. The
fair value of the Company's free hold land,
leasehold land, buildings & roads, plant &
machinery and eleciric installations were
assessed by management based on
independent valuation performed by an external
property valuation expert as at September 30,
2024. For valuation of free hold land, buildings
& roads, plant & machinery and electric
installations, the curent market price or
depreciated replacement cost method is used,
whereby, current cost of construction of similar
free hold land, buildings & roads and plant &
machinery in similar locations has besn
adjusted using suitable depreciation rates to
arrive at present market value. This technique
requires significant judgment as to estimating
the revalued amount in terms of their quality,
structure, layoul and locations.

We identified valuation of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter due to the
significant carrying value and the significant
management judgement and estimation
involved in determining their value due to factors

W%ﬁaﬁcrlhed above,

AF-FERGUSON:CO.

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Qur audit procedures to assess the
valuation of free hold land, leasehold
land, buildings & roads, plant &
machinery and electric installations
included amongst others the
following:

- Evaluated the qgualification,
experience and competence of
the independent external property
valuation expert engaged by the
Company as management expert
for valuation;

- Obtained understanding of the
valuation process and techniques
adopted by the valuation expert to
assess, if they are consistent with
the industry norms,

- Obtained the valuation repert of
external valuation expert and
tested mathematical accuracy of
the reports;

- Engaged another independent
valuation expert as an auditor
expert to a55ess the
appropriateness and the
reasonableness of the related
management's assumptions and
methodologies used by the
management expert; and

Assessed the adequacy of the
ralated disclosures in the annexed
financial statements.
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S.No. Key Audit Matter

i)

Investment in subsidiaries

(Refer note 4.6.1, 6 and 9 to the financial
statements)

The Company has made significant investments
in its subsidiaries. As at September 30, 2024 the
carrying amount of investment in subsidiaries is
Rs. 1,652,823 thousand, The Company carries
out impairment assessment, at each reporting
period end, of the value of investment where
there are indicators of impairment.

The Company's management has assessed the
recoverable amoumt of investment In
subsidiaries based on the assessment of fair
value less cost to sell and value in use in
accordance with the requirements of IAS - 36.
The estimation of recoverable amounts involve
significant judgment on key assumptions
including the determination of fair value less cost
to sell, future cash flows, the discount rate
applied to those future cash flows, long term
growth rate etc.

We considered this as a key audil matter due to
significant carrying value and  significant
management judgement involved in  the
estimation of recoverable amounts.

A'F-FERGUSONE.CO,

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procadures in relation to
this matter included, amongst others:

- Obtained  understanding  of
management's process for
identification of  impairment
indicators  in, and testing
impairment  of Investment in
subsidiaries;

- Obtained the report of
independent valuation expert
(where applicable) and evaluated
competence, capabilites and
objectivity of experts engaged by
management;

- Involved auditor's expert to
assess appropriateness  and
reasonableness of significant
estimates, where applicable;

- Checked the  mathematical
accuracy of management's
valuation model and agreed
relevant data to the underlying
records;

- Assessed the reasonableness of
key assumptions used in the
valuation model such as future
revenue and cost, discount rate
and long-term growth rates etc.

- Performed sensitivity analysis
with respect to changes in key
assumptions used in the valuation
model; and

- Assessed the appropriateness of
disclosures made in the annexed
financial statements with respect
to the requirements of the
applicable financial reporting
framewark.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included In the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our

auditor's reports thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
detarmines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concemn
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operationg, or has na realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenls can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial stalements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresantations, or the override of internal control.

M.
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« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumnstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based an the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our epinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concerm.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the beard of directors with a statement thal we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies

Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017),

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,

017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and retums;

ke
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¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1880), was
deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under
section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditer’s report is Mr. Asim
Masood Igbal.

Islamabad
Date: February 7, 2025

UDIN: AR202410053CYaqD4Z5FPA




CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
Restated
Mate (Rupees in thousand)
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment T 21,545,185 20,371,132
Right-of-use assets 8 205474 206,124
Long term investments 9 1,652,823 638,357
Long term loans and deposits 10 15,343 283,936
23,508,825 21,589,549
CURRENT ASBETS
Stores and spares 11 732,276 841,710
Stock-in-trade 12 3,988,480 SAT7.678
Trade debts 13 276,285 1,214,104
Loans and advances 14 1,771,110 1,742,423
Trade deposits and other receivables 15 74,078 200,991
Income tax refundable 395,083 122,222
Cash and bank balances 16 $98,783 811,313
8,136,075 10,110,439
TOTAL ASSETS 31,644,900 31,699,988
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital 17 500,000 500,000
Issued, subscnbed and paid-up capital 17 286,920 286,920
General reserve 17.5 327,000 327,000
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 18 8,978,222 8,148,726
Unappropriated profits 3,550,096 5,775,450
Shareholders’ equity 13,142,238 14,538,006
NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financas - secured 19 3,089,793 3,261,715
Loans from refaied parties - secured 20 126,222 131,854
Lease ligbilities 21 143,011 140,314
Deferred llabilites
Defarred taxation 3,018,176 3.472,814
-Provision for gratuity 22132 18,865
-Deferred government grant 49 695 78,280
22 3,020,003 3,588,058
7,349,029 ¥,102.842
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 23 1,483,125 3,375,789
Unclaimed dividend 15,679 14,572
Short term borrowings - secuned 24 8,325,008 4,871,003
Gurrent maturity of non-current liabilitias 25 D39.448 1,581,737
Provision for tax levies - net 390,372 215849
11,153,633 10,058,950
TOTAL LIABILITIES 18,502,662 17,161,882
Contingencigs and commitments 2B
31,644,800 31,699,088

g
Ghlni' it I. aclor Director

In the absang _— -
Mo ﬂ@m{ Exacutive, m_e_su J‘-rnanqlal_ﬂ_*.;lj_ﬂmqn_ts have bien signad by twe Dircctars slong with Ghisl Financial Oflical
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CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
Restated
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Gross sales 27 36,824,097 29,371,617
Sales tax, othar government levies and discounts 2B (4,549,440) (2,995,900)
Sales - net 32,274,657 28,375,717
Cost of sales 29 (30,054,086) (20,188,453)
Gross profit 2,220,571 6,187,264
Selling and distribution expenses 30 (877,883) (666,016)
Administrative and general expenses 3 (1,198,876) (1,008,357)
Net loss allowance on trade debts and

subsidy receivable from GoP 13.2 & 151 (148,447) (66,964)
Other income 32 409,700 267,688
Other expenses 33 (146,366) (194,967)
Operating profit 258,699 4,317,648
Finance cost 34 (4,072,519) (2,738,368)
(Loss) { profit before revenue tax and income tax (3,813,820) 1,579,280
Minimum tax - levy 35 {390,371) (300,825)
(Loss) / profit before income tax (4,204,191) 1,278,455
Taxation 36 1,566,943 420,684
(Loss) / profit for the year (2,637,248) 1,699,139
{ Loss ) / earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rs) 37 (91.92) 59.22

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
Restated
Note (Rupees in thousand)

(Loss) / profit for the year (2,637,248) 1,600,139

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be classified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on staff retirement benefit plans  22.3.5 2,245 {2,656)
Less: Daferred tax on remeasurement gain / (loss) on staff

retirement benefit plans (876 1,036
1,369 (1,620)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 18.1 2,494,915 | | 2,567,400

Less: Deferred tax on surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment

181 | (1,111,434)| | (842,776)
1,383,481 1,724,624

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year _(1,252,398) 3422143

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
Restated
MNota (Rupees in thousand)

Cash flaw from operating activities

{Loss) | profit for the year - befors taxation (4,204,197)  1,278.455

Adjustments for nen-cash lems:
Depraciation 2030431  1,615388 1,391,005
(Gain) on disposal of operaling fixed asssls 32 (15,480) {8,448)
Prafil on depesit acoounts 3z 15,801) (10.237)
Matk-up incomes on loan to subsidiaries and related parties 3z (220,704) (25 486)
park-up esmed on e daposiony receipls (B8, T58) (31,313
Finance cost 4 4072519 2,738,368
Impairmant loss / (reversal) for rede debls 13 i1,290) 1.551
Impairment loss for gxport subsidy 151 148,737 g3 413
Imapirment loss on long term invesimenis o 130,000 -
{Reversal} of provislon for absolele lems 1.1 (15,585) (8,713)
Provizion for gratuity 2232 B,935 5,638
MinEmum tex - lavy 351 380,371 00,825

1.815,021 5,698,061
Changes in working capltal
Decrease | (Increase) in

Stores and spares 125,028 (325 569]
Stock-in-rade 1,189,198 | | {1,797.807)
Trade dabts 901,925 | | (1,308,901)
Loans and advances (B9,603) ' (267, TER)
Trade dapesite and other recalvables (22,824) (10,753)
{Decrease) [ Incraaszs in rade and other payablas (1,891,827} 2,147,798

211,886  {1,563.000)
2026917 4,136,081

Income tax paid / Levies (488,884) (216, 208)
Gratulty paid 2231 {5,360) {1,180
Mot cash generated from operating activities 1,532,863 3918873
Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of proparty, plant and equipment (218,117)| | (1,120,6886)
Sale proceeds of operating fiwed assals 46,574 28,020
Long tarm investment In subsidiaries 594,253) {214.383)
Profits on bank deposits recelved az 5,301 10237
Interest income on loan provided to ralsted party - 25,486
Profits gn term financa carfificates 88,758 31.313
Nt cash {used) in investing activities (671,437y  (1.238.023)
Caszh Now from financing activities
Long tarm finance - net 103,942 248,716
Short lemn berowings obtaned / (1epaid) 3,925,169 (178,108}
Bank balancas under lign 181 - {450,000)
Loan repaid to related party (16,618) {31,235)
Lease obligation repaid 21 (154,773} {145,192
Dividends pakd (142,353} {35)
Finance cest paid (4,084,347} | (2,343 574)
Met cash [used) in linancing activities (378,800) (2.897525)
Net increase / {decroase) in cash and cash equivatents 432,928 [217.B75)
GCash and cash equivalents - al beginning of the year (2,610,817)  (2.303,042)
Cash and cash equivalants - at end of e year 2127,881) _{2.510.817)
Cash and cash egulvalents comprised of:
181 444,783 35T 313
24 (2,572,774)  (2.868.:230)

(2127.801) _{2.610817)
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CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

3.

31

Legal status and operations

Chashma Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on May 03, 1988 as
a public limited company, under the Companies Ordinance, 1884 (repealed upon enactment of
the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017) and commenced ite commercial production from
October 01, 1882, The Company has its shares quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. The Company is pringipally engaged in manufacturing, production, processing,
compounding, preparation and sale of sugar, other allled compound, intermediates and allled
products. The Company is a subsidiary of The Premier Sugar Mills and Distillery Company
Limited. The head office of the Company is situated at King's Arcade, 20-A, Markaz F-7,
|slamabad and s manufacturing facilities are located at Dera Ismail Khan, Khyber

Pakhtunkhwa.

Statement of compliance

These financial stataments have been prepared in accordarnce with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in

Pakistan comprise of;

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives ssued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017 have been

followed. -
Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Company:

Effective data (annual

reporting periods

beginning on or afier)

IFRS 7 Financial Instrumants. Disclosures January 1, 2024 &

January 1, 2028
IFRS 8 Financial Instruments January 1, 2026
IFRE 16 Leasas January 1, 2024
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements January 1, 2027
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures January 1, 2027
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements January 1, 2024
IAS 7 Statement of cash flows January 1, 2024

The management anticipates that adoption of the above standards, amendments and
Interpretations in future pericds, will have no material impact on the financial statements ather

; E than in presentation / disclosures.
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4.2

4.3

4,31

2.

Further, the following standards and interprefations have been issued by the Intermnational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are yet to be notified or has been waived off by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose of their applicability

in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First-ime Adoption of Intarnational Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountabllity: Disclosures

IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements

Material Accounting Policy Information

Basis of preparation

The Company adopted disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS
practice statements 2) from October 1, 2023. Although amendments did not result in any
changes to the accounting policies themselves, they impact the accounting policy information
disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting palicies.
The amendments also provide the guidance on the application of mateniality to disclosure of
accounting policies, assisting entities to provide useful entity specific accounting policy
infarmation that user need to understand other information in the financial statements.

The material accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

These financial statemants are the separate financlal statements of the Company. In addition to
these separate financial statements, the Company also prepares consolldated financial

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the curency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates, These financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which Is the Company's functional currency

Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets

Operating fixed assets except freehold land, leasehold land, bullding and roads, plant &
machinery and electric installations are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, Freehold land is stated at revalued amount, where as leasehold land,
building & roads, plant & machinery and electric installations are stated at revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluation is camied out by an Independent
expert. The Company carfes out revaluations periodically, considenng the change In
circumstances and assumptions from |atest revaluation. Capital work-in-progress and major
spare parts and standby equipment are stated at cost. The surplus on revaluation o the extent
of incremental depreciation charged (net of deferred tax) is transferred to unappropriated profits.
Cost In relation to certain plant and machinery items include borrowing cost related to the
financing of major projects during construction phase.
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Subsequent cost, If reliably measurable, are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognized as separate amount as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the cost will flow to the Company. The carrying amount of any replaced
parts as well @5 other repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of freehold land, leasehold fand, building
and roads, plant & machinery and electric installations are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in shareholdars' equity under the heading surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognized In statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in statement of profit or
loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same assel are first recognized n other
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus atiributable to the asset; all other
decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation on operating assets is calculated using the reducing balance method to allocate
their cost over their estimated useful life at the rates specified in note 7.1. Depreciation for
factory assets is charged to cost of sales while depreciation for other propery, plant and
equipment is charged to administrative and general expenses and selling and distribution
expenses on actual usage basis.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment ig charged from the date asset is
avallable far intended use till date of disposal.

The gain or loss on disposal of an asset, calculated as differsnce between the sale proceed and
carrying amount of the asset, is recognized as other incame In statement of profit or loss for the

year.
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. I consists
of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of operating fixes assets, capilal slores
and intanglbles assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and nstallation.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets al the commencement date of the lease ie. the
date the underlying assets are available for use. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease llabllities except plant and machinery for which the Company has elecled lo use the

revaluation model,

The cost comprising the foliowing:

- the amount of the Initial measurement of lease liabilities
- any lesse payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives

recelved any initial direct cosls, and
- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciaied over the shorer of the asset's usaful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company Is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use assets are depreclated over the underlying assets' useful life.

et
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an Indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject to amortisation or
depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation/
amorfisation are reviewsd for impairment at each statement of financial position date or
whenever everts or changes in circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to
the extent that assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amardisation, if no Impairment less has been
recognised. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss Is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Long term investments
Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is Inifially recognised at cost. At subsequent repoiting date,
recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and
carrying amount of investment is adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognised as
expense in the statement of profit or loss. Where impairment loss is subseguently revarsad, the
carmying amounts of investment are Increased to its revised recoverable amount, limited to the
extent of initial cost of Investment Reversal of impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

The profits or losses of subsidiaries are carried forward in their financial statements and are not
dealt within these financial statements except to the extent of dividend declared by the
subsidiaries. Galns and losses on disposal of investmeant are included in other income, When
the disposal on investment in subsidiary results in loss of control such that it becomes an
associate, the retained investment is camed at cost.

Investment in associates

Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities are carried at cost. At subsequent
reporting date, the recoverable amounts are estimated to determing the extenl of Impaimment
losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses
are recognised as expense in the statement of profit or loss. Where impairment losses are
subseguently revarsed, the carrying amounts of these investments are increased to the revised
recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of Investments. A reversal of
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or less. The profits and losses of
associates and jointly controlled entities are carried forward in their financial statements and are
not dealt within these financial statements except to the extent of dividend declared by the
associates and Jointly controlled enfities. Gains and losses on disposal of Investments are
included in the statement of profit or loss

Stores and spares

Stores and spares are stated al cost less allowance for obsolete and slow maoving items. Cost [s
datermined using weighted average method. Items In transit are valued at cost comprising
invoice value and other related charges incurred up to the date of the statement of financial

position date.
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4.10

4.11

4.12

Stock-in-trade

Sugar and ethanol are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the average manufacturing cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in process
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads.

Purchased molassess Is stated at lower of cost and net realisable value whereas cost af own
produced molasses, a by producl, Is determined on the basis of average cost of molasses

purchased from third parties.

The specific costs of bagasse, a by-product cannot be determined. Accordingly, it is stated at net
realizable value (NRV).

Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, |ess cost of
completion and costs necessary o be incurred lo make the sale.

Trade debts

Trade debts are recognised and carried at the original invoice amounts, being the fair value, less
an allowance faor uncoliectible amounts, if any. As explained in note 4.20 to these financial
statements, for measurament of loss allowance for trade debts, the Company applies [FRS 8
simplified approach to measure the expected cradit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash with banks on current, saving and
deposit accounts, short term borrowings and other short term highly liquid Investments that arg
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant nsk of

change in value.

Borrowings and borrowing cost

Borrowings are recognised Initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognisad In the statement of profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition, canstruction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are
charged (o statement of profit or loss.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability Is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the Jease or if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's Incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments in the measurement of the lease liabiiity comprise the following:

a) fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date,
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4.15

¢) amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

d) the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company Is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal peried if the Company Is reasonably
cartain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease
unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It Is
remeasured when there Is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the Gompany's estimate of the amount expected lo be payable
under a residual value guarantes, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension ar termination option.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable including payable to related parties are carried at
cost. which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid In future for goods andlor services

received, whether or not bilied to the Company,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources gmbodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the cbligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to

reflecl the current bast estimate.

Taxation
Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax.
() Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in
accordance with prevailing law for laxation on income at the applicable rates of taxation
after taking Into account tax credits and lax rebates, if any. Income tax expense |s
recognised in praofit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly In
equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Company recognises provision for income tax based on best current estimates.
Howeyer, where the final tax outcome is different from the amounls that were Initially
recorded, such differences impact the income tax provision in the pariod in which such
~determination is made.

The Company takes into account the current income tax |law and decisions taken by the
taxation authorities. Instances where the Company's views differ from the income (ax
department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on
items of material nature I In atcordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent

liabiiities

B




(i) Deferred

Deferred lax i accounted for on all temporary differences using the liability method arising
between the tax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts appearing in the
financial statements. Deferred tax liabiliies are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax asset Is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it s probable that deductible temparary differences will reverse in the future and
taxable Income will be available against which the deductible temporary differsnces,

unusad tax losses and tax credit can be utilised

Deferred tax asset and liabilily is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the assel is realised or the liability is seitled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax Is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively. The calculation of deferred tax involves an estimate of future ratio of expart
and local sales considering the current trends and future expectations.

416 Accounting guidance issued by ICAP on Accounting for minimum taxes and final taxes

Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) issued a guidance "Application guidance
on accounting for minimum taxes and final taxes" through Circular No. 07/2024 dated May 15,
2024. In light of the said guidance, as the minimum taxes and final taxes are not calculated on
the ‘taxable profit' as defined in IAS 12 but calculated on turmover or other basis (as per relevant
sactions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO, 2001)), accordingly minimum taxes and final
taxes should be accounted for under IAS 37/IFRIC 21 as levies [though these are charged under
tax law] and not under IAS 12 as income taxes. Based on the aforesaid guidance, the minimum
taxes under [TO 2001 are hybrid taxes which comprise of a componant within the scope of IAS
12 {Income Tax) and a component within the scope of [FRIC 21 (Levies).

The aforesaid guidance has been applied retrospectively by the Company and the comparative
infarmation has been restated, which has not affected current period or prior years' net sales,
profit after taxes and levies, equity and cash flows. Impact as of October 1, 2022 is not matenal
to the financlal statements. In accordance with requirements of 1AS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements”, the balances as at September 30, 2023 have been restated and third statement of
financial position as of October 1, 2022 has not been presented since the impact on the
statement of financial position as at October 1, 2022 iz not material to these financial
statements. The effects of the restatemant are summarized in note 4.16.1 below:
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4.16.1 The following tables present the impacts of restatements as explained in note 4 18 above:

Balances before
restatement
{Rupees in thousand})

Impacl Reslatad

Statement of financial position
September 30, 2023

Current assals

Income tax refundable - 122,222 122222
Currizrit liabillies

Provision for taxation = nel 93627  (B3.627)

Provision for tax levies - nal - 216,849 215,848

Statement of profit or loss

In the statement of profit or loss, the minimum tax and final tax previously presented as
income taxes have now been reclassified as “final taxes - levy" under IAS 37 / IFRIC 21
amounting to Rs 300,825 thousand for the year ended Septembar 30, 2023,

417 Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue at point of time when control of product s transfermed 1o
customer / buyer. Control is considered to be transferred in case of local sales when the finished
goods are directly uplifted by customer / buyer from the warshouse or when itis delivered by the
Company at cuslomer premises or dalivered as per instructions of the customer as the case
maybe. In case of export sales, control Is considered to be transferred when the finished goods

are shipped o the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration agreed with a customer and excludes sales
tax | government levies and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue |s presanted
net of discounts, rebates and returns.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made either at advance or with a
credit term of upto 30 days, which |s consistent with the market price.

418 Development expenditure

Expenditure incurred on development of sugar cane is expensed In the year of incurrence.

419 Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who |s responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions. The management has determined thal
the Company has two reportable segments i.e. sugar and ethanol.

Gie
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4.20 Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are
derecognized at the time when the Company losses control of the contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets. All financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished
that Is, when the obligation specified in the contract ls discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains
or iosses on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial liabllities are taken lo the statemesnt

of profit or |loss.

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies Its financial assels in the following measurement calegories:

i) amortized cost where the affective interest rate method will apply;
(I} fair value through profit or loss;
lii} fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will elther be recorded in statement of
profit or lass or other comprehensive income. For investment in eguity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable
electian at the time of initial recogrition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), The Company reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset, Further financial assels are
derecognised when the rights to recelve cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownarship,

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FWTPL), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
aszets carried at FVTPL are expensed in statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assel. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company can classifies its debt instruments:
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i} Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the contractual terms of the
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assels is included In finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised direclly in statement of profit or loss and presented in
gther Income together with forelgn exchange gains and losses Impairment iosses are
presented as separate line item In the statement of profit or loss.

i} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debl securities, where the contractual cashflows are solely principal and interest and the
objective of the Company's business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cashflows and sefiing financial assets are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through Other comprehensive income (OCH), except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in statement of profit or loss. When the financlal asset Is dereccanised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to statement
of profit or loss and recognised in other income. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other income and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item In the statement of profit or loss.

ili) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FWTPL is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss and presented in finance income/cost in the period in which it
arises.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the
Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
statement of profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in statement of profit or loss as other income whan the

Company's right to receive payments is established.

Impairment of financial assels

The Company assess on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the expected credit
loss {ECL) as associaled with its debt instruments carried at amortised cosl. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant Increase in credit risk.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model.

- Trade debis

- Lpans and advances

- Trade deposits and other receivables
ash and bank balances
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i) General approach for loans and advances, trade deposits and other receivables and
cash and bank balances

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default; loss
glven default {i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a defauit) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information (factors that are specific to the counterparty, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date, Including time value of money where appropriate). As for
the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross camying
amount at the reporting date. Loss allowances are forward looking, based on 12 month
expected credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in gredit risk rating,
otherwise allowances are based on lifelime expected |losses.

Expected credil losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probabllity is
datermined by the risk of default which is-applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence
of a change In credit rating. allowances are recognised when there is reduction in the net
present value of expected cash flows. On a significant increase in credit risk, allowances are
recognised without a change |n the expected cash flows, although typically expected cash
flows do also change; and expected credit losses are rebased from 12 manth to lifetime

expectations

Significant increase in credit risk

The Gompany considers the probability of defaull upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has baen a significant increase in credit risk on an ongeing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase In credit risk, the
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the instrument as al the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of Initial racognition. It considers available reasonable
and supporiable forward-looking information,

The following indicators are considered while assessing credit risk

- actual or expected significant adverse changes In business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change to the deblor’s ability lo meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes In the operaling results of the debtor;

- significant Increase In credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- significant changes in the value of the callateral supporting the obligation or In the quality of
third-party guarantees, if applicable.

Definition of default

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit
risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet

either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when thera is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- Information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the deblor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into acoount any
collaterals held by the Company).

Irrespective of the above analysls, In case of trade debts, the Company considers that default
has occurred when a the debt is more than 365 days past due, unless the Company has
reasonable and supportable information to demaonstrate that a more lagging default criterion

: I Q is more approprate.
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Credit - impaired financlal assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events thal have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower,

- abreach of contract, such as a default or past due evenl,

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having grantad to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruplcy or other financial

reqrganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

if) Simplified approach for trade debls

The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that 1s determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes, and

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions

Trade debls with individually significant balance are separately assessed for ECL measurement.
All other trade debts are grouped and assessed collectively based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix approach based on the Company's historical cradit lass
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general ecanomic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of condiions at the

reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate,

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence of
significant increases in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the

financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

- Nature of financial instruments;

- Past-due stalus;

- Mature, size and industry of deblors, and
- External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each group
continue to share similar credit risk characteristics,



b)

Recognition of loss allowance

The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustrent to their carrying amount through a loss
asllowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
for which the loss sliowance is recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the
financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Write-off

The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable expeclation of recavery.
The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of
debtor's sources of income or assels lo generate sufficient future cash fiows to repay the
amount.

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off will result in impairment gains

Financial Liabilities
Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

- fair value through profit or loss; and
- other financial liabilities.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabllities at initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in case of other financial liabilities
also include directly attributable transaction costs, The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification. as follows:

Falr value through profit or loss

Financial liabilitles at falr value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-
trading and financial liabllites designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability upon
recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

ii) Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently
measured at amortized cast, using the effective interest rate method and are measured at
present value. Gain and losses are recognized in profit or loss for the year, when the
liabilities are darecognized as well as through effective interest rate amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Company's
bligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounl presented in the statements of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to setfle on a net basis, or realise the asset and seftie the liability

simultanaously.

4,21 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lizbility In an
orderly transaction betwsen market participants st the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market is accessibie by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a liabllity |s measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the assel or liabllity, assuming that marke! participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into accounl a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market parlicipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate In the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value s measured or disclosead in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
thal is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) markel prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities;

- Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurament is directly or indirectly observable; and

- Level 3 —Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuremeant is unobservable

For assets and liabllities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurmng
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Board determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and
for non-recurring measurement. External valuers may be involved for valuation of significant assets
and significant liabllites, For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company determines
classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
llahility and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.
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Other Income
The Company recognises following In other income:

(i} Income on deposit / saving accounts using the effective yield method

(il Dividend income when the right to receive dividend is established.

(iii} Income from other non-recurring goods and services is recognised when the control is
transferred and performance abligations are fulfilled.

Summary of other accounting policies

Othar than matenial accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are sel out below for ease of user's understanding of these financial statements. These policies
have been applied consistently for all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Employee retirement benefits

The Company operates a provident fund and an unfunded gratuity scheme for ts employees as
per details balow:

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a recognized contributory provident fund for its permanent employees.
Equal menthly contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees to the fund at
the specified rate of basic salary and charged to statement of profit or loss Investments oul of
provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of Campanies
Act, 2017 and applicable rules.

5.1.2 Defined benefit plan

512

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering eligible emplayees under their
employment contract. The liability for gratuity (s recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation
using Projected Unit Credit Method. The latest actuarial valuation was conducted on September
30, 2024

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustiments and changes in actuaral
assumptions are charged or credited in cther comprehensive income in the year in which they
arise. Pasl sarvice cosls are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Fareign currency transactions and transiation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the rupees using the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of the transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the statement of
financial position date. Forsign exchange gains and losses resulling from the ssttlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Dividend and revenue reserve appropriation

Dividend and mavement in revenue resarves are recognised in the financial statements in the
period in which these are approved.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Ciluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares.

Deferred government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be recelved and the Company will comply with all attached

conditions,

Government grant includes any bensfit earned on account of & government loan obtained at
below-market rate of interest. The loan is recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9
*Financial Instruments”. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest shall be measured as
the difference betwaen the initial carrying value of the Ioan determined in accordance with IFRS

8 and the proceeds received.

Government grant that has been awarded for the purpose of giving Immediate financial support
to the Company is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the entity qualifies o

receive it
Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and
reporting standards reguires the use of cerain accounting estimates. it alzso reqguires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexily, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are as follows:

iy  Estimated useful life of operating assets -note 4.3 and 7

The Company annually reviews appropriateness of the method of depreciation, usaful life
and residual value used in the calculation of depreciation, Further, where applicable, an
estimate of the recaverable amount of asset is made for pessible Impairment on an annual
basis. Any change in these estimates in the future, might affect the carrying amount of the
respective item of property and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation

impairment.



i)

[i)

)

v)

vi)

vii)

A=

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - note 4.3 and 7

The Company carfies out revaluations, considening the change In circumstances and
assumplions from latest revaluation. The fair value of the Company's free hoid land,
buildings & roads, plant & machinery and electric instaliations is assessed by
management based on independent valuation performed by an external property valuation
expert as at year end. For valuation of free hold land, bulldings & roads, plant & machinery
and electric instaliations, the current market price or depreciated replacement cost method
is used, whereby, current cost of construction of similar free hold land, bulldings &
roads plant & machinery and electric installations in similar locations has been adjusted
using suitable depreciation rates to arrive at present market value. This technigue requires
gignificant judgment as fo estimating the revalued amount in terms of their quality,
struciure, layout and locations.

Impairment assessment of non financial assets - note 4.5, 46and9.3

The carrying amourt of the Company's non financial assets including investment in
subsidiaries are reviewed at each reporting date lo determine whether there is any
indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any

Provision for stores and spares - note 4.7 and 11

Far items which are slow-moving and/or Identified as obsolete, adequate provision is
made for any excess book value over estimated realisable value on a reqular basis. The
Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a regular basis and
provision is made for obsolescence

Write down of stock in trade lo net realizable value - note 4.B and 12

Met realisable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of the product in
the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of compietion and the estimated
cosls necessary to make the sale.

If the expected net realisable value is lower than the carrying amount, a write-down is
recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net raglisable value.
Provision is made In the unconsolidated financial statements for obsolete and slow moving
stock-in-trade based on management estimale.

Work in process of sugar is valuad at 80% of production cost.

Estimation of impairment loss allowance - note 4.9 and 13

The Company reviews the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model which is based on the
historical credit loss experience over the life of the trade receivables and adjusted if

raquired. The ECL modsl is reviewed on a quarterly basis.

Provisian for employees’ defined benefit plans - note 5.1 and 23.3

Defined benefit plans are provided for all employees of the Company. These calculations
require assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respact of
increases In remuneration and the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to
current values, The assumptions used vary for the different plans as they are determined

by independent actuaries annually.
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Cost primarily represents the Increase In actuarial present value of the obligation for
benefits eamed on employees service during the year and the interest on the nel
liability/{assat) in respect of employee's service in previcus years. Caleulations are
eensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

Provision for taxation and levy - note 4 15, 4,16, 35 and 36

In making the estimate for tax payable and levy payatile, the Company takes into account
applicable tax laws, the decisions taken by the appellate authorities on ceriain issues in
the past and professional advice of tax consultant of the Company

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and credits o the extent that
it js probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which such losses and credils can
be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with fulure tax planning strategies.

Provisions and contingencies - notes 4,14 and 26

The management exsrcises judgement in measuring and recognizing provisions and
exposures to contingent liabilities related to pending litigations or other cutstanding claims.
Judgement Is necessary In assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a
liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the financial settiement.

Estimation of Jease tarm and Incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities and right of
use assels -notes 4.4, 4.12, 8 and 21

IFRS 18 requires the Company lo assess the lease lerm as the non-cancelable lease tarm
in line with the lease contracl together with the period for which the Company has
extension options which the Company Is reasonably certain to exercise and the periods for
which the Company has termination options for which the Company is not reasonably
certgin to exercise those termination options.

A significant portion of the lease contracts included within Company's |ease portiolio
includes lease contracts which are extendable through mutual agreement between the
Company and the lessor or lease conlracts which are cancelable by the Company on
immediately or on short notice: In assessing the lease term for the adoption of IFRS 16,
the Company concluded that these cancelable future lease periods should be included
within the lease term in determining the lease liability upon initial recognition. The
reasonably certain period used fo determine the lease term is based on facts and
circumstances relaled o the underlying leased asset and lease contracts and after
consideration of business plan of the Company which incorporates economic, potential
demand of customers and technological changes.

MNote 2024 2023
(Rupees In thousand)

7.  Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assals 71 20,683,321 18,853 151
Capital work-in-progress 7.8 B51,864 1,517,881

b

21545185 20,371,132
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7.3 Had the revalued fixed assets of the Company been recognised under the cost model, the

carrying values of these assets would have been as follows:
2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)

Freehold land 239,234 239,234
Leasehold land 2,599,760 2,681,002
Buildings and roads 1,426,711 841 607
Piant and machinery 2,968,741 3,217,274
Elactric installations 390,445 425,086

7624891 __ 7404203

7.4 Forced sales value of the fixed assels based on valuation conducted during the year are as
follows:

2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)
Freahald land 1,647,126 1,647,128
Leasshold land 3,000,000 3,100,000
Buildings and roads 2,689,974 1,882,548
Plant and machinery 8,200,198 8.051,250
Efectric instailations 334,725 348,750

15,872,023 15,039,675

7.5 Particulars of immuovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Location Usage of immovable property Total Area Covered Area
(Kanals)
CSM-1, D.L.Khan Factory Building 1.111.25 98.86
C8M-2, Ramak Factory Building 1,618.65 174.68
Plot # A-4,Sector F-9 / G-,
Islamabad Land for Head office bullding 27 -

Kings Arcade, Plot # 20-A, Office Pramises 2nd & 3rd

F-7 Markaz, Islamabad Floor 2.49 249

2024 2023

Note (Rupees in thousand)
7.6 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 29 1,459, 485 1,301,650
Administrative and general expenses 31 81,971 18,329

1,541,456 1,319,879

7.7 Security

Property plant and equipment with aggregale carrying value of Rs. 13,562,334 thousand (2023:
Rs. 10,113,667 thousand) are subject to first joint parl passu charge as defined in note 19, The
Company is restricied to pledge these assels as security for other borrowings or sell them to
anather enfity subject to approval,
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2024 2023
Mate (Rupees in thousand)

9. Long term investments

Investment in subsidiaries - ungquoled / at cost
Investmant in shares of Whole Foods
(Private) Limited (WFL) - at cost - 100% holding
10,000,000 (2023: 10,000,000) fully paid ordinary shares 8.1 100,000 100,000
Advance for equity contribution 10,1 615,466 =

Investmant in shares of Ultimate Whola
Foods (Private) Limited (UVWFL) - at cost - 84% holding

102,800,000 (2023: 50,400,000} fully paid ordinary shares 9.3 1,029,000 504,000

Difference in fair value and prasent value
on initial recognition of interest free loan 10.1 119,964 119,684
1,868,430 723,964

Less : Impairment recognised an subsidiary

- Whole Foads (Private} Limited 92 215,607 85,607
1,652,823 638357

81 WFL was incorporated in Pakistan on October 28, 2017. The principal activity of WFL Is to setup,
manage, supervise and control the slorage facilities for agneultural produce. WFL is yet to commence
its operations. During the year, the Company and WFL entered into an agreement to converi
outstanding balance of receivables from WFL into equity as disclosed in note 10.1 and note 14.4. The
Company presently owns 10,000,000 shares (2023: 10,000,000) at par value of Rg 10 (2023: Rs. 10)

each.

9.2 During the year ended September 30, 2024, managemenl assessed the nvesiment in WFL for
impairmant in respect of triggering events as specified by I1AS 36 applicable to the non-current assets.
Based on the below indicaters, an impairment test has been carried oul by the management fo
determine the recoverable amount of WFL

- Lack of start of operations as per plan envisaged In the agreement between Punjab Foods
Department, Government of Punjab and Whole Foods (Private) Limited;

- Notice of intent to terminate agreement between Punjab Foods Department, Government of Punjab
to Whole Foeds Limited (WFL) during 2023 which has been contestad by the management of WFL
The management of WFL is confident that the abave said notics will be withdrawn,

- Management plans to cansider other oplions

The Company has performed an assessment of recoverable value based on fair value less costs o
sell and value In use of its investment In WFL. The fair valug less cost to sell has been determined by
an independent expert. Management's approach and key assumptions used lo determine fair value
less cost to sell are given In note 401 fo the financial statemants. Based an the same the
managemeant has recorded additional Impairment loss of Rs. 130 million during the year.
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UWFL was incorporated in Pakistan on May 17, 2021. The objective of UWFPL is to set up mills for
milling wheat, gram, other arains, other allied products and by-preducts from flours. The Company
commenced its oparations In October 2023 During the year, the Company has acquired additional
shargs amolnting to Rs.525 million. The Company owns 102,600,000 shares (2023: 50,400,000 ) at
par value of Rs. 10 (2023: Rs. 10). The total number of shares of UWFL is 122,500,000 (2023:

70,000,000),

Managemant of CSML has carried outl an impairment analysis of UWFL, based on fulure expected
cash flows for the future years and terminal values. The future cash flows has been discounted at
weighted average cost of capital of 14.45% per annum with terminal growth rate of 4.5% per annum
has been used. Based on this analysis, management believes that carrying value of the investmeant in

UWFL is recoverable in full.

PGEL was incorporated In Pakistan on April 17, 2024 as a public limited company under the
Companies Act, 2017. The principal line of business of the Company included manufacturing,
production and sale of varous grades of ethanol During the year, the Company subscribed
50,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs 10 each aggregating to Rs. 500 million out of total proposed share
capital of 65,002,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating Rs. 650 million. However, the
subscription money was not pald PGEL did not commence operations and subsequent to the year
end, the Board of Directors of PGEL passed a resalution for winding wp of the Company on January
14, 2025 due to financial and operational difficulties in the business. The same has besn
communicated to Securiies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) by PGEL The
management based on legal opinion obtained from it's legal advisor are of the view that there is no
binding cbligation to pay the subscribed amount accordingly, the related amounts have not been
recagnised in the financial statemeants,

Note 2024 2023

Long term loans and deposits - considered good (Rupees in thousand)
Leng term security deposits 15,343 15,084
Loan to subsidiary company - WFL - at amortized cost 10.1 - 268,852
15,343 283,936

This represented an amount of Rs 335 million paid by the Company intermittently on behalf of the
WFL. Tripartite subordination agreements dated June 29, 2020 and June 30, 2021 were entarsd into
between the Company, WFL and Soneri Bank Limited (the lender) whereby the related amount is
subordinated to the principal, markup and any and all other amounts that may ba payable to the lender
under the financing agreements. No payment of the aforesaid amount can be made by WFL. except
with prior written consent of the lender. Accordingly, all payments due to Company shall be postponed
till repayment of loan to the lender. During the year, the Company has entered into an agreement with
WFL fo covert the closing balance as at September 30, 2024 including markup of Rs. 335078
thousand into equity. Accordingly. the amount has been classified as advance fer equity in long term
[rwas!meﬂls. The Company and WFL will complete the procedural formalities in the ensuing period for
issuance of share capital threre against.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Al the beginning of the year 268,852 246,220
Interest an loan to subsidiary campany 56,226 22,632
Transfer lo advance for equity conltribution - note 9 (335,078) .
Balance as al end of the year - 268,852
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11. Stores and spares

Stores and spares
Less: Provision for absolete items

11.1 Provision for cbsolete items
Opening balance
Revemnsal of provision during the year
Closing balance

Mole 2024 2023
(Rupeses in thousand)

770,661 835,690

11.1 {38,385) (53.980)
732,276 841,710

53,980 60,693

(16,695) (8.713)

38,385 53,980

11.2 Stores and spares include items which may resull in fixed capital expenditure bul are not yet

digtinguishable.

12. Stock-in-trade

Finished goods
- Bugar

- Molasses

- Ethanaol

- Bagasse

Waork-in-process

MNote 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

12.2 1,787,519 3,252,578
1,117,556 1,128,284

954,434 742,952

107,203 36,569

3,966,712 5,161,383

21,768 16,293

12.1 3,088,480 §177.676

12,1 Certain short term and long term borowings of the Company are secured by way of collateral charge

on stock-in-trade.

122 The closing stock of sugar, net of 10% to 15% margin, having carying value of Rs. 3.439.411
thousand (2023:Rs. 3,435,411 thousand) has been pledged agains! cash finance oblained from

commercial and lsiamic banks (for details, refer to note 23).

13. Trade debts - unsecured
Considerad good

Due from related parties
Others

Considered daubtful

Less: |oss allowance

13.1 Trade debts - unsecured

Local
Exports

it

MNate 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

- 450
276,285 1,213,654
276,285 1,214,104

2,043 3,333
131 278,328 1,217,437
132 (2,043) (3.333)

276,285 1.214.104

130,063 254 894
148,265 562,538

278,328 1,217,437
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Mote 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
13.2 Movermenl In loss allowance
Opering balance 3,332 1,782
(Reversal) ! Provision for the year (1,290) 1.551
Closing Balance 2,043 3,383

13.3 The maximum aggregate amount recelvable from relaled parties at the end of any manth during the
year was Rs NIl (2023: Rs 450 thousand),

13.4 The ageing analysis of trade debis due from related parties is as follows:

2024 2023
Note (Rupeaes in thousand)
Upta & manths - 450
Maore than & months E =
- 450
14. Loans and advances
Advances lo;
Employees - securad 141 11,851 12,077
Suppliers and contractors - unsecured 1,032,368 1,025,502
1,044,219 1,037,578
Due from related parties 14.2 717,094 723431
Letters of credit - secured 39,540 11,158
1,800,853 1,772 16886
Less:
= Provision for doubtful advances (28,838) (28,838)
- Loss allowance 14.7 {905) (805)

1,771,110 1,742,423

14,1 These include balences of Rs 11,851 thousand (2023: Rs 12,077 thousand) secured agsinst
retirement benefits of respective employess;

2024 2023
MNote (Rupees in thousand)
142 This represents amounts due from the gssociated companies:
Due from holding company:
The Premier Sugar Mills and Distiliary Company Limited 98,126 -
Due from subsidiary company / associated company:
Whole Foods (Private) Limited 14.4 - 170,002
Ultimate Whele Foods (Private) Limitad 14.5 615,878 553,429
Premier Grain Ethanal Limited 3,000 -
717,094 723,431

14.3 Maximum aggregate amount outstanding in respect of related pariies at any month-end during the
year was Rs 896,520 thousand (2023; Rs 637,845 thousand),

W~
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The Company has entered into an agreement with WFL to converl the closing balance .mmudmg
markup amounting Rs. 284,388 thousand as at September 30, 2024 into equity. Accordingly, the
amout has been classified as advance for equity in "long term investments”. The Company and WFL
will complete the procedural formalities in the ensuing period for Issuance of share capital there

against.

This represents loan facility of Rs 1,000 milien far Ultimate Whale Foods (Private) Limited. The loan is
unsacured and interest on this loan is charged at a lender's borrowing cost of 3 month KIBOR + 1.1%
per year. The |oan is repayable in one year extendable up to 5 years. The maximum amount due as al
the end of any month during the year was Rs. 816 million (2023. Rs 553 millian).

The ageing analysis of receivable from related parties is as follows.
2024 2023
Note {Rupees in thousand)
Upto 6 months 259,933 610,651
Maore than & months 457,161 112,780
717,094 723.431
Movemenl in loss allowance during the year is as follows:
Opening balance 805 805
Lass allowance for the year - -
Closing balance 805 905
Trade deposits and other receivables
Depasils - 2.500
Prepaymenis 10,353 9,304
Export subsidy receivabla 305,519 05,5159
Insurance cfaim receivable - 33,746
Acorued mark-up on term deposit receipts 50,801 1,520
Others 12,924 4,184
379,597 366,773
Less: loss allowance 151 (305,519} (155,782)
74,078 200 881
Mavement in loss allowance of export subsidy is as follows:
Opening balance 155,782 80,369
Impairmeant loss for the year 148,737 65413
Closing balance 305,518 155,782
Cash and bank balances
At banks in
Current accounis 16.2 429,839 331,379
Savings accounts 16.3 19,144 28,934
Deposit accounts 16.4 450,000 450,000
898,783 811,313




16.1

162

16.3

16.4

16.5

17.

179

17.2

173

17.4

17.5

-28-

2024 2023
(Rupess in thousand)

Bank balances that are included in cashflow are as follows:

Cash and bank balances BO8 783 B11.313
Bank balances under lien - note 16.5 (454 0001 {454,000)
444 783 357.313

These Include dividend account balance of Rs 1,225 thousand (2023 Rs 460 thousand). These
balances ara maintained In separate non interest bearing current bank accounts,

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 19.00% to 20.50% (2023: 13.50% to 19.50%) per annum

These include term deposits carrying profit at the rates ranging from 20.50 % to 20.60% (2023
20.00% to 20.55%) per annum and having maturity of 30 days.

Lien is marked on bank balances for an amount of Rs 454,000 thousand (2023: Rs 454,000 thousand)
in respect of the various guarantees sxtended by the banks,

Share capital
Authorised share capital

As at year end, the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company includes following share
capital holdings by the related parties;

2024 2023 2024 2023
{(Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)
50,000,000 50.000.000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 sach 500,000 500,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
{Number of shares) Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each {Rupees in thousand)
28,682,000 28,682,000 Fully paid in cash 286,920 286,920
=a————

The holding company, The Premier Sugar Mills and Distillery Company Limited held 13,751,000 {2023
13,751.000) ordinary shares and the associated companies held 5,375,334 (2023; 5,375, 334) ordinary
shares &l the year end,

Ordinary shares have a par value of Rs 10 each. They entitle the holdar to participate in dividends, as
declared from time to lime, and to share In the procsedings of the winding up of the Company in the
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. Further, the holder is entitled 1o cne
voie par share at the general mestings of the Company.

General reserve

These represent amounts appropriated by the Board of Directors of the Company from 1893 lo 2005 to
a separate reserve available for distribution lo shareholders by way of dividend.

W




18.

18.1

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The Company follows revaluation modeal for freshold fand, leasehold land, buildings & roads, plant &
machinery and electric installations, The fair value of the Company's free hold land, lzasehold land,
buildings & roads, plant & machinary and electric installations were assessed by management based
on independsnt valuation perormed by an external property valuation expert as al September 30,
2024. For valuation of these items, the curment market price or depreciated replacement cost mathod
was used, whersby, curren! purchase / construction cost of similar items In similar locations was
adiusted using suilable depreciation rales lo arrive at present market value. This technique requires
significant judgment as to estimating the revalued amount In terms of their quality, structure, layoul
and locations, Movement during the year is as follows:

2024 2023

{(Rupees in thousand)
Balance at the beginning of the year 11,289,280 8.513.360
Add: surplus on revaluation camied-out during the year 2,494 915 2,567,400
Less. incramantal depreciation for the year (808,172) (T81,.480)

12,888,023 11,258,280
Less: deferred tax on:

- ppening balance of surplus 3,150,554 2,578 882

- surplus during the year 1,111,434 B42 778

- incremeantal depreciation for the year (354,187) (271,104)
3,907,801 3,150,554

Balance at the end of the year 8,978,222 B, 148728

18.2 The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not avallable for distribution to the

shareholders In accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017,

e
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Loans from related parties - secured
Assoclated companies
Premier Board Mills Limited 20.1 37472 45,840
Arpak International Investments Limited 20.2 25,000 31,250
Azlak Enterprises (Private) Limited 20.3 85,000 85,000
Accrued mark-up 72,607 46,236

220,079 209,328

Less: amount payable within next 12 months
Principal 21,250 31,236

Accrued mark-up 72,607 48,238
126,222 131,854

The long term finance facility had been renewed on August 2, 2024, The principal is repayable in
B semi annual installments commencing from November 2028. The rale of mark-up is one month
KIBOR + 1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated company is not less than the
borrowing cost of the associated company. These loans are secured against promissory note
from the Company.

The long term finance facility had bean renewed on August 2, 2024. The principal is repayable in
8 semi annual installmants commencing from November 2028. The rale of mark-up is one month
KIBOR + 1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated company is not less than the
borrowing cost of the associaled company. These loans are secured against promissery note
fram the Company.

The long term finance facility had been renewed on January 3, 2022, The principal is repayable
In 8 semi annual Installments commencing from December 2024. The rate of mark-up is one.
month KIBOR + 1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated company is not less
than the borrowing cost of the associated company. These loans are secured against promissory
note from the Company.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

Lease liabilities

Balance at beginning of the year 225,583 238,787
Additions during the year 100,762 89,874
Unwinding of interest on lzase liabilities 50,293 43,479
Payments made during the year (154,773) (145,182)
Remesasurement gain 6,081 {9,365)
Balance at end of the year 227,956 225,503
Less: current portion of long term lease liabilities (84,845) (85,279)

143,011 140,314

The Company has acquired vehicles under finance lease from commercial banks. The financing
Is repayable in equal monthly installments over a period ranging between four to five years and
carrles finance charge ranging from 17.36% to 26.18% (2023: 16 83% to 24 72%) per annum,
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Mote

22. Deferred liabilities
Defermed taxation 21.1
Provision for gratuily 222
Deferred government grant 22.4

221 Deferred tax comprises of the following:
Taxable temporary differences arise in respect of.

Accelerated tax depreciation allowances

Surpius on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Right of Use Assat

Deductible temporary differences arise in respect of.

Lease liabilities

Provision for doubtful advances

Provision for obsolete items

Imapaimment losses

Pravision for gratuity

Minimum tax and tax losses recoverable against
future taxable profits

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

3,018176 3472814

22,132 19,965
49,695 76,280
3,080,003 3,569,059
656,961 589,017
3,907,801 3,150,554
115,235 102,720
4,679,997 3,842,300
(88,903) (78,261)
(11,600)(| (10,318)
(14,970)| |  (18,726)
(796)|| (30.870)
(8,631) (6,928)
(1,536,921)| | (224.385)
(1,661,821)  (360,486)

3,018,176 2472814

222 The lates! acluarial valuation of the employees' defined benefit plan was conducted at September
30, 2024 using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Details of the defined benefit plan are as

foliows

Note
Fresent value of defined benefit obligation 2231
Fair value of plan assets
Net lability

A~

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
22,132 19,865
22,132 189,965
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
22.3.1 Movement in net liability recognised
Opening net liability 19,965 14,843
Expense for the year recognised in statement of profit or
loss account 2233 8,935 5,639
Remesasurement {gain) / loss recognised in statemant of
olher comprehensive income. 22.3.5 (2,245) 2,656
Benefits paid (5,360) (1,180)
Benefits payable to outgoing employees transferred to
trade and other payables B37 {1.883)
22132 18,865
22.3.2 Expense for the year
Cumrent service cosl 6,040 3,882
Met interast expense 2,885 1,757
8,835 5,639
22,3.3 Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation:
Opening defined benefit obligation 19,965 14,843
Currant service cost 6,040 3.882
Interest cost 2,895 1,757
Bengfits paid {5,360) {1,180)
Benefits payable to outgoing employees transferred to
trade and other payables 837 {1,993)
Remeasurement {gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation (2,245) 2,658
Closing defined benefit abligation 22,132 18,965

22.3.4 Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation:

The "Projected Unit Credit Method" using the following significant assumptions was used for the
valuation of the scheme:

2024 2023
% %

Discount rate used for interest cost 16.75 13.25
Discount rate used for year end obligation 11.75 16.75
Salary increase rate - long term 11.75 16.75
Salary increase rate - short term 11.75 16.75
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rates SLiC sLIC

2001-05 2001-05

During the year 2025, the Company expects to contribute Rs 8,585 thousand (2024: Rs 8,278
thousand) to its gratuity scheme.




2024 2023
22.3.5 Remeasurement recognised in OCI during the year: (Rupees in thousand)
Actuarial (gains) / lossas from changes in financial assumptions (170) 1,540
Experience adjustmants (2,075) 1,118
Remeasurament (gain) / loss on defined banefit obligation 52!21@ 2.656
Distribution timing of gratuity payments:
1 year 1,550 1,108
2 years 2,651 1,201
3 years 2,494 2,808
4 years 3,166 9,106
5 years 2,922 3,454
& years onward 798,699 1,929,632
The weighled average number of years of defined benefit obligation s given below:
Plan duration Years
September 30, 2024 10
Septembear 30, 2023 9

The calculation of defined banefit obligation iz sensitive to assumptions sel oul above. The following
lable summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporiing period
would have increased/ (decreased) as a resull of 2 change in respective assumptions by one percent.

Effact of Effect of
1 percent 1 percent
Increase decrease
{(Rupees In thousand)

2024

Discount rate {20,029) 24815
Future salary growth 24,627 (19,979)
2023

Discount rate (18,387) 21,787
Future salary growth 21,758 (18,388)

The above sensilivity analyses are based on the changes In assumptions while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes In some of the assumptions
may be corelated. When caloulating the sensitivity of defined benefit obligation to significant
assumplions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected credit unit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied when calculating the
llability recognized within the statement of financial position.

The defined benefit obligation exposes the Company to the following risks

Final salary risks:

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessalion of service is grealer than what was assumed.
Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase

proporionatesly.
Withdrawal risks:

The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either way
depanding on the beneficiaries’ service | age distribution and the bansfit.

L




224

Mortality risks:

The risk that the actual mortality experience Is different, Similar to the withdrawal risk, the effect depends on
the beneficiaries' service / age distribution and the benefil

Diseount rate fluctuation

The plan lisbilities are calculated using @ discount rate set with reference lo corporate bond yiglds, A
decrease In corporate bond yields will increase plan liabllities, although this will be partially offset by an
increase in the value of the current plan’s bond haldings,

2024 2023
Mote (Rupees in thousand)
Deferred government grant
Upening balance 76,280 417
Grant recognised during the year - 89,809
Amariization during the year {26,585) (23,945
Closing Balange 224 49,695 76,280

This represent defered government grant in respect of term finance facility obtained under SBP temporary
ecanomic refinance facllity (TERF). The Company had entered into an arrangement with Bank Al Habib
Limited for obtaining term finance facility under State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) TERF scheme to facilitate
retirament of impori/shipping documents recelved against LCs (foreign and localfinland), upto & maximum of
Rs 305 millian. The repayment of loan (princlpal amount) will be made In 10 equal semi annual instaliments
commencing from September 30, 2023, Mark up rate is 5% on this faciiity and shall also be paid on semi
snnual basis. The availed facility at Septembar 30, 2024 was Rs 456,000 thousand. The fagllity will expire on
September 30, 2027. There are no unfulfilied conditions or other contingancies atisching to this grant.

2024 2023
Note {Rupees in thousand)
Trade and other payables

Craditars 331,480 441,581
Due to related parfies 23.1 150,147 296,018
Accrued expenses 130,561 135, 488
Retention money 16,072 20,288
Secunty deposits 232 1,289 1,288
Advance paymernts from customars - contract liability 232 179,205 1,857,552
Sales tax payable 344,116 248,710
Income tax deducted al source 194,989 85.468
Payable for workers' profit parficipation fund 23.4 - B3,166
Payahble for workers' welfare fund 23.5 30,258 30,258
Payabie to employees 84,812 58,202
Payable ta provident fund 9,574 8,458
Others 10,612 11,292

1,483,125 3,375788




Mols

23.1  This represents amounts due (o the following refated paries and

232

are interast free and payable on demand | excepl as disclosed,
Halding Company

The Premiar Sugar Mills and Distillery Comparny Limited
Subsidiary Company

Premler Grain Ethanol (Private) Limited 94
Assoclated Companles

The Frontier Sugar Mills and Distillery Limited
Syntronics Limited

Phipson & Company Paklstan {Private) Limited
Azlak Enterprises (Private) Limited

Directors

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

= 180,161

- 733
11,893 -

- 55

38,154 25,143

100,000 118,826

150,147 286,018

These are repayable on demand and cannot be utilised for the purpose of business in accordance with the

terms of written agreements with these parties. No amount in this respect has been kept in separate bank

account.

MNate

233 Revenue recognised from advance from customers during the year

234 Payable for workers' profit participation fund

23.

24,

Balance atf the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Prior year adjustment

Interest on funds utllized in the Company’s business
Paymenls mada during the year

Balance at the end of the year

6 Payable for workers® welfare fund

Balance at the heginning of the year
Charge for the year
Prior year adjusiment

Payments made during the year
Balance at the end of the year
Short term borrowings - secured

Secured
Cash / running finance
Export re finance - short term borrowing

Accrued mark-up

i

2024 2023
(Rupees In thousand)
1,957,552 235 821

83,166 24,008
s B3.168
(4,202) 1.264
78,964 108.438
7418 1,438
{86,382) (28,710)
= 83,166
30,258 28,957
- 28,087
- (5.209)
30,258 B2.B45
5 (22 587)
10,258 a0 258
2,572,774 2,988,230
5,449,064 1,523,885
8,021,838 4,492 125
303,170 378,878
8,325,008 4,871,003
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.39.
2024 2023
Nate (Rupees in thousand)
26.  Current maturity of non-current liabilities
Long term finances 19 760,647 1,418,986
Loans from related partiss’ 20 93,857 iT4a72
Lease liabilities 21 854,945 85,278

839,449 1.681.737

26. Contingencies and commitments

Contingencles

261 The Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR), Peshawar vide order dated May 26, 2015 alleged that the
Company has not underiaken appropriate stock taking and raised a dermand of R 10 million in respect
of FED on the alleged differential stock. The Company preferred an appeal before Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR) which was accepted vide order dated January 25, 2016. In this respect, the tax
department filed reference before the Honorable Peshawar High Courd which Is yet to be decided.

28.2 In respect of super tax demand under section 4C of Income Tax Ordinancea, 2001 for the tax year 2021
@ 10% of taxable income, the Company had filed writ pelition before Peshawar High Court, and an
interim relief was granted, directing the Company {0 50% of the tax demanded. However, duning the
year, The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) sent a notice to the Company directing It to pay super tax @
4%, based on Supreme Court's order in respect of other companies wherein the Supreme Court of
Pakistan granted an interim ralief against demand of super tax at the rate of 10% and directed FER o
recover the tax @ 4%. Managemenl has recorded a current tax charge of Rs 41.8 million in respect of
super tax @ 4% out of which Rs. 24.8 million was paid during the prior year. The Company and its legal
counsel are confident that based on Supereme Court's order maximum exposure of the Company in
respect of super tax for tax year 2021 is 4% and no further provision neads (o be recognized in these

financial statements.

263 The Federal government through SRO No. 1062(1)/2021 dated Aprll 28, 2021 fixed the Ex-Mill and
Retail prices of Sugar ufs 6 of the Price Control and Prevention of Profiteering and Hoarding Act, 1987
al Rs:05.57/kg and Rs:98.82/kg. The Company has filed a writ palition in Peshawar High court against
tha above direction of Federal Government on Aprl 20, 2023
Peshawar High Court granted stay on the case vide order dated § June, 2023 and the case is currently
pending adjudication as al year encl.

264 The Compelition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) issued a show cause nofice dated November 4, 2020
to sugar mills with respect lo arfificial price hike and alleged cartelization. The Campany submitted its
reply dated December 25, 2020, Howsver CCP passed an order daled August 13, 2021 and on the
basls of revenues of financlal year 2019 imposed a panelly of Rs.650,000 thousand on the Company.
Against the said order of CCP, the Company has filed an appeal before the CCP Appeliate tribunal. The
CCP Appellata tribunal has granled stay order against the CCP's order dated August 13, 2021. The
case is pending adjudication.

26.5 The Company has letter of guarantee facilites aggregating Rs 50 million (2023: Rs 50 million) availakble
from Bank Al Habib. The amount availed on these faclliizs as at September 30, 2024 is Rs 4 million
(2023: Rs 4 million). These faciliies are secured by master counter guarantee and 100% cash margin.

266 The Company has obtained letter of credit faciliies aggregating Rs 415 million (2023: Rs 355 million)
from Bank Al Habib, The amount availed on these facilities as at September 30, 2024 is Rs 243 millian
(2023 Rs 221 milllon). These facillties are secured by lien on shipping documents.

26.7 The Company has cash finarce facllity avallable fram various banks aggregating te Rs 17,550 million
(2023: Rs 10,825 millian), out af which Rs 2 573 million (2023: Rs 2,868 million) has been avalled by the
Company as at September 30, 2024. These facililies are secured against pledge charge over cryslalline

Wsugar inclusive of margin of 10 - 15%.
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The Company has Export Re FinancelFinance Against Packing Credit (ERF / FAPC) facility from
varioug commercial banks for Rs 5,900 million (2023: Re 3,950 million), out of which Rs 5,443 million
{2023 Rs 1,524 million) has bean availed by the Company as at September 30, 2024, These faciities
are secured by the joint parri passu hypothecation charge over current assets of the Gompany and lign

over expon documenis,

The Company is defending its stance before the courts of law against various parties including
individuals, corporate enfities, federal and provincial revenus /| regulatory authorities etc. The
management of the Company Is of the view that the ultimate outcome of these cases are axpectad to be
favorable and a liability, If any, arising on the setiemant of these cases is not likely to be matenal
Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial stalements in this regard.

During the period, the Company has lssued further corporate guarantee amounting to Rs. 667 million in
favour of UWFL In connection with financing arrangaments with a financial institution. The financing
facility is expected to be settied by December 31, 2027 and accordingly, the guarantee issued by the
Company will be released by December 31, 2027,

Mote 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Commitmenis
The Company has following commitments in respecl of:
Foreign letter of cradit for purchase of plant and machinsry 140,663 -
Local lelter of credil for purchase of plant and machinary - 143,681
Capital expenditure other than for letter of cradit 14,386 14,386
Gross sales
Local 29,976,633 20,874,057
Export 271 6,847,464  B.497.580

36,824,087 28371617

Export sales comprise of the sugar and ethanol sales, made in the following regions:

Singapore 561,377 361,618
China - 540,773
Spain 2,427,827 5.262.047
Hong Kong 373,715 97 . TES
Switzerland 2,675,212 2,182,182
Afghanistan - 52,867
Indanesia 396,691 -
United Arab Emirates 412,642 -
5,847,464 8487 560

Sales tax, other government levies and discounts

Indiract taxes 4,535,928 2,984 342
Discounts and commissions 13,512 11,6558

4,548,440 2.885200
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Cost of sales

Raw material consumed

Chemicals and stores consumed

Salaries, wages and benefits

Fower and fuel

Repalr maintenance and others

Insurance

Depreciation - property, ptant and equipment
Depraciation - right of use asset

Adjustment of woik-in-process:
Opening
Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Adjustment of Tinished goods;
COpening stock
Closing stock

Mote

29.1

7.6
a1

2024 2023

{Rupees in thousand)
25,201,351 18,397 856
520,323 584,182
919,538 888,766
169,726 162,838
539,416 B33,310
50,893 32.007
1,458,486 1,301,650
4,169 4621
28,864,890 21,886,260
16,293 12,146
(21,768} {16,283)
(5,475) (4,147)
28,859,415 21,982,113
5,161,383 3,367,723
(3,966,712)| [ (5.161.383)
1,194,671 (1.783,650)
30,054,086 20,188,453

Salaries, wages and bensfits include Rs 25,253 thousand (2023: Rs 20,780 thousand) in respect of

retiramant benefils,

Selling and distribution expenses

Salares, wages and benefits
Loading and stacking

Export developmant surcharge
Export sales commission
Freight and other expanses
Depreciation - right of use asset

Note

an

81

2024 2023

{Rupees in thousand)
22,618 19.891
26,760 33,601
18,106 18,468
331,211 4168 357
4B0,735 358,065
17.453 19,445
B77,883 B55.018

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs 658 thousand (2023: Rs 532 thousand) In respect of retiremant

benefits

Administrative and general expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits
Traveliing and conveyance
Vahicles running and maintenance
Rent, rates and taxes
Communication

Frinting and stationery

Insurance

Repair and maintenance

Faes and subscription
Depraciation - propery, plant and equipment
Depreciztion - right of use asset
Auditors’ remuneration

Legai and professional charges
Entertainment

Others

MNote

1.1

T8
B.1
3.2

2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)
598,428 B3 177
89,396 74,485
49 842 A4 BTS
9,202 8,518
28,130 18,745
14,016 13,451
B,B25 8,084
112,528 48,148
11,234 3,808
81,971 18,329
52,320 48,858
5,555 4,189
15,144 13,358
85,795 83,887
35,690 21,814
1,198,876 1.008.357
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31.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs 21,250 thousand (2023 Rs 17,120 thousand) in respect of

31.2

32,

33,

331

retirement benafits.

Auditors' remuneration

Statulary audit

Review of half yearly financial statements, review on statement
of free float of shares of the company, reporting on compliance
of Code of corporate governance (CCG) and review of
recancllialion statemant of Central deposstory company’s
(CDC) nominge holding In members’ register

Consolidation

Group reporting

Out-of-pockel expenses

Other income

Incomea from financial assets
Praofit on bank deposits
Mark-up income on loans receivable from subsidiaries
Mark-up earned on term depository raceipts

Income from other than financial assats
Sale of press mud - net of sales tax
Sale of fusel ail - net of sales tax
Gain on disposal of aperating fixed assets
Scrap sales - nel of expenses
Rental income
Income against insurance claim
Others

Other expenses

Impairment in long term investment - WFL
Donations

Workers' profit parficipation fund charge
Workers' welfare fund charge

Othars

Naote

331

2024 2023
{Rupees in thousand)
3,222 2,829
1,263 633
338 308
227 154
505 105
5,555 4,189
5,901 10.237
220,704 25486
88,758 31.313
7.218 5,878
3,101 3,378
15,490 8446
52,818 63,372
115 115
- 119,462
15,595 -
94 337 200,652
408,700 267 688
130,000 85,607
1,039 2,042
- 83,166
- 28,087
15,327 {3.945)
146,366 184 967

This includes donation paid to Al-Sira] Welfare Foundation amounting to Rs. 1,000 thousand (2023 Rs

2,042 thousand).

Finance cost - net

Mark-up on:

Long term finances
Loans from reiated parties
Short term borrowings

Urwinding of interest on lease liabilities
Amortization of deferred governmani grant
Amartization of loan to subsidiary company
Intarast on workers' profit participation fund
Bank charges

Exchange loss - net

Note

21
22.4
101

2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)
927,001 809,885
34,447 36,420
3,028,602 1,645,272
3,990,050 2.50.577
50,293 43,479
(26,585) (23,848)
- (22.6332)
7418 1,438
14,158 11.048
37,184 137 403
4,072,519 2738368




35.1

352

36.1

37,

ar.a
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Minimum tax - levy

This represents the minimum taxes and final taxes paid under section 5 of income Tax Ordinance, 2001

(ITO), representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37.
2024 2023
{Rupees in thousand]

Reconciliation of current tax charge as per income tax

laws with the current tax recoghized iz as follows: 380,371 351,298
Current tax liability for the year as per tax l[aws
Fortion of gurrent tax llability as per tax law, repressnling
income tax under 1AS 12 . 50,473
Portion of current tax liability as per tax law, representing
levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37 380,371 300,825

Differsnce

The aggregate of final tax and minimum tax, amounting to Rs. 380,371 thousand (2023: Rs 351,288
thousand) represents tax liability of the Company calculated under the relevant provisions of the Income

Tax Ordinance 2001.

Taxation
2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Currgnt:
- far the year - 8,535
- prigr year . 41,938
- 50,473
Deferred:
On account of temporary differences (1,566,943 (471,157)

1566543) __(420,554)

Reconciliation of levy and laxation with aceounting profil

Profit before taxation (4,204,191) 1,278,455
Tax rate 29% 29%
Tax on profit {1.,219,215) a70,752
Tax effect of
Effect of income taxable at reduced rates 233111 (362,216)
Prior y=ar charge - 41,838
Due to incremental depreciation (354,187) {271.104)
Reversal of deferred tax on imparimen! loss 29,714 .
Minirmum tax (326,432) (224, 385)
Others 70,068 24,332

(1,566,943) _ (420,684)

Earnings per share

Profit / (Loss) / after taxation atiributable to ordinary shareholders !!IEJTIZH! 1.699E1 38
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year

(Mo. of shares '000°) 28,692 28,6592
Earnings / {loss) per share (Rs) (91.92) 5822

Therz s no dilutive affect on basic eamings per share.
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Financial instrumeanis
Fimancial assets and liabilities
As al September 30, 2024

Financial assets:

Maturity uplo one year - at amoritsed cost
Trade debls - net of loss allowance
Losns and sdvances
Trade deposits and other receivables - net of lose allowancs
Cash and bank balances

Maturity after ane year - at fair value through profit orloss
Long term sacurity deposits

Financlal fiabilities:

Other financial liabilities - at amortised cost
Maturity uplo one year
Trade and other payables
Unclalmed dividends
Current matunty of non current liablities
Shert term running finance
Lease fabilites
Maturity after ans year
Long term finances - secured
Loans from related partias - sacured
Lease liahbilites

As at September 30, 2023

Financial assats:

Maturity uplo one year
Trade debls - net of 655 allowanes
Loans and advancas
Trade deposis and other racevabies - net of loss allowance
Cash and bank balances

Maturity sfter one year
Long term securily deposils

Financlal llabilities:

Other financial liabilities

Maturity upto one year
Trade and other payables
Unclalmed dividends
Current pertion of non cument liabilities:
Short tarm running finance
Lease liabilities

Maturity after one year
Leng term finances - secured
Loans from related partles - secured
Lezse liabilitiss

i

Amortised Cost Total
———Rupees in thousand-—-——

276 285 276,285
688 202 889,202
63,725 63,725
Ba8,7a3 898,783
15,343 15,343
1953338 1953338
va4. 857 734,657
15679 15,678
B854 504 854,504
8,325,008 8,325,008
84,545 84,045
38680783 3,980,793
126,222 126,222
143,011 143,011
14273718 14273719

Amortised Cost Total

{Rupess In thousand)
1,214,104 1,214,104
708,765 705,765
181,687 181,687
B811.313 811,313
283936 283936
3,206,805 3206805
1,002,895 1,002,895
14.572 14872
1466458 1,486,458
4,871,003 4,871,003
85,278 85,274
3.261.715 3,269,715
131,854 131,854
140,314 140,314
11,004,080 11,004.080




40 Financial risk managament
40.1.1 Financial risk factors

The Company has exposure to the following risks ram its use of financial instrumenits:

- credil nsk

- liguidity risk

- market risk

The Beard of [Nrectors (the Board) has the overall responaikility for the estsblishmant and oversight of the
Company's risk managameant framework.
The Company's risk mansgsment policies are esiablished o identify &nd snalyse the risks faced by the
Company, o set appropnate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence o limits. Risk
manggement policies and systams are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Contpany, through |ls training and management standards and procedures, aims
to devalop a disciplined and constructive contrel envireniment in which all employees understand their roles
and ohbligations.
The Board of the Company oversest how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
managemeant policies and procedures, and raviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
refation 1o the risks faced by the Company. The Board is assisted In iis oversight role by Intemal Audit.
Internal Audit underakes bath regular and ad hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
reslits of which arae reporiad to the Board,

a) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party fo a financial instrument will cause a finanzial joss for the other
parly by falling to discharge an obligation. The Comparny attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit
exposures, limiting ransactions with specific counterparties and continually assassing the credil worthiness
of counterpanies. )

Cancentration of credit nsk arises when a number of counterparties are enaaged In similar business activities
or have similar econemic features thal would cause their abilities o meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economis, political or ether condifions. Concentration of credit risk indicates
the refative sensitivity of the Campany's performance to developmants atfecting a particular indusiry

Credit nsk primarly arises from trade debis, loans and advances, other receivables and balances with banks
To manage exposura to cradit risk in respect of trade debis, management performs cradit reviews taking inlo
sccount the customer's financial position, past experience and other relevant factors. Where considersd
necassary, advance payments are oblained frem cartain parties. The management has set an allowed cradit
period to raduce the credit risk, Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counler paries are banks with
reasonably high credil ratings. In respect of other counter parties, dus lo the Company’s long standing
business relationship with them, management does not expect non-gedormance by thege counter parties on
thelr ebligations to the Company.

Tne Company recognises ECL lor rade debts using the simplified approach ss explainad in nole 4.20. As
per the aforementioned approach, the (oss allowance was determined as follows:

181-385 More than 365 Total

1-180 days days duy
Rupees in thausand

September 30, 2024

Gross carmying valug 276 589 = 1,728 278,328
Lozs allowance 314 - 1.7 2.043
September 30, 2023

Gross camying valug 1215486 223 1728 1 |21 T!liﬁrEI
Loss allowarce 1,361 223 1,729 3,333
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ECL on other receivables is calculated using general approech (as explained in note 4.20), As at th_e
reparting date, Company envisages fhat defaull risk on account of non-realisation of other receivables is
minimal and thus based on historical trends adjusted to refisct current and forward looking information loss
sllowance has baen estimaled by the Company using a range of probable recovery pattern of related other
recelvables and assigning a time vaiue of money to same. As per the aforementioned approach, the loss
allowance for other receivables as at September 30, 2024 and Seplember 30, 2023 is defermined as follows.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
September 30,
Gross camylng valug 599,202 705,765
Loss allowance {905) (505

Bassd on past expenence, the mansgemeant beheves that no further impaimmant allowance is necessary in
respett of trade debis, loans end advanoes and other financial assets,

Mot impairment losses on financlal assets recognised in statement of profit or loss :

2024 2023

{Rupees in thousand)
Loss allowance ! (reversal) for doubtiul trade debls {1,290} 1,551
Loss allowance for export subsidy 149,737 85413
MNet impairmeant losses on financial asssts 148,447 56,884

The credit quality of Company's financial sssets have been sssessed below by reference to extemal credit
ratings of counterparties determined by the Pakisian Credit Rafing Agency Limited (PACRA) and JCR - VIS
Cradit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS). The counterparties for which extemal credit ratings were not
svailable have been aszessed by referénce to intermal credit ratings detsrmined based on their historical
information for any defallls in mesting obligations. '

2024 2023
Rating {Rupees in thousand)
Counterparties without external credit rating
Trade debls 276,285 1,274,104
Leans and advancas 699,202 705,785
Trade deposits and other recaivables 63,725 181,687
1039212 2711586
Counterparties with external credit rating
Bank balances
1+ 894,287 80o.215
A1 4,486 2,098

898,783 B11.313
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b) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk I5 the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financisl obligations as Lhey fail dus. The
Company's approach to manage liquidity is o ansure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liguidity to meet its Habiliies when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damags to the Company's reputation. Tha Company uses different methods
which assists it in manitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing s cash retum on invesimants. Typically
the Company ensures that |t has sufficient cash on demand to meat expected operational expenses for &
reasonable period, including the servicing of financial obligation, this excludes the patential Impact of extrems
Eitcumstances that cannol reasonably be predicted. such as natural disasters:

The {ables below analyses the contractual maturities of the Company's financial liabiiities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the statemeant of financial posiion date 1o the maturity date. The
amounts disciosed inthe table are undiscountad cash fows

Carrying Contractual Lessthan1 Batween1to5 5years and
amount cash fMlows Year Years above
(Rupegs in thousand)

As at September 30, 2024

Long tarm finance - secured 4,750,440 4,750,440 760,647 3,889,793 -
Loans from relatad partias 22008 220,078 83,857 126,222 =
Lease lizhilities 227 ©55 227,956 B4.845 143,019 -
Trade and ather payables 734,557 734,657 T34 557 . -
Unclaimed dividend 15,679 15,6739 15,873 . -
Shart term running finance 8,325,006 8,325,008 8.325.008 - =
As at September 30, 2023

Long term finance - securad 4680701 & BB, 70 1.415.988 3,261,715 -
Laans from related parties 208,326 208 326 T7.472 131,854 -
Lease ligbilities 225693 226593 85,279 140,314 -
Trade and other payables 1,002,885 1,002,885 1,002,885 - -
Unciaimed dividend 14,572 14,672 14,572 - -
Short term running finanoe 4,871,003 4871003 4871003 - -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial lisbilities have been determined on the basis of
Interest | mark-up rates effective @l the respeciive year-ends. The rates of |nterest / mark-up have been
disclosed in lhe respective notes to these linancial statemenls,

It is not expected that the cash flows Included in the maturity analysls could eccur significantly earlier or at
significantly different amounts.

c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changss in markel
interest rales or the markel price dus fo change in credit rating of the |ssuer or the instrument, change in
market sentiments, speculative sctivities, supply and damand of securities and liguidity in the markel. Tha
Company incurs financial lisbilties to manage its market nisk. All such activities ane carmied out with the
approval of the Board. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk, currency risk and market price risk.
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i} Currency risk

Currency fisk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial instrument will flucluate because
of changes In foreign exchange rates Currency risk arises mainly from fulure commercial transactions or
receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. Financial liabilities include Rs
44 112 thousand (2023: Financial assets include Re 872,202 thousand) which were subject to currency risk

2024 2023
Rupses per USD
Average rale 283.32 26803
Reporting dats rate 278.05 288 80
Sensitivity analysis

As al September 20, 2024, 17 the currency had weakenedistrengthened by 10% against US dollar with all
othier variables hald constant, profil before tex for the year would have been Rs 4,411 thousand (2023: Rs

87 220 thousand) lower! higher.

i} Interest rate risk

Interast rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will
fiuctuale because of changes in markel interest rates, The Company has no long term inlerest bearing
financial assats whose fair valug or fulure cash flows will fluctuste because of changes in marketl interest
rates. Financis! assats and labilities include balanoes of Rs 717,004 thousand (2023 Rs 723.431 thousand)
and Rs 12,835,857 thousand (2023 Rs 9,331 377 thousand) respectively, which are subject 1o intarest rale
nisk. Applicabla interest rates for financial assets and ligbilites have been indicated in respective notes.

Sensitivity analysis

As at September 30, 2024, if interast rales had been 1% higher/ lower with all other variables held constant,
profit afer tax for the year would have been Rs 86,754 thousand (2023; Rs 61,116 thousand) higher! lower,
mainly as a result of higher! lower interest incomal expense from these financial assets and liabiiiies,

i) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fiudtuats
bacause of changas in market prices (gther than those arsing from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whather those changes are cauged by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or s issuer, or
tactors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

A the year end the Company s nol exposad 1o price sk sincs there are no financial inshuments, whoss faif
value or future cash lows will luctuste because of changes in market prices.

40.1.2 Caplital risk managemeant

The Company is to maintain a strong capial base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidenca
and o sustain future development of the business. The Board monitors the return on capitah and the level of
dividend to ordinary shareholders In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust fhe amcunt of dividend paid to shareholders and / or issug new shares. There was no change to the
Campany's approach to the capllal management durng the year

The Company is not subjact to edernally iImposed capital requirements except for the maintenance of debt o
aquity and curent ratios Undar the financing agreements Accordingly, fhe liabiiitles under these financing
agreements have besn classified as per the repayment scheduls applicabla in respect of Lhe aforesaid
inanging Bgreaments
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The Company monilors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as nat detit divided by total capital
plus et debt. Mat debt is calculated as amounts payable by the Company less cash and bank balancas
Capital signifies equity as shown in the statement of financial pesition plus net debt The Company's gearing

ratlo is as follows:

2024 2023

[Rupees in thousand}
Long term finances - securéd 4,750,440 4 680,701
Loans from relaled parties - secured 220,079 208,326
L=ase liabiites 227,956 225,583
Total debl 5,198,475 5,115,620
lasued, subscribed and paid-up capital 286,920 486,920
Capital ressrve 327,000 3F7.000
Raverius reseres 3,560,098 5.775.450
Total capital 4,164,016 6,380,370
Capital and ret debt 9,362,491 11,504,990

Gearing ratio 56% 447,

Eair value of financial assets and liabilities

The earmying values of financial asseis and labilties approximate their fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Company was valued by independent valuer lo determine the
fair value of property, plant and equipment as at September 30, 2024 The revaluation surplus on proparty,
plant and equipmenl was credited 16 other comprehensive income and ks shown a5 'surplus on revaiuaton of
property, plant and aquipment’. These are classified as level 2 fair values. Further, the fair value less cost 10
sell of investment in WFL and |ts propery, plant and egiupment was determinad by an axternal valuation
axpert 8s at September 30, 2024 using cost approach. For valuation, the current market price or depreciated
replacement cost method was used, whersby, current purchase / construction cost of similar items In similar
locations was adjusted using sullatle depreciation rates to arrive at present market valug. These are also
classified ae laval 2 fair values For all other assets and fiabilities of WFL, the camying values of asseis and
liabliities approximate their fair value, Thesa are classified as level 3 fair values. The different levels have
bean defined as follows

Level t

Quoted pricas (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets/ labiiities.

Level 2

Inputs other than quoted pricas Includsd within level 1 that are observable for the assel or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indireatly (that |s, derived from prices).

- Level 3

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
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43. Transactions and balances with related parties

431 The Premier Sugar Mills & Distillery Company Limited holds 47.93% (2023; 47.93%) shares of the
Company at the year end. Therefore, all subsidiaries and associated undertakings of The Premier
Sugar Mills & Distillery Co, Limited are related parties of the Company. The related parties also
comprise of directors, majar shareholders, key management personnel, entiies over which the
directors are able to exercise significant influence on financial and operating policy decisions and
employees’ funds. Amount due from and due lo these undertakings are shown under receivables
and payables. The remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Exscutives is disclosed in note 44
to the statement of financial statements

2024 2023
(Rupees In thousand)

The Premier Sugar Mills and Distillery Company Limited

Purchases = 773,026
Sales - 2428
lssuance of slore iterns 9,208 25,685
Amount paid against purchase of building 50,885 -

Expenses paid by the Company 60,287 78,242
Expenses paid on behalf of the Company 5438 7,025
BDividend paid 68,755 -

Rent income 115 118

Syntronics Limited

Purchass of store items 11,993 163,068
Dividend paid 17,952 -

Syntron Limited
Purchase of store items 220,513 94,760

Aziak Enterprises (Private) Limited

Services on behalf of the Company 48,780 38,018
Mark-up charged to the Company 19,507 17,605
Expenses paid on behaif of the Company 3,385 1,931
Dividend paid 7.487 -
Phipson & Company Pakistan (Private) Limited

Expenses pald on behalf of the Company 32 413
Dividend paid 1,538 &

Arpak International Investments Limited
Markup charged to the Company 5,979 5,668
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Premier Board Mills Limited
Markup charged to the Company
Whole Foods (Pvt.) Limited

Expenses paid by the Company
Funds transferred
Markup charged by the Company

Ultimate Whale Foods (Private) Limited

Expenses paid by the Campany
Expenses paid on behalf of the Company
Invesiment in subsidiary company

Loan to subsidiary company

Markup charged by the Company

Premier Grain Ethanol Limited
Expenses paid by the Company
Provident fund

Confribution to provident fund
Directors

Dividands paid

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

8,961 11,285
8,253 10,034
61,000 &0,000
111,360 :
372,035 27429
2 2,252
525,000 300,000
150,000 500,000
109,344 25,486
3,090 3
38,884 32,267
28,721 -

Fallowing are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have

arrangement/agreement in place.

SrNo Company Name

P =T YR - O T S

1"
12
13

The Premier Sugar Mills and Distillery Company
Limited

Premier Board Mills Limited

Aziak Enterprises {Private) Limited

Arpak International Investments Limited
Phipson & Company Pakistan (Private) Limited
Syntranics Limited

The Frontier Sugar Mills & Distillery Limited
Syntron Limited

Premier Construction and Hausing Limited
Earth Securitles (Privale) Limited

Whole Foods (Private) Limited

Ultimate Whole Foods (Private) Limited
Framiar Grains Ethanal Limited

Basls of ﬁggmugfate Yo
R Shareholding
Holding Company 47 93%
Common directorship -
Commeon directorship 515%
Common directorship -
Commaon Holding Company 1.07%
Comman directarship 12.51%
Comman directorship -
Common directorship .
Comman directorship -
Camman directorship -
Subsidiary Company 100.00%
Subsidiary Company 84.00%
Subsidiary Company 76.92%
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Remuneration of Chief Executive, Direclors and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits, to
Exacutive Directars and Chief Executives of the Company is as follows:

Chief Executive Dirsctors Executives
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
{Rupees in thousand)
Managerial remuneration 34,914 32.258 34914 38,258 e7,235 69,648
Bonus - 7.580 - 7.580 - 44,882
Housing and utilities 6,624 4,044 6,136 1,851 44,823 46,432
Company's contribution - . - - 3,545 4,214
to provident fund
Medical 4,781 4,348 - 136 763 az27
Other expenses 3,073 13628 38,027 20,042 - -
49,392 51,8686 78,077 87877 _ 116,366 186,003

Mumber of persans o 1 1 2 2 26 29

In addition to above, the Chisf Executive and Executives were provided with the Company maintained
cars for official and personal use. All the Executives based at factory compounds are also provided with
free housing with the Company's generated electricity, telephone and certain household items in the
residential colony within the factary compound.

Mr. Abbas Sarfraz Khan, Director of the Company, holds office of profit for performing extra services, for
which approval was obtained vide Extraordinary general meeting dated June 21, 2018 under section 171
of the Companigs Act, 2017, His remunaration includes monthly salary, bonus as per company policy,
company maintained vehicle and reimbursement of all travelling and medical expenses. The Board of
Dirsctors are also entitied to reimbursemant of all travelling, telephone and medical expenses, as
approved vide 31st annual general meeting of members dated March 28, 2018, The remuneration of
Diractors was increased vide Extraordinary General Mesting (EOGM) dated August 25, 2023

DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO SHARIAH COMPLIANCE

Below Is the disclosure as required by the paragraph VIl of the 4th Schedule lo the Companles Act, 2017
determined by Shariah expert appointed by the Company:

MNote 2024 2023
Disclosures in relation to the Statement of Financial {Rupees in thousand)
Position - Liability Side
Financing obtained as per Islamic mode
Long tem 19 334,046 895,493
Short term 24 1,884,652 1,217,884
Lease financing 21 8,828 18,286
Interest or mark-up accrued on any conventional loan or 19,20 & 24 450,151 483,988
advance
Disclosures relation to the Statement of Financial
Position — Asset Side
Shert-tarm Shiariah complianl Investments - -
Long-term Sharigh caompliant Invesiments 1,652,823 638,357
Sharigh-compliant bank deposits, bank balances, and TDRs 18 164,817 84,571

%
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Note 2024 2023
Disclosures in relation to the Statement of profit or loss (Rupees in thousand)
and other comprehensive income
Revenue eamned frem a Shariah-compliant business segment 27 & 28 25,049,780 18,346,403
Break-up of late payments or liquidated damages - .
Gain or loss or dividend samed on Shariah compliant - -
investmants or share of profit from Shariah-compliant
ASE0CIFESs
Profit earned from Shariah-compliant bank deposits, bank
balances, or TDRs 32 3 1
Exchange (loss)/ gain earned from actual currency 34 (37,184) (137.403)
Exchange gains sarned using conventional derivative - -
financial instruments
Profit paid on Islamic mode of financing 34 703,534 581,358
Total Interest eamed an any conventional loan or advancs 32 315,360 B7.035
Source and detailed breakup of other income:
Sharieh compliant income!
Profit earned from Shariah-vompliant bank deposits 32 3 1
bank balences, or TORs
Sale of press mud - nat of sales tax 32 7,218 5,879
Sale of fusel oil - net of sales tax 32 3,101 3.378
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assats 32 15,490 8446
Gain on derscognitian of right of use assets 32 - -
Scrap sales - nel of expenses 32 52,818 B83,372
Rental income 32 115 115
Non-Sharlah compliant income:
Mark-up earnad on bank deposits, bank balances, or TDRs a2 94,656 41,549
Mark-up earmed on loan to a related party 32 220,704 25486
Incame against Insurance claim 32 - 119,462

Other Disclosure

Relationship with Sharish-compliant financial institutions, including banks, takaful cperators and their

windows:

- Meazan Bank Limited

- Al Baraka Bank Limited

- MCB Islamic Limited

- Bank Islami Limited

- Dubal Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

- National Bank of Pakistan - Altemaad |slamic Banking
- Soner Mustageem Islamic Banking

General
Geographical location and addresses of business units
The business units of the Company Include the following:
Business Units

Sugar - unit |

Sugar - unit Il
Ethaneo! fuel plant

e

Location

University Road, Dera Ismail Khan, KPK

Ramak, Dera Ismall Khan, KPK
Ramak, Dera lsmail Khan, KPK
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Capacity and production
2024 2023
Sugar plants
Rated crushing capacity (Metric Ton / day) 18,000 18,000
On the basis of average number of 99 days (2023: 105 days) 1,782,000 1,880,000
Actual cane crushed (Mstric Ton) 1,726,610 1,863,160
Sugar produced (Metric Ton) 171,591 211,871
Ethanol fuel plant
Rated production capacity (Litres / day) 125,000 125,000
On the basis of average number of 347 days (2023: 343 days) (Litres) 43,375,000 42 B75,000
Actual proeduction (Litres) 43,053,990 42 374,200
Days worked Days
Sugar - unit | 89 108
Sugar - unit Il 98 103
Ethanal fuel plant 347 343

Sugar division performed at more than Installed capacity lo the extent of avallability of sugar cane,
Capacily of ethanal units were also over-utilized on certain days.

2024 2023
Number of employees
Number of employees at September 30
Parmanent 1,041 1,008
Contractual 1,037 1,047
2,078 2.055

_—t

Average number of employees for the year

Permanant 1,035 1,080
Contractual 1,387 1,518
2,432 2 608

Provident Fund

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 212 of
the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formuiated for the purpose.

Comesponding Figures

Corresponding figures for the prior period have been rearranged and reclassified where nacessary for
more approriate presentation of transactions and balances for the purpose of comparison, Refer nole
416 for reclassification related to adoption of ICAF Guidance on accounting of minimum taxes and final
taxes. There are no other material reclassifications / rearrangements.

Rounding off

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees uniess otherwise stated.

bt
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Date of authorisation for issue
These financial statements have bean authorised for issue by the Board of Direclors of the Company on
, 2025
8}
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Chief Fi ar === ¥CL "':ihrl'ector Director

In ther nbsence of Clilel Exsgutive, thess Financlal Stotemeants have basn sagned by 'we Directars along with Chief Finunee| Offices




CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024



CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
I AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
2024 2023
Restated
Mote {Rupees in thousand)
l NON CURRENT ASSETS
Praperty, plant and agquipmenl 7 25,883,313 23.783.471
Right-of-use assels B 316,081 322672
l Long term deposits 15,343 15,084
Daferrad tax agsets 2111 182100 10,100
26,216,837 24,131,327
I CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares ] 784,565 B42,018
Stock-in-trade 10 4,751 684 5,378,443
Trade debts 11 440419 1,214,104
' Loans and sdvances 12 1,186,255 1,022 562
Trade deposits and other receivables 13 114,033 226,809
Incamea tax refundable 14 440,613 181.852
Prepsid assal - lavy 2219 <
I Cash and bank baiances 15 1,045,138 B22 G656
B, 753 534 b,688, 545
TOTAL ASSETS 34.885671 33.819.872
l SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital 16 500,000 300,000
l Issued, subseribed and paid-up capital 18 286,620 286 $20
Gensral resane 18.8 327,000 327,000
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 17 9,575,365 8,382,850
Unagpropriated profits 2,308 017 E£.428,972
l Equity attributable to owners of the parant 12,588 202 14,423 B42
Mon=-controlling interests 36 210,190 181,631
l _ 12,798,352 14,805,473
HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term finances - secured 18 5,426,839 4 673,542
l Loans fram related parfies - securad 19 148,097 163,064
Lease finbllities 20 159,878 157,894
Deterred liabilities
~Deferred laxation 3,174 B7S 3,620,702
I -Pravision for gratuity 22,132 18,865
-Deferrad governmeant gram 48,6895 76,2680
21 3,245 508 3,716,847
l 8,981,421 5,711,547
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 22 1,875,443 3,600,977
Urizlaimed dividend 15,678 14,572
I Shiorl term borrowings - secured 23 8514850 4,004 853
Current maturity af non-curran| liabiities 24 1.408.414 1,778,601
Provision for tax |avies - net 390372 215,848
I 13,206,858 10,502,852
TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,187 279 18,214,309
25
l 34,685 671 33 818,572
l tas 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financlal siatemanis
/"'" S —
X
I - -T'E eu:utlve DlrECtOf Director
I In the absence of Chief Executive, thase Financial Statemants have been signed by two Directors slong with Ghiel Financial Oific.r




CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
Restated
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Gross sales 26 42 551,507 29,371,617
Sales tax, other government levies and discounts 27 (4,560,742) (2,995,900)
Sales - net 37,990,765 26,375,717
Cost of sales 28 (36,113,659) (20,188,453)
Gross profit 1877,108 6,167,264
Selling and distribution expenses 29 {938,248) (868,016)
Administrative and general expenses 30 (1,500,244) (1,140,965)
Net loss allowance on frade debts and

subsidy receivable from GoP 40.1.1 (179,828) (66,964)
Other income 3 194,383 242,202
Cther expsnses 32 (16,388) {109,380)
Operating (loss) / profit (563,220) 4,246,161
Finance cost a3 (4,596,283) (2,783,013)
(Loss) f profit before revenue tax and income tax (5,158,513) 1,463,148
Minimum tax - levy 34 (404,661) (300,825)
(Loss) | profit before income tax (5,564,174) 1,162,323
Taxation a5 1,830,800 406,759
{Loss) / profit for the year (3 633.374) 1,669,082
Attributable to:

Owners of the parent company (3,472,340) 1,584,041

Non-controlling interest (161,034) (14.959)

3633.374) _ 1,569.082

(Loss) / earnings per share attributable to owners of parant
company - basic and diluted (Rs) " Th (121.02} 55.21

Wﬂaed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements,

— f;- ._;A_JL—-—
Director

: = a—
- o ':Il% ﬂGUﬂvﬂ[JDIFEEtDT

In the absence nFEhief Exgcuiiva, hesa Financiat Statements havie besn signed by two Direciors alarig with Ghief Financal OMcer



CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note
(Loss) / profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss) / income
ltems that will not be classified to profit or loss;
21.25

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on staff retirement benefit plans
Less Deferred tax on remeasurement (loss) / gain on staff
retirement benafit plans

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and aquipment
Less: Deferred tax on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and

aquipment

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

Aftributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interest

The annexad notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

&%@%

2024

2023
Restated

{(Rupess in thousand)

(3633,374) 1,569,082
2,245 (2,856)
(876) 1,036
1,389 (1620)
3,161,518 | [ 2,693,463
(1,304,150)| | (877,217)
1857,368 1,816,246
(1,774,637) 3,383,708
(1680,331) 3,398,667
(24,308) _ (14,959)
(1.774.637) 3,383,708

- g P
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Chief Finahp%%ﬁﬁer < = Ehr!af' Executive' Director
TA
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Director

In te abzance of Chigl Exsoulve, these Financlsl Statements huve Yoan signed by two Directors aleng with Cnief Financiasl Officsr,




CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
2024 2023
Restated
Motz {Rupees in theusand]
Cash flow from operating activities
{Loss) / profit for the year - befors tmation (5.564,174) 11062323
Adjustmeants for non-gash ilsms:
Dispraciation - Propery, plant and eguipmant 76 1.851,857 1,381,805
Depreciation - Right of use asset a1 79,873 T6,BE3
Galn on disposal of operating fced asseis 3 (15,728) (8.446)
Faturn on deposit sccounts 3 (9,231) {10,237)
Mark-up samed on term depositary receipls 1] (A&, 7548) 131,313
Finanes cost & X ] 4,586,243 2783013
Impalrmant lazs | (reversal) for doubiful trade debis 4011 17 8673 1.561
Provision for gratuity 2122 8835 5,630
VWirite down of stack in irade to net reslisable valua 10 284 742 -
Impairment loss for expor subsidy 131 148 73T 65413
Reversal of provisian for sbsolets ilems a1 [15,595) iB,713)
Minirnum tax - lavy 4 404 61 300,825
1,700.230 5729743
Changes in working capital
Dacreasa { (Inorease) in
slofes and sparas 73,040 (325,678)
stock-in-trade: 342,007 (1,958.574)

718,822 (1,308,801)

frade debis
{162,583) 350.036

leans and advances
l lamg term losn and deposgiia (258) e
frade deposits and other recelvablas (35,061) {13.345)
Incressa | [decrease) In trade and othar payables (1,824 538) 2 308304
I (e, 733) (a8 268)
1,008,557 4 741,475
{483 167} {257,582)

Incame tax and |evies pakd

Gratulty paid 2121 {5,380) {1.180)
Mot cash generated from operating activities 510,030 4 483703
Cash flow from fnvesting activities

Puichasze of property, plant 2nd squipmant {503,346) 12,830, 588)

Sale proceads from disposal of fived aszais 52 455 28,020

Retum on bank deposits recelvad 3 9,231 10,237

Mark-up on term depasitory recenms ) 88,758 31,313
Net cash usad In investing activities (452.802) {2.850.018)
Cash flow from financing activities

Long term financa - nat 380 108 1,128.804

Shart term borrowings obtained § (repaid) 3,926,166 (178,105)

Bank batances under lign - {450,000}

Shira subseribed by nmon-contmling intensst 111,316 =

Loan repaid |o relaied party (15,618) {31,235)

Lease obligation repaid 20 (160, 888) (160,312)

Dividends paid {142,353 (35)

Finance cost paid {4,544 703 12314, BB1)

Net eash used In financing activities (437.282)  (1,955,954)
Wet decrease In cash and éash equlvalents (380.254) [273.278)
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of tha year (2,723,034) (2248 755
Cash and cash squivalents - &t end of the year (3.103.288) _[2.723.034)

Cash and cash gquivalents comprised of:
Gash and balances 15 585 138 358,558
Shon term bofrowings - secured 23 {3,688,424)  [3,091.820)

{3,105, 268] {2.723.024)

1 1o 47 form an integral part of thasa financial statements
Bl — r _L— ) ke ——

o -__;:'5 H-Wrectm Director

&ghﬂm annexad

l In the absence of Chief Executive, thess Financial Statements Suve bean signed by twe Rirachors along with Chie! Financel Offecr
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CHASHMA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

1.2

(a)

(b)

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

Chashma Sugar Mills Limited (the Holding Company)

Chashma Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) was Incorporated in Pakistan on May 05, 1988 as a
public limited company, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repsaled upon enactment of the
Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017) and commanced its commercial production from October 01,
1882 The Company has its shares quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company
is principally engaged in manufacturing, production, processing, compounding, preparation and sala
of sugar, othar allied compound, intermediates and allied products. The Campany is 8 subsidiary of
Tha Premier Sugar Mills and Distillery Company Limitad. The head office of the Company is situated
at King's Arcade, 20-A, Markaz F-7. Islamabad and its manufacturing facilities are located at Dera

|smail Khan, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

Subsidiary Companies

Whale Foods (Private) Limited

Whale Foods (Private) Limited (WFPL) - 100% owned subsidiary of the Company was incorporated
in Bakistan as a Private Limited Company under Companies Act, 2017 on October 26, 2017, The
principal activity of WFPL is to selup, manage, supervise and control the storage facilities far

agricultural produce.

WFPL is yet to commence its commercial operations. Although WFPL had completed the
construction of storage facilities yet the concurrance lo proceed further is 1o be obtained from the
Punjab Foed Department (PFD) who has raised certain observations, The management has carefully
sssessed @ number of factors involving the commencement of the business operations along the
management's intent to address issues pending for redressal with PFD and has also evaluated other
cemmercial options for possible utilization of storage facility in case the matlers with PFD are not

amicably resolvad.

Although WFPL has posted loss for the year but the managsment is confident that as soon &s the
operations commence, the losses would be recoupec and financial pasition would Improve. In
addition, the management of WFPL also belisves that with the continued support of the Holding
Company, It would be able to commence and sustain its business. Please rafer note 7.1.1 fo the

consolidated financial statements also.

Ultimate Whole Foods (Private) Limited

Ultimate VWhole Foods (Private) Limited (“the Subsidiary Company”/ UWFL) was incorporated in
Pakistan as a Private Limited Comparny under Companies Act, 2017 on May 17, 2021. The objective
of UWEPL is to set up mills for milling wheat, gram, other grains and other allied products and by-
products from flours. The operations of the UWFPL started from Oetaber 7, 2023. During the year,
the percentage hoiding of the Holding Company has increased from 72% to B4% of UWFL

bt
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(c) Premler Grain Ethanol Limited

Premiar Grain Ethanol Limited ("the Subsidiary Company"/ PGEL) was incorporatad in Pakistan on
April 17, 2024 as a public limited company, under the Companies Act, 2017, The regislered office of
PGEL is situated at King's Arcade, 20-A, Markaz F-7, Islamabad, The prineipal line of business of
the PGEL included manufacturing, production and sale of various grades of Ethanol. During the year,
the Holding Company subscribad 50,000,000 ardinary shares of Rs 10 each aggregating fo Rs. 500
million out of total proposed share capital of 65,002,000 ordinary shares of Re 10 mach aggregating
Rs. 850 million representing 76.92% subscription amount. Howsver, the subscription money was not
paid. PGEL did not commence operations and subsaguent lo the year end, the Board of Directors of
PGEL passad & resolution for winding up of the Company on Janusry 14, 2025 due to financial and
operational difficulties in the business, The same has bean communicated o Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) by PGEL. The managament basad on iegal opinion
obtained from it's legal advisor are of the view that CSML has confrol over the composgition of board
of directors of PGEL, accordingly it is & subsidiary of CSML for the purpose of consolidated financial
statemants. The amounts have been recognised accordingly In these consolidated financial

statemants.

These consolidated financial statements includs financial statements of Chashma Sugar fills Limitad
and its subsidiaries.

These consalidated financial statements have been prepared from the information available in the
audited separate financial statements of the Holding Company and UWFPL for the year ended
September 30, 2024 and the unaudited financial statements of WFPL and PGEL as at September
a0 2024 and for the period then ended. Latest available audited financial statements of WFPL and

PGEL are for the year ended June 30, 2024,

For the purpose of these consalidated financial statemeants, Chashma Sugar Mills Limited and its
subsidiaries ars referred to as the Group.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporing standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reparting standards applicable In

Pakistan comprisa of.

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) Issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as nolified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and direclives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companiss Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisians of and directives (ssued under the Companies Act. 2017 hava bean

followed.
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Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncemsnts

Standards, amendments and Interpretations lo existing standards that are not yet effective

and have not been early adopted by the Group:
Effective date (annual
reparling perods
beginning on or after)

January 1, 2024 &
January 1, 2028
January 1, 2028

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosuras

IFES 8  Financial Instruments
IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2024
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements January 1, 2027
IERS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures Jahuary 1, 2027
45 1 Prasentation of Financial Statemants January 1, 2024
IAS 7 Statemenl of cash fiows January 1, 2024

The management anticipates that adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations
in future periods, will have no matarial impact on the financial statemeants other than in presenlation /

disclosuras.

Furthar, the following standards and interpretations have been issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), which are yet to be notified or has been waived off by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of international Financial Reparting Standards
IERS 18 Presentation and Disclosure In Financial Statements
IERS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

IERIC 12 Servioe concession arangemsnis
Material Accounting Policy Information

Basis of preparation

The Group adopted disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to |AS 1 and |FRS practice
statements 2) from Octaber 1, 2023. Although amendments did not result n any changes to the
acoounting policies themselves, they impact the accounting poficy information dlisclosed in the

financial statemenis.

The amendments require disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting policles. The
amandments also provide the guidance on the application of matariality to disclosurs of accounting
policies, assisting entities to provide usaful entity specific acsounting policy Information that user
nead ta understand other information in the financial stataments.

The material accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historica! cost convention except as
otherwise stated in respective accounting policies notes.

e
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Subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voling rights. The
avistence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considared when assessing whether the Company conirols another antity, The Company also
asssssas axistence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the vofing power bul is able
to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-faclo control, De-faclo control may anse
in circumetances where the size of the Company's voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of other shareholdars give the Company the power lo govern the financial and operating

palicies, eic.

Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the dats on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsalidated from the date that control ceases.

All significant inter-company lransactions, balances, Income and sxpensas on transactions betwean
group COMparies are eliminated. Profits and lossas resulling from inter-company transactions that
are racognized in assels are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changead
whers necessary ta ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The raporting period end of subsidiaries Is June 30, 2024, The subsidiaries financial statemants used
for preparation of consalidated financial statements comespands with period of the Group

The significant accounting policies adoptad in the preparation of these finaricizl slaterments are set-
out below. These policiss have been consistently appliad to all the years presentad, unless otherwise

stated.

Functional and presentation currancy

items included in the financial statemeants ara mieasured using the currency of the primary scanomic
anvironmant in which the Group oparates. These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupsas,

which Is the Group's functional currency
Property, plant and equipmant

Owned assets

Operating fixed assets except frashold [and, lzasshald land, bullding and roads, plant & machinery
and electric installations are stated al cost less accumulated depraciation and impaimment losses.
Freshold land is stated at revalued amount, where as laasehold land, building & roads, plant &
machinery and electric installations are stated at revalued amount less accumutated depreciation and
impairment losses. Revaluation Is carried out by an independent expert. Tha Company carries out
ravaluations periodicslly, considering the change i sircumstances and assumptions from latest
ravaluation. Capital work-in-progress and major spars parts and standby egquipment are stated al
cost The surpius on revaluation ta the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net of deferred
tax) Is transferred to unappropriated prefits. Cost in ralation to cerain plant and machinery items
include borrowing cost ralated to the financing of major projects during construction phase.

Subsequent cost, If reliably measurable, ara included in the assat's carrying amount or recognized as
separate amount as appropriate, only when it is probable that future ecenomic benefits associatad
with the cost will fiew to the Group. The carrying amount of any replaced parts as well as other repair
and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in which they ara

incurrad.
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Inarease in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of freshold land, leasehold land, building and
roads, plant & machinery and sleclric Instaliations are recognized in other comprehensive ineoma
and accumnulated in sharehoiders’ equity under the heading surplus on revaluation of proparty, plant
and squipment. To the extent that the increase reversss a decrease previously recognized In
statement of profit o logs, the increase |s first recognizad In statement of profit or loss, Dacreases
that reverse previous increases of the same assel are first recognized in other comprehensive
income lo the extent of the remaining surplus attributable 1o the asset; all other decreases are

charged to statement of profil or loss.

Dapreclation on operating assets is calculated using the reducing balance methed 1o gllocate thair
cost over thair estimated useful life at the rates specified in nate 7.1, Depreciation for factory assals
is charged lo cost of sales while depreciation for other property, plant and equipment is charged to
administrative and general expenses and selling and distribution expenses on actual usage basis.

Depreciation on additions o property, plant and equipment is charged from the dale azsel s
avallable for Intended use iill date of disposal.

The gain or 1oss on disposal of an asset, calculated as differenca between the sale proceed and
carrying amount of the assat, is recognized as other income in statement of profit or loss for the year.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress Is statsd at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consisls of
expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of operating fixes assets, capital stores and
intangibles assets in the course of their acquisition, construstion and installation.

Right-of-use assets

The Group fecognizes right-of-use assels =1 the commencement date of the lease |2 the date the
underlying assels are available for use. Right-of-use assels are measurad at cost |ess any
accumulated depraciation and fmpaimment losses and adjusted for any remsasurement uf lease
ligbllities excapt plant and machinary for which the Group has electad to use the revaluation modal.

The cost comprising the following:

- {he amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities;

- any lease payments made at or before the commencament date less any lease incentives
recalved any initial direct costs; and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease
tarm on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain 1o exaraise a purchase option, the
right-of-use assets are depreciated over the underlying assets' usaful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets thal have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject lo amortization of
depreciation and are tested annually for impairmant. Assets that are subject to dapreciation/
amortization are reviswed for impairment at each statemeant of financial poslfion date or whenaver
evants or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceads s
racoverable amount. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the exient (hat assets
carrying amount does not sxcead the carrying amount that would have been determinad, net of
depreciation or amartization, if no impairment loss has been recognized. An fmpalrmant loss or
ravarsal of impairmant loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account.

W
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Stores and spares

Stores and spares are stated at cost less allowance for obsclets and slow moving items, Cost is
detarmined using weighted average method, ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoica
value and other related charges Incurrad up to the dats of the statement of financial position date

Stock-in-trade

Sugar and Ethanol are statad at the lowsr of cest and net realizable value. Cost is determined using
the average manufacturing cost method. The cosl of finished goods and work in procéss comprises
raw materisis, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads.

Purchased molasses s stated at lower of cost and net realizable value whersas cost of own
produced molasses, a by product, is detarmined on the basis of avarage cos! of molasses purchased

friom third pariies.

The specific costs of bagasse, 3 by-product cannat be detarmined. Accordingly, it is staled at net
reglizables value (NRV).

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less cost of
completion and costs necessary to be incurred to make the sala,

Trade debts

Trade debts are recagnized and carried st the original invoice amounts. being the fair value, less an
aliowance for uncollectible amounts, If any. As explained in note 4,19 to these financial statements,
for measuremant of loss allowance for frade debts, the Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to

messure the expected credit lossss

Cash and cash egulvalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of siatemesnt of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with banks in current, deposit and saving accounts, bank
overdrafts and cash / running finance. Bank overdrafls are shown in current liabllities on Lhe

statement of financial position.

Borrowings and borrowing cost

Borrowings are recognized mitially at fair valua, net of transaction costs Incurred, Borrowings afe
subsequently carried al amortized cost. any difference between the procesds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recegnized in the statement of profit or loss account over the
period af the borrowings using the effective interest mathod.

Borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
quallfying assel are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged

to statemant of profit or loss account.
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Leasa liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at

the commeancement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group usss [ts

incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Lease payments in the measurement of the lease lizbllity comprise the following:

a) fixed payments, including in-substance fined payments;
b) wvarizble lgase payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or

rate a5 at the commencement date;

¢} amounts expectad lo be payable undera residual value guarantes; and

d) the exerciss price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain 1o exercise,
lease payments In an optional renawal period if the Group i reasonably certain to sxerciss an
axterision option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasanably

cerain not to terminale sarly.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Il is remeasured
when there is a changs in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is
a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a rasidual value
guarantes, or if the Group changes its assassment of whether it will exarcise a purchase, extensian

or termination cption.

Trade and ather payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable including payable to retated parties are carmed at cost,
which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods andlor services recaived,

whiather or not billed to the Group.

Provislons

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, when it s probable that an outilow of resources embodying aconomic benafits will be
required o sattle the abligation and a reliable gstimate of the obligation can be made. Provisiens are
reviewad al esch staternent of financial position date and adjusted lo refiect the cumant besl
estimate.
Taxation

Incame tax comprises of current and deferred tax.

() Current

Pravision for currant taxation s based on taxable income for the year determinad in accordance
with prevailing law for taxation on income at the anplicable rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates, if any. Income fax expanse 13 recognized in profit or loss
axcepl to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly In equity or in other

comprehensive income.

The Group recognises provision for Income tex based on best current estimates. However,
whare the final tax outcoma is differant from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
difierences impact the income tax provision in the period In which such determination is mads.

e
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The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities. Instances where the Group's views differ from the income fax department at the
assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on itams of materal nature ks In
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

{il) Deferred

Defarrad income tax is recognized using the statemeant of fimancial position liability method on all
temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assels and liabilitiss and their carrying
amounts appearing in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Daferred tax assel s recognized for all deductible temparary
differences o the extent that it is probable thal deductible temparary diffsrences will raverse in
the future and taxable income will be avalisble against which the deductible tsmparary

differances, unused tax losses and tax credit can e utilizad.

Defarred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rate that is expected lo apply to the paricd
when the assat is realized or the liabillty is settied, based on tax rates that have been znacted
Defarrad tax is charged or credited 1o income except in the case of tems credited or charged fo

equity in which case it Is included in equity.
Accounting guidance issued by ICAP an Accounting for minimum taxes and final taxes

institute of Chartered Accauntant of Pakistan {/CAP) issued a guidance "Application guidance an
accounting for minimum taxes and final taxes" through Clreutar No. 07/2024 dated May 15, 2024 In
light of the said guidance, as the minimum taxes snd final taxes are not calculated on the 'taxable
profit' as dsfined in 1AS 12 but calculatad on maver ar other basis (as per relevant sections of the
Income Tax Ordinence, 2001 (ITQ, 2001)), accerdingly minimum laxes and final taxes should be
accounted for under IAS 37/IFRIC 21 as Jevies [though these are charged under tax law] and not
under IAS 12 as income taxes. Based on the aforesald guidance, the minimum taxes under ITO 2001
ara hybrid taxes which comprise of a component within the scope of IAS 12 (Income Tax) and a

component within the scope of [FRIC 21 (Levies).

The aforesaid guidance has been applied retrospectively by the Group and the comparativie
information has been restatad, which has not affectad cument period or prior years' nel sales, profit
after taxes and levies, squity and cash flows. Impact as of Octaber 1, 2022 is not materal to the
financial statements. In accordance with requirements of 185 1 "Pressntation of Financial
Statements”, the balances as al September 30, 2023 have been restated and third statement of
financlal position as of October 1, 2022 has not been prasented since the impact on the statement of
financial position as at October 1, 2022 is not material to these financial statements. The effects of

the restatement are summarized in note 4.15.1 below;

The following table present the impacts of réstatements as explained in nole 4.15 above:

Balances before
restatement
{Rupees in thousand)

Impact  Restated

statement of financial position
September 30, 2023

Currant assels
income tax refundable 59,730 122,222 181,952

Currant liabilities
Pravision for taxation - net
Provision for tax levies - net

93,627 (83,627) -
- 215849 215,848
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Statement of profit or loss

In the statement of profit or lass, the minimum tax and final tax previously presented as income taxss
have now been reclassified as "final taxes - lewy" under IAS 37 / IFRIC 21 amounting to Rs 300,825

thousand for the year ended Ssptember 30, 2023,

Revenue recognition

The Campany recognises revenue at point of time when control of product is transferred lo customer
/ buyer, Control is considersd fo be transferred in case of local sales when the finished goods are
directly uplifted by customer / buyer fram the warehouse or when |l is delivered by tha Company at
customer premises or delivered as per instructions of the customer as the case maybe. In case of
export sales, control is considered fo be transfarred when the finishad goods are shipped lo the

custamer.

Revanue is measured based on the consideration agresd with the customer and excludes sales tax /
government levies and amounts collected on behalf of third partes. Revenug is presented net of

discounts, rebates and refurns.

No elament of financing is deemed presant as the sales are mada eithar at advance or with a credit
term of upto 30 days, which is consistent with the market prica.

Developmeant expenditure

Experiditure Incurred on development of sugar cane is expensed in the year of incurrenca

Operating segmants

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the interal reporting provided fo the
chisf operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who s respansible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segmeants, has been identified as the Board
of Dirsclors that makes strategic decisions, The management has determined that the Group has two

reportable segments i.e. sugar and sthanaol,

Financial instrumeants.

Financial mstruments are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Group becomes
a party o the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derscognized st the
time when the Group losses control of the confractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All
financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished ihat is, whan the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on de-
recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities are laken to the stalement of profil or loss
account
a) Financial assets

Classification
The Group classifies ts financial asssts in the following maasurement calegories:

I} amortizad cost whers the effactive inlerast rate method will apply;

li}y fair value through profit or loss,
i} fair value threugh other comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the Group's business model lor managing the financial asssts
and the contrasiual lerms of the cash flows,

(e
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For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be racarded in statement of profit or
loss or other comprehensive income. For investment in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whethar the Group has made an irevocable slection at the time of initial
recognition to ascount for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive Income
(FVOCI), The Group reciassifiss debt investments when and only when its business madel for

managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-data, the date on
which the Group commit to purchase or sell the asset Further financial assels are derecognizad
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurament

At initial recognition, the Group measure a financial asset al His fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair valus through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
stiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transachion costs of financial assets carried at

FVTFL are expensed In stalement of profit or joss,

Dabt instruments

Subsaquent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business modsl for
managing the assat and the cash flow characteristics of ihe assal. There are three measurement
categories info which the Group can classifies its dabt instruments:

i) Amortized cost

Asssts that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the contractual terms of the
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal represent solely payments of
principal and Interest, are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assels
is Included in finance Income using the effective interest rats method. Any gain or foss arising on
derseoanition is recognized directly in statement of profit or loss account and presented in other
income together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment Insses are presented as
separate line item in the statemnent of profit or loss account,

ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt securities, where the contractual cashflows are solely principal and interest and the objective
of the Group's business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cashfiows and seliing
firancial assats are measured =t FVTOCI Movements In the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, excapt for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are racognized in statement of profit or less account. Whan the
firancial assat is derscognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from eguity to statement of profit or loss account and recognized in other income.
Interast income from thesa financial assets s included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Forsign exchanges gains and losses are presentad in other income and impaiment
p¥poanses gre presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss account.

iii} Fair value through profit and lass (FVTPL)

Azsats that do not mest the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOC! are measured at FWTPL. A galn
or loss on 2 debt investment that i3 subseguently megsured al FVTPL I8 mecognized In tha
statement of profit or loss and presented in finance incoma/cost in the period In which It arises,
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Equity instruments

The Group subssquently measures all equity investments at falr value Where the Group's
management has electad to present falr value gains and losses on equity investmants in OC, there
is no subsegquent reclassification of fair value gains and losses lo stalement of profit or less account
following the derecognition of the Investment Dividends from such investmants continue to ke
recognized In statemant of profit of loss account as other income whan the Group's right to receive

payments |s established

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assess on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the expectad credit loss (ECL)
as associated with its debl instruments, trade debls, short lerm Investment and deposits and other
tecelvables catried al amartized cost. The impairment methodelogy applied depends on whather
there has been a signlficant increase In cradi risk.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL modet:

- Trada dabls

- Loans and advances

Trede daposits and othar recaivables
- (Cash and bank balances

i) General approach for loans and advances, trade deposits and other receivablas and cash
and bank balances,

The measurement of expected credit losses i5 a function of the probability of default, loss given
defaull (Le. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at defsull. The
assessment of the probability of dofault and loss given default is based on historical data adjustad
by forward-looking information (factors that are specific to the counterparty, general economic
conditions and an assassment of both the currant as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting data, including time value of money where appropriata). As for tha exposure at default
for financial gssets. this is represented by the assets' gross carmying amount &t the reparing date
Loss allowances are forward looking, based on 12 month expected credit losses where there has
not been a significant increase in credit risk rating, ctherwise allowances are based on lifetime

expeciad |osses:

Expected credit losses ars a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is
determinad by the risk of default whizh is applied to the cash flow 2stimates. In the absence of a
change In eradit rating, allowancas are recognized when there is reduction in the net present valua
of expectad cash flows. On a significant increase in credit risk, allowances are recognized without a
change in the expacted cash flows, although lypically expected cash flows do also changs; and
expected credit [osses are rebased from 12 month to lifetime expectations.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Greup considers the probability of defaull upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has heen a significant Increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group comparss the risk of a
default accurring on the instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the data of
initial recognition, It considers available reasonable and supportable farward-looking information,

The following indicalors are considerad while assessing cradit risk

aclual or expected significant adverse changes |n business, financial or sconomic conditions {hial
are expectsd to cause a significant change to the debtor’s sbility to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the aperating results of the debtor;
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- significant increase in credit risk en other financial instruments of the same debtor; and
- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or In the quality of third-
party guarantaas, if applicable.

Definitlon of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for Internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that recaivables that mest either of the
foliowing criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
information developed Internally or obtained from exlemal sources Indicales thal the deblor is
unliksly to pay its creditors, including the Group, In full {without taking [nto sccount 2ny collaterals

held by the Group)

Irespective of the above analysis, in case of trade debts, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a the debt is more than 3585 days past dua, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lacging default criterion is maore appropriate.

Cradit - impaired financial assets

A financial assel is cradit-impalred when one or maore svents that have a detrimental iImpact on the
estimated fulure cash flows of that financlal assel have accurred. Evidence that & financial asset is
cradit-impaired Includes observable dala about the following svents:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower,

- abreach of confracl, such as s default cr past dus event;

- the lender{s) of the borrower, for sconomic or contractual ressens relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider,;

= It Is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial rearganization; ar

- the disappearance of an active markat for that financial asset because of financial difficulties,

i} Simplified approach for trade debts

The Group recognizes life lime ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by avaluating a rangs of possible
outcomes; and

- reasonable and supportable information that je available st the reporiing date about past events,
currant conditions and forecasts of fulure economic canditions,

Trade debts with individually significant balance are separately assessed far ECL measuremeant, All
other trade debis are grouped and assessed collectively basad on shared cradit risk charsclaristics
and the days past due The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision malrix approach based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are spacific to the debtars, general economic conditions and an assessmeant of beth the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. including time value of money

where appropriate,

Where lifetima ECL Is measured on a collaclive basis lo cater for casas where svidence af significant
increases In cradit risk at the individual instrument level may nol yel be availabie, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

- Nature of financial instruments;
- Past-due status:
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- Nature, size and industry of dabtors; and

b)

- External credit ratings where available.

The grouping s regularly reviewsd by management tO ensure ihe constituents of sach group
continue to share-similar credit risk characteristics.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Group recognizes an impairment gain.ar loss in the statement of profit or less for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustmant to thair carrylng amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debl instruments that are measured al FVTOCI, for which the
loss aliowance is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revalustion ressrve, and does not raduce the carrying amount of the financial assst In the statement

of financial position.

Wirite-off

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical
recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonsble expectation of recovery. The
‘assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of debtor's sources
of incoma orassals lo gensrate sufficient future cash flows to rapay the amount.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcemant activity. Subsequent
recovaries of amounts previously written off will result In impairment gains.

Financial Liabilities

Classification, initlal recognition and subsequent measurament
Financial liabllities are classified in the following categories:

- fair value through profit or loss; and
- other financial liabilities.

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities =t initlal recognition. All financial
liabilities are recognized initially &t fair value and, in case of othar financial liabilities alsa include
directly attributable transaction costs. The subseguent measurement of financial hiabilities depends

on their classification, as follows:

i} Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and
financial liabilitles designated upan initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.
The Group has not designated any financial liabllity upon recognition as being at fair value through

profit or loss.

ii} Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other finencial lisbilities which are interest bearing subsequently messured
at amortized cost, using the effective interast rate method and are measured at present value, Gain
and losses are recognized in profit or loss for the year, when the llabilities are derecognized as well

as through effactive intarast rate amortization process

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial lisbilities when and only when the Group's obligations are
ischarged, cancelled or they axpire.




4.20

4.21

Offseiting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statements of financial
position when there is 2 legally enforceabls right 1o offset the recognized amounts and there s an intention
lo settle on 2 nat basis, or realize the ssset and settle the liability simultanaocusly.

Falr value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald ta lransfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market paricipants &t the measuremant date, The falr value measurement |s based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the llability takes place either:

. fn the principal market for the asset or llablity; or
in the absence of 2 princlpal market, in the most advaniageous markst for the assst or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market (s accessible by the Group. The falr value of an assstor a
lighility s measured using the assumptions that markel parlicipants would use when pricing the asset or
llakility, assuming that markel participants act in their sconomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of & non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ablity fo
genarate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another markst

participant that would use the assat in its highest and best use.

The Group usas valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficiant
data are available to measurs fair valus, maximizing the use of relevant observabls inputs and minimizing

the use of uncbsarvable inputs.

All assets and liabiliies for which falr value is measured or disclosed In the financial stalements are
categorized within the fair value hisrarchy, described a: follows, based on the lowest lavel input that is
slgnificant fo the fair valus measurement as 3 whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjustad) market prices in active markels {or identical assets or liabiities;
Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value

measuremant ls direclly or indirectly observalbile; and
- Level 3 — Valuation tochniques for which the Ipwes! level input that is significant to the fair valus

meaasuremant ig Uunobsarvabla

For assets and liabiliies that are recognized in the financlal statemernts at fair value on & recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have cocurred between levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the loweast lavel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reparting peried.
Tha Board detarmines the policies and procadures for both recurring fair valug measurzment and for non-
recurring measurement. External valuers may be involved for valuation of significant assats and significant

liabilitias. For the purpose of fair valus disclosures, the Group detarmines classes of assats and liabilities
an the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy, as explained above

Other Income
The Group recognises following in offver income:

{i) Income-on deposit /saving accounts using the effeciive yield methed.
(i) Dividend income when the right to recaive dividend 5 establishad.
{iii). Income from other nan-recurring goods and services s recognised when fhe control is transferrad

and performance ebligations ars fulfilled.
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5.1

5.1.1

Summary of other accounting policies

Other than material accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of these financial stalements are set out
telow for ease af ussrs undersianding of these financial statsments. These policies have been applied

consistently for all periods presented, unless othenwise stated.

Employes retirament banefits

The Group oparates a provident fund and an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employeas as per details
balow:

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a recognized contributory provident fund for its permaneant employees. Equal manthly
sontributions are matle, both by the Group and the employees fo the fund at the specified rata of basic
salary and charged to statement of profit or loss. Investments cut of provident fund have been made in
stoordance with the provisions of section 218 of Companies Act. 2017 and appliczble rules.

5.1,2 Defined benefit plan

5.2

6.3

5.4

55

The Group operates an unfunded gratulty scheme covering efigible employses under their employment
contract The liabifity for gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuaral valuation using Frojected Unit
Credit Method, The latest actuarisl valuation was conducted on Ssptember 30, 2024,

Actuarial gains and |osses arising from experience adjusiments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited In other comprehensive income in the year In which they arise. Past zervice costs are
recogrized immediatsly In profil or loss.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated info the rupees using the exchange rate prevailing on the date
of tha transaction. Monetary assais and ltablities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the statement of financial position date. Forelgn
exchangs gains and losses resulting from the setflement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end sxchange rates ara recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Dividend and revenue reserve appropriation

Dividend and movemeant in revenue reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the pernod in
which these are-approved

Eamnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EFS) data for its ardinary shares Basic EPS is
calculsted by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weightsd
average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit of loss attributable to ordinary shareholdars and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
putstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares

Deferred governmant grant

Grants from the govemment are recognised at their falr value whers thera is a raasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Govammaent grant includes any benefit eamed on account of a government loan obiained at below-market
rate of interest. The loan is recognised and measured in sccordance with IFRS 8 “Financial Instrumants”
The benefit of the below-market rate of interest shall be measured as the difference between the |nifial
carrying value of the loan determined in accordance with IFRS 8 and the proceeds received.

Government grant that has been awarded for the purpose of glving immediate financial suppert to the
Group is recegnised In profit or loss of the peried in which the enfity qualifies lo racsive It
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and reporting standards
requires the use of certain accounting eslimates. It alzo requires managament 10 exeroise its judameant in
the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degres of judament
or eamplaxity, or areas whera assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial stetements, are as

follows:

1y

ity

Estimated useful life of operating asssts-note 4. 3and 7

The Group annually reviews appropriateness of the method of depreciation, useful life and residual
value used in the calculation of depreciation, Further, whaere applicable, an estimate of the
recoverable amount of asset |8 made for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in
these estimates In the future, might affect the carrying amount of the respective item of property and
equipment, with a corresponding affect on the depreciation and impairment.

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - note 4.3 and 17

The Group carries out revaluations, considering the change In circumstances and assumptions from
latest revaluation. The fair valus of the Group's free hold land, buildings & roads and plant &
machinery |s assessed by management based on independent valuation performed by an external
property valuation exper as at year end. For valuation of free hold land, buildings & roads and plant &
machinery, the current marke! prica or depreciated replacement cost methed s used, wheraby,
ourrent cost of construction of similar free held |and, buildings & roads and plant & miachinery in
similar locations has bssn adjusted using sullable deprediation rales to arrive at present market
valuz. This tachnigue requires significant judgment as to esfimating tha revaluad amount in terms of
their guality, structurs, layout and locations.

Impairment of non-financial assels - nota 4.5

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject to amortisation or
deprociation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation/
amuorisation are reviewed for Impalment &t sach statemant of financial position dats of whenaver
svents or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment luss |s recognised far the amaount by which the asset's camrying amount excesds s
recoverable amount. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to  the extent fhal asssts
carrying amount does nol exceed the carrying amount thal would have besn determined, net of
depreciation or smortisation, if no Impalrment loss has besn recognised. An impairment loss or
reversal of iImpairment loss is recognised In the siatement of profit of loss.

Provision for stores and spares - nofe 48 and 8

For items which are slow-maving andfor identified as cbsolete, adequate provision is made for any
sxcess book value over estimated realizable valus on a regular basis. The Group raviews {he
carrying amount of steres and spares on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescencs.

Write down of stock in trade to net reslizable value - note 4.7 and 10
Mat realisable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of the product in the

ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary (o
make the sala.

If the axpected net realisable value is lower than the carrying amount, a write-down s recognised for
the amount by which the carrying amount excesds is net realisable value. Provision Is made in the
unoonsolidated financial statements for obsclete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on

managament estimate.
Work in process of sugar valued 8t 80% of production cost,
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b}
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Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed asssis 7.1
apital work-In-pregress

A7

Estimation of Impalrment loss allowance - note 4.8 and 11

The Group reviaws the Expected Credit Lass (ECL) model which is based on the historical oredil loss.
sxperiance over the life of the trads receivables and adjusted if required. The ECL modal is reviewed

on a quarterly basis.
Provisian for employsss' defined banefit plans - note 5.10 and 21.2

Dsfined benefit plans are provided for all employees of the Group. These calculations reguire
assumplions to be made of future oulcomes, the principal anes being In respect of increases in
remuneration and the discount rate used to convert future cash fiows to current values. The
assumplions used vary for the different plans as they are defermined by independent actuaries

annually,

Caat primarily represents the increase in actuarial present value of the abligation for beneafits eamed
on employees service during the year and the intsrest on the net fabllity/{asset) In respact of
employee's sarvice In previous years. Calculations are sensitive 1o changes In the undarlying
HEssumptions

Brovision for current and defarred tex - note 4.14, 34 and 35

In making the estimate for tax payable, the Group iakes into account applicabie tax laws, the
deisions taksn by the appeliate authorities on certaln issues in the past and profesasional advice of

tax consultant of the Group.

Deferred tax assels are recognized for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is
probable that taxabls profit will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized.
Significant management judgement is required to determina the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized. based upon the likely timing and level of future taxsble profits together with fulure

tax planning strategies.
Provisions and contingencies - noted. 13 and 25

The management excroises |udgsment in messuring and recognizing provisions and exposures lo
contingent liabilities related to pending litigations or other outstanding claims. Judgement Is
necessary in sssessing the likelihood that 3 panding ciaim will succeed, or a lizkility will arise, and to
quantify the passible range of the financial settfemant.

Estimation of lease term and Intremental bormowing rate for lease liabiliies and right of use assets -
notes 4.4, 4,11, 8 and 20

IFRS 18 requlres the Group 10 assess the lease lerm as the non-cancelable lease term in line with

the lease contract togsther with the peried for which the Group has extension options which the
Group Is reasonably cerdain to exercise and the periods for which the Group has termination options
for which the Group |s not reasonably certain lo exercise those termination options.

A significant portion of the leass contracts included within Group's lease portiolio includes |ease
contracts which are extendable through mutual agreement between the Group and the lessor or
lease contracts which are cancalable by the Group on immediately or on short notics. In assassing
the lease term for the adoption of IFRS 18, the Group concluded that these cancalable future lease
pariods should be included within the lease term in determining the lease lability upon initial
recagnition, The reasonably certain period used to determine the lease lerm is based on facts and
circumstances related to the underlying leased asset and lease contracts and after consideration of
business plan of the Group which Incorporates economic, potential demand of customers and
lechnological changes.

MNatz 2024 2023
(Rupeas in thousand)

24 B53.179 19,700,368
74 840,134 4,083,102
25,683.313 23783471

(-% A
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72 Digposal of opersting fxed asaets
Cosl ! Anedirmy- Nal
Raeums it Revaiued | iated | book | SUe, | SO | Moda of disposal Seid to:
a6 amount | depraciatian| walus P }
v emmmm=moe===FRupses o lhousand- — - - - oane-
Assais having nel book valua
mxcaeding Re, 500,000 each
Wehicles
Toyota Land Cruiser 38,851 26135 13716 18,825  6.208 | Company pelicy  Mr. Abtas Sarfaraz Khan (employee)
Tayota Corolla 2,584 1531 1,063 1,297 234 | Company polizy Mr. Al Hameza (employes)
Toyota Comlla 2,694 1.566 1,028 1,297 268 | Company palicy.  Mubammad Arshad (amployss)
Toyots Corolls 2202 1.375 B2T 1,101 274 | Company policy  Muhsmmad Shatzad Anfum {smployes]
Toyola Yars 2,744 1,548 1,185 1,372 177 | Company poiicy  Mr. Akbar All femployes)
Toyals Hilux Reve 4,018 3,047 153 B000 5081 | Insuranes pelicy 1G] Genarml insurance Limlted
Kl4 Sportags 4734 2p11 1523 2,387 444 | Company policy  Mr. Hameed Ur Rehman (amplayae)
Honda Chac 31477 1,684 1,183 1,588 306 | Compeny policy  Mr. Javed Anwar {smployes)
Honds BR-V 3342 2,087 1,285 1,671 385 | Company pelioy  Mr. Amir Ur Rehman (smployee)
Haonds BR-V 3,053 1,810 1,243 1,566 323 | Company pollsy  Mr Khalld Mehmood (emplayse]
Honda BRW £.353 1,405 Qa8 1,288 341 | Company policy  Muhammad Shahzad Anjum (smpioyes)
Suzuhi Swifl 1,734 1,083 651 g73 222 | Company poficy  Muhammad Athar Hussain (employes)
Suzukl Cultus 2,014 1.241 713 1,067 204 | Company policy M. Tatig Alam {emplayeg)
Suzukl Cultus 1,884 1.038 855 1102 245 | Company poliey  Mr. Javed Akhtar (smployas)
Suzukl Cultus 1,445 goa 541 23 180 | Company palicy  Mr. Adil Hargon Shah (employse)
Suruki Culus 1.824 a7 G54 B12 158 | Compsny palicy  Mr. Zesshan Ahmed (smployee)
Suzruki Cultus 2017 4T3 1544 1,878 432 | Insurance palicy 161 General Insurance Limited
81,288 50,677 30411 46027 15618
Varlous assets having
nel-boak valus upte
Rs.500,000 sach 8,550 2295 G315 6428 113
Seplembear 30, 2024 80933 53712 36728 52455 15778
Sepiamber 30, 2023 E50.417 ZOE43 20574 29020 2 B446

-
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73 Had the revaluad fixed asssts of the Group been racognised under the cost model, the camying values of these
asseis would have besn as follows:

2024 2023
[Rupesas in thousand)

2,599,780 2,681,002

Leasehald land

Freshold land 348,306 338,922

Bulldings & roads 2,823,782 g78.827

Plant & machinery 4,474,502 3,445,020
480,457 439161

Eleciric Installations

10,724,887 7,883,832

7 4 Forced seles value of the fixed assats based on valuation conducted during ara as follows:

2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)
Leasshald Land 3,000,000 3,100,000
Fraehold land 1,754,172 4,780 248
Bulldings & roads 5545754 2,082 475
Piant & machinery 8 801,561 B.431.759

423,358 348,750
21.024 B45 16.743.430
———————— g,

Electric installations

7.5 Particulars of immavable property (i.. fand and bullding) in the name of Group are as follows:

Location Lzage of immovable property Total Area Covered Area
(Kznals)
CEM-1, TLKRan Factory Building 1,111.25 25.88
CEM-2, Ramak Factory Building 1.618.865 174,66
Plot # A-4,Sectar F-8 ) G-9, lslamabad Land for Head office building 27 -
Kings Arcads, Plot # 20-A, F-7 Markaz, Office Premises 2nd & 3rd 2 49 5 489
[slamabad Floor . ’
Ramak D..Khan KPK Faatory Building 54.00 6.00
Ramak D.J.khan KPK Factory Building G4.10 14.87
Bhakkar Storage Facility” 16.00 2490
Layyah Storage Facility” 16.00 240

This includes two grain storage silos impered from Turkay with the brand name Mysito and storage capacity of
10,000 MT each.

2024 2023
MNote (Rupees in thousand)

7.8 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:

28 1,645,344 1.301,660

Cosl of sales
Administrative and genaral expansas 30 208,513 80,145
1,851,857 1,381,805
7.7 Security

Property plant and squipment with aggregate carrying vaiue of Rs. 16,088,014 thousand (2023; Rs. 14,649,347
thousand) ara subject to first joint pari passu charge as defined In note 18, The Group Is not allowed to pledge
these assets as security for other borrowings or sell them 1o another entity.

%
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8.1

92

10,

101

10.2

10.3

.

i
Note 2024 2023
{Rupess in thousantd)
Stores and spares
Slores and spares B22,950 BE5 599
a1 (38,385) (53,980)

Less; Provision for obsolete items
784 565 B42.018

Provision for ohsolete items

Opening balance 53,980 60,6893

Reversal of provision during the year {15,595) (6,713)
38,385 53,880

Closing balance

Stores and spares include fttems which may result in fixed capital sxpenditure but are not yel
distinguishabile.

Note 2024 2023
Stock-in-trade (Rupeas in thousand)
Finished goods
- Sugar 1,787,519 3,252 578
- Moiassas 1,117,558 1,128,284
- Ethanol 954434 742,862
- Bagasse 107,203 36,568
- Wheat fiour 37,885 -

4 004 577 5,161,383

Raw material
- Wheat 1,010,021 200,787
Work-in-process 21,768 16,203
Write down o net realisable valua 101 (284,742 =

0.2 4,751,604 5,378 443

This represents write down to net realisable value in respect of finished goods - wheat flour and raw
material - whaat amounting to Rs 5,977 thousand (2023: Nil) and Rs 278,765 thousand (2023 Nil)

respectively due to decling in seliing prices.

Certain short term and long l&m borrowings of the Group ara securad by way of collateral charge on
slock-in-trade.

The clesing stock of sugar and wheat, net of 10% to 25% margin, having carrying value of Rs 5,045,471
thousand (2023: Rs 3,439411 thousand } has been pledged against cash finance obtained from
commercial and islamic banks ( for details, refer to note 23),

Mate 2024 2023
Trade debts - unsecured (Rupees in thousand)
Considered good
Dus from related parties - 450
Others 459 3E8 1,213,654
459,388 1,214,104
Considerad doubtful 2,043 3,333
461,431 1,217 437
Less loss aliowance 11.2 {21,012) (3.333)

440,419 1214104
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Mote 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

11.1 Trade debls - unsecured

Local 313,188 254 899
Expon 148,285 852,538
451431 1.217.437

11.2 Movemeantin loss allowance
Opening balance 3.333 1,782
Expected credit loss for the year 17,678 1,551
Closing balance 21,012 3,333

11.3 The maximum aggragate amount receivable from relatad parties at the end of any manth during the year
was Rs Nil (2023; Rs 450 thousand).

11.4 The ageing analysis of trade debts due from related parties are-as follows:

Mota 2024 2023
(Rupeess in thousand)
Upto 6 months - 450
Mora than 6 months - -
_ - 450
12. Loans and advances
Advances to:
Employeas - sacurad 121 15471 16,007
Suppliers and contractars - unsecured 1.058,872 1,028,142
1,074,343 1,047,148
Due from related parties 122 88,126 -
Lattars of credil 43,528 11,156
1,215,998 1,052,305
Liss:
« Provision for doubtful advances (28,838) (28,838}
- LoEs sllowances 12.4 (8085) (205)

1,186,255 1,022,562

121 Thase include balances of Rs 15471 thousand (2023: Rs 15,007 thousand) secured agains! retiremant
benefits of respactive amployeas.

12,2 This reprasents amaunts due from the associated companies:

Dug from related partias:
Tha Premier Sugar Mills and Distillery Company Limited BB, 126

Maximum aggregete amount oulstanding In respect of related parties at any menth-end during the year
was Rs 173,080 thousand (2023 Rs 203,485 thousand).
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12.3 The ageing analysis of receivable from relaled parties is as follows:

124

13.

131

14.

15.

16.1

0 to & manths
Mavernent in loss allowance during the year is as follows

Opening balance
Loss allowance for the year
Closing balance

Trade deposits and other receivables

Deposits

Prapayments

Export subsidy receivable

Insurence claim recalvable

Accrued mark-up on term deposit receipts
Guarantess issued

Olhers

Less: loss allowancs

Movemient in loss allowance of export subsidy is as follows:
Opening balance

Loss allowance for the yesr
Closing balance

Income tax refundable

Advarce Income tax pald/suffered
Cash and bank balances
At banks in

Current accounts:

Savings accounis
Deposit accounts

Bank balancas that ara included in cashflow are as follows

Cash and bank balances
Bank balances under lign - note 15.5

Mote 2024 2023
{Rupess in thousand)
98,126 5
805 805
805 8086
17,515 8,878
12,015 13,343
305,518 305,519
- 33748
50,801 1,520
15,000 15,000
18,702 4,587
418 552 382,581

{305,518} (155,762

114,033 226,808
155,782 90,359
148,737 85,413
305,618 155782
440,513 181,952
15.2 480,533 340615
15.3 118,601 32,041
15.4 450,000 450,000
1,049,136 822,656
1,048,138 822,656
(454,000)  (454.000)
565,136 368,656
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153

154

185

18.

16.1

162

163

184

8.5
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These include dividend amccount balance of Rs 1,225 thousand (2023 Rs 460 thousand). These
balances are maintained In separate non interest bearing current bank accounts.

These camy profit at the rates ranging from 13.50% to 20.50% (2023, 13.50% to 18.50% ) per annuim.

Thesa include term deposits carrying profit at the rates ranging from 20.50% to 20.80% (2023: 20.00%
to 20.55%) per annum and having maturity of 30 days

Lien |s marked on bank balances for an amount of Rs 454,000 thousand (2023: Rs 454,000 thousand)

in respect of the various guaraniees extended by the banks
Share capital
Authorised share capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
iNumber of shares) {Rupess In thousand)
50.000.000 50,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 500,000 500.000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of shares) Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each (Rupees in thousand)
28,602,000 28,692,000 Fully paid in ¢ash 286,820 286,920

The helding company, The Premier Sugar Miiis and Distillery Company Limitad held 13,751,000 (2023
13,751,000) ordinary shares and the associated companies held 5,375,334 (2023 5,375,334) ordinary

shares at the year end,

Ordinary shares have a par value of Rs 10 sach. They entitie the holder to participste in dividends, as
declared from time to time, and to share in the procesdings of the winding up of the Company in the
propartion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. Further, the holder is entitisd 1o ong

vote per share at the gensral mestings of the Company.

Ganeral reserve

These reprasent amaunts appropriated by the Board of Directors of the Company from 1893 to 2005 to
a saparate resarve available for distribution to shargholders by way of dividend

%
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17.1

17.2
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Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The Group follows revaluation mods| for freehold land, leasehold land, bulldings & roads, plant &
machinery and electric installations. The fair value of the Group's free hold land, leasehald land,
buildings & roads, plant & machinary and alectric Installations were assessed by management based an
independent valuation performed by an external propery valustion expert for CSML as at September
30, 2024 and for WEPL and UWFPL as at June 30, 2024 For valuation of fraghold land, leasehold land,
buildings & roads, plant & machinery and electric installations, the current market price or depreciatad
replacement cost mathod is used, whereby, current cost of censtruction/purchass cost of similar
freeticld land, leasshold land, buildings & roads, plant & machinery and electric installations in similar
locations has been adjusted using suifable depreciation rates to amive at prasent market value. This
technigue requires significant judgment as to estimating the revalued amount jn terms of their quality,
structure, layout and locations. Movement during the year is as follows:

2024 2023
(Rupeas in thousand)

Balance &l the beginning of tha year 11,627,186 8,740,380
Add: surplus on revaluation carried-oul during the year 3,161,518 2,693,463

Less, transfermed to unapprapristed profils {081,387) (806 858)
13,827,318 11,627,185

Less: deferred tax an:

- opening balance of surplis 3,244 235 2,543,285
- surplus during the year 1,304 160 BYT 217
- ingremental depreciation for the year (383,162 (276,258)
4185223 3,244,235
Balance at the end of the year 9,642,063 8,382,950
Detalls of surplus en revaluation atinbutable to NCI and
parent company Is as follows:
Surplus Attributable to NCI f,728 -
Surplus Attributable to Parent 9,575,385 8,382,950

8,642,083 8,382,950

The surplus on ravaluation of property, plant and eguipmeant is not available for distribution to the
sharsholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017
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18.

18.1

182

19.3

Mot 2024 2023
{Rupees in thousand)

Loans from refated parties - secured

Associated Companiss

Bremier Board Mills Limited 18.1 B2.472 71,640
Arpak Intematicnal Investments Limited 18.2 25,000 31,250
Azlak Enterprises (Private) Limited 19.3 85,000 85,000
Accrued mark-up 52,085 52 445
254 537 240,536

Less; amount payable within next 12 months
Principal 24375 31,236
82,065 48,238

Accrued mark-up

148,007 163,064

This include long lenn firance facilitiss obtained by the Company and the Subsidiary.

The long term finance faciiity obtaind by the Company had been renewed on August 2, 2024. The
principal |s repayable in 8 seml annual installments commencing from Movember 2028, The rate of mark-
up is one month KIBOR + 1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated company is not less
than the borrowing cos! of the associated company. These loans are securad ggainst promissory note

from tha Company

WFPL cbtained long term finance fagility amounting to Rs 25 million. The principal is repayable In & semi
arinual installments which commenced from December 2022 The rate of mark-up is one month KIBOR +
1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated company is not less than the borrowing cost of
the associated company, Thass loans are secured against promissory note from the WFPL

The long t&rm finance facility had been renswed on August 2, 2024. The principal is repayable in 8 sem
annuzal inslaliments commencing from November 2028, The rate of mark-up is one month KIBOR +
1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated company is not less than the borrowing cost of
the assaciated company. Thesa loans are ssgured against promissory note from the Group.

The long term finance faciiity has been renewed on January 3, 2022. The principal |s repayabile in 8 semi
annual instaliments commencing from December 2024. The rate of mark-up s one month KIBOR +
1.25%, provided the mark up charged by the associated company is not fess than the borrowing cost of
the associated company. These loans are secured against promissory note from the Group.
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20, Lease liabilities
Balance gt beginning of the year

Additions during the year

Urwinding of interest on lease liabilities
Payments made during the year
Remeasuramant galn

Balance at end of the yaar

Less: currant pertion of long term lease labilities

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

248,926 236,797
100,762 124,578
54,717 46,928
(160,898)  (150,312)
5,074 (9,365)
249,480 248,025
(89.501) (80,932)
158,878 157.554

201 Tne Group has soquired vehicles under finance |lease from commercial banks. The finencing is repayable
in equal monthly installments over a pericd of four 1o five yaars and camies finance charge Anging from

17.36% to 26.18% (2023: 16.82% to 24.72%) per annum,

Note

1. Deferrad Habilities
Deferred taxation 21.1
Provision for gratuity 212
Defarred govemment grant 213

211 Defared tax liability comprises of the following:
Taxable temporary diffarences arising in respect of.

Accelerated lax deprecialion allowances
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and &quipment
Lease finances

Deductible temporary differences arsing in respect of;

Lzase liabilities

Provision for doubtful advances

Provision for obsolste items

Provision for doubtful debts

Provigion for gratuity

Minimum tax and tax losses recovearabie agalnst
future taxable profits

ke

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

3,174,679 3,520,702
22,132 19,965
48,8495 76,280

3,246,508 3,718,047

885,223 513,510
4004223 3244235
115,235 24,468
4804581 ~ 3882213
(85.903) >
(11,600) {10,318)
(14,870 {18,726}
(787) (1,156)
(8.631) (5.026)
(1.505,901)| | (224.388)
(1630,002)  (281,511)
3174678 3,620,702
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21.4.1 Defarrad tax asset comprises of ths following UWFL balances - shown on face of statement of financial

21.2

position
Mota 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

{192.100) (10,100}

Dafarred tax assst

This represents taxable lemporary differences atising in respect of

Accelerated tax depreciation allowances 162,488 BAT1
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 170,348 -
322,845 5,471
and Deductible temporary differences arising In respect of.
Leasa finances [268) -
Provision for inventory write down 1o net realizable valug (3,384} -
Impairment loss on financlal assats (5,501) .
Brought forward business losses {287,880) {15,772)
Brought forward deprecialion losses {217.914) (7aE
(514.845) (168.571)
(182,100} (10,100)

The deferred lax assel in respect of tax credils amount 1o Re. 14,290 thougand (2023 Nil) has not baen
recognized taking into account the avaitability of fulure tax profils as per business plan of UWFPL The
existence of future taxable profit is based on business plan which invelves making Judgements regarding
key assumptions underlying the estimation of the future axable profits of UWFPL. These assumptions, if
not have met have significant risk of causing 2 matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of defamed
tax, It is probable that LWFPL will be able fo achieve the profits projected in the business plan. The
business losses wouid expirz as follows:

2024 2023

(Rupees in thouzand)
Business lossas avallzble till tax year 2028 3,683 -
Busingss |6sses available lill tax year 2023 34,313 -
Business lssses avallable il tax year 2030 663,090 -
Business losses availabie Ll tax y=ar 2031 291,593 -
ga2 588 -

The |ztest acluarial valuation of the emplovess’ defined bereft plan was conducted at Seplermber 30

2024 using the Projected Unit Cradit Methad. Details of the defined benefit plan are as follows,
hote 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Presenl value of defined benefit obligation 21.21 22,132 19,965
Fair value of plan assets - -
Nt llability 22,132 19,965

Q




Mote 2024 2023
{Rupees in thousand)

21.2.1 Movement in net llability recognized

Cpening net liability 18,955 14,843
Expense for lhe year recognized In statement of profil or loss
acoount 2122 8,935 5639
Remeasurement (gain) / loss racognized in Statemeant of Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) 21.25 (2,245) 2,658
Benefits Pald (5.360) (1,180
Benafits payable to outgoing employses fransferred 1o
trade and other payables 837 (1.893)
22182 18,865
21.2.2 Expense for the year
Current sarvice cost 5,040 3,882
Met inlerast expense 2,885 1,767
8,935 5,639
21.2.3 Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligation:
Opening defined benefit obligation 19,865 14 B43
Current service cost 5,040 3,882
Interest cost 2,895 1,767
Benefits paid (5,380) (1,180)
Benefits payable to culgoing employees transfermed 1o
trade and other payables Ba7 (1,883)
Femeazur=mant (gain) / lozs on defined bensfil obligation {2,245) 2,656
Closing defined benzfit abligation 22132 19,985

21.2.4 Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation:

The “Projected Unit CTredit Method" using the following significant assumptlions was used for the
valuation of the scheme!

2024 2023
kL o
16.75 13.25

Discount rate used for interes| cost

Discournt rate used for year end obligation 1175 168.75

Salary Increase rate - long lerm 11.75 18.75

Salary ingrease rate - short term 1175 16.75

Demographic assumptions

Mortality rales sLIc SLIC
2001-05 2001-08

During the year 2025, the Group sxpects o coninbute Rs 8,585 thousand (2024: Rs B,278 thousand] to
fts gratuity scheme.

T
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2024 2023
{Rupees in thousand)

21,2.5 Remeasurement recognised in OCI during the year:

Actuarial (gains) { losses from changes in financial assumptions (170) 1,540
Experience adjustments {2.075) 1,116
Remeasurement logs on defined bengfit abligation {2,245) 2,656
Distribution timing of gratulty payments:

1 year 1,550 1,108
2 years 2,651 1.201
3 years 2,494 2,808
4 years 3,168 8,105
5 years 2,822 3,454
6§ years onward 788,608 1.828832

The weighted average number of years of defined benefit obligation is given belaw:

Plan duration Years
September 30, 2024 10
g

September 30, 2023

The calculation of defined bensfit obligation Is sensitive to assumptions set oul above. The following
table summarizes haw the impact on the defined bensfit obligation at the end of the reporting: peried
would have increased! (decreasad) as a result of a changa In respective assumptions by one percent.

Effect of Effact of
1percent 1 percent
increasa decrease
(Rupees in thousand)

2024

Discount rate (20,029) 245815
Future salary growth 24,6827 (18,979)
2023

Discount rate (18,387) 21,797
Futura salany growth 21756 {18,398)

The above sensitivity analyses are besed on the changes In assumptions while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is uniikely to otour, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sansitivity of defined benefit abligation to significant
assumptions the same method (present value of the definad benefil abligation calculatad with the
projected credit unit method at the end of the raparting period) has been applied when caleulsting the
liability recognized within the statement of financial pasition.

The defined bensfit obligation exposes the Group to the following risks:

Final salary risks:

The risk that the final salary at the lima of cessation of service is greater tfran what was assumed. Since
the benafit Is calculated on the final salary, the benafit amount would also increase proportionately

Withdrawal risks.

The risk of higher or lowsr withdrawal experience than gssymed. The final effect could go aither way
depending on the beneficlaries' service / age distribution and the benefil

e
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Mortality risks:

The risk that the sctual mortality experience is different. Similar to the withdrawal risk, the effect
depends on the beneficiaries’ service [ age distribution and the benefit.

Dizcount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilitiss are calculated using a discount rate set with raference to corporate bond ylelds. A
dacrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an
increase in the value of the current plan's bond holdings.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Deferred government grant
Opening balance 76,280 417
Grant recognised during the year - 88,809
Amartization during the year (26,585) (23 848)
Clasing balance 48 B85 76,280

This represent deferred govermment grant in respect of term finance facility abtained under SBP
temporary economic refinance facility (TERF), The Group had entered Inlo an arrangement with Bank
Al Habib Limited for obtaining term finance facility under State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) TERF scheme
lo facilitatz retirement of import/shipping documents recalved against LCs {foreign and locallinland),
upto a maximum of Re 505 milllon, The repayment of [oan (principal amount) will be made in 10 equal
semi annual installments commeancing from September 30, 2023, Mark up rate Is 5% an this facility and
shall also be paid on sami annual basis. The availed facility at September 30, 2024 was Rs 456,000
thousand. The facllity will expire on September 30, 2027, There are no unfulfiled conditions or other

contingancies attaching to this grant.

2024 2023
Note {Rupees in thousand)
Trade and other payables
Craditors 520,441 523,081
Due fo related parties 22 150,147 298,017
Acerued axpensas 140,144 139,236
Ratention money 30,585 39.839
Security deposits 222 1,289 1,299
Advance payments from customers - contract liability 223 179,205 1,857 552
Sales tax payable 244116 246,710
Income tax deducted at source 215,706 102,848
Payable for workers' profit parlicipation fund 224 - B3,168
Payable for workers' welfare fund 225 30.258 30,258
Payable to employeas 89,117 58,231
Payabla to provident fund 8,574 8,459
Othars 55,871 14,281

16876443 3,500,877

B
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221 This represents amounis due to the following related parties and are interest free and payable on

demand:

2024 2023
(Rupees In lhousand)
Holding Company
The Premier Sugar Mills and Distillary Compary Limited - 150,181
Assaciated Companies
The Frontier Sugar Mills & Distiliery Limited - 733
Syntronics Limited 11,893 -
Phipson & Company Pakistan (Private) Limited - 55
Azlak Enterprises (Private) Limited 38,154 26,143
Directors 100,000 119,825
150,147 208,017

923 These are repayable on demand and cannot be utilised for the purpose of business in accordance with
the terms of written agreements with these parties. No amount in this respect has been kepl in

separate bank account,
223 Revenue recognised from advancs from customers during the year 1.957 652 225 821
2024 2023
Mole (Rupees In thousand)
224 Payable for workess' profit participation fund
Balance at the beginning of the year 83,166 24,008
Charge far the year - 83,166
Prior year adjustment {4,202} 1,264
78,064 108,438
Interest on funds utilized in the Group's businass 7418 1438
Payments made during the year (85,3582) (26,710)
Balance at the end of the year - 83,166
225 Payable for workers' welfare fund
Balance al lhe beginning of the yaar 30,268 29,857
Charge for the year - 28,087
Frior year adjustment - (5,208)
30,258 52 B45
Paymants made during the year - {22,587)
Balance =l the end of the year 30,258 30,258
23.  Short term borrowings - secured
Secured
Cash [ running finance 3,598 424 3,081 680
Export re finance 5,448,084 1,623,885
8,147 488 46155685
Accrued mark-up 36T 482 379,268
4,954 853

g ! 2341 2514 850
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2024 2023

Current maturity of non-current liabilities Mote (Rupees In thousand)
Lang t=rm finarices 18 1213473 1,608,187
Loans from related parties 19 106.440 77,472
20 89,501 90,932

Lease lizbilitizs
1409414 1,778,601

Contingencies and commitments

Conrtingencies.

The Commiissionar Inland Revanue (CIR), Peshawar vide order dated May 26, 2015 alleged that the
Group has not undertaken appropriate stock taking and raised a demand of Rs 10 million in respect of
FED on the allaged differential stock. the Group preferred an appeal before Appellate Tribunal nfand
Revenue (ATIR) which was accepted vide order dated January 25, 2016, In this respect, the fax
department filed reference before the Honorable Peshawar High Court which |s yet to be decided.

In respect of super tax demand under section 4C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2021 @
10% of taxable income, the Group had filed writ petition before Peshawar High Court, and an intarim rellef
was granted, directing the Group to 50% of the tax demanded. However, during the year, The Federal
Board of Revenus (FER) sent a notice to the Group directing it to pay super tax @ 4%, based on
Supreme Court's order in respect of othsr companies whersin the Supreme Court of Pakistan granted an
interim relief against demand of super tax at the rate of 10% and directed FER to recaver the tax @ 4%,
Maragement has recorded a ourent tax charge of Rs 41.8 million during the year in respacl of super tax
@ 4% out of which Rs. 24.9 millon is paid during the prior year, the Group and Its legal counsel are
confident that based on Supremea Court's arder maximum exposure of the Group in respect of super tax
for tax year 2021 is 4% and no further provision needs to be recognized in these financial stalements.

The Federal government through SRO No. 1062(1)/2021 dated April 25, 2021 fixed the Ex-Mill and Retall
prices of Sugar w's 6 of the Price Control and Prevention of Profiteering and Heoarding Act, 1997 at
Rs.95.57/kg and Rs.88.82/kg. the Group filed a writ petition in Peshawar High court agalinst a decision of
Federal Government an April 20, 2023. Peshawar High Gourt granted stay on the case vide arder dated
Jure 06, 2023 and the case is currently pending adjudication as at year end.

Tha Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) issued a show cause notice dated November 04, 2020 1o
sugar mills with respect to artificial price hike and alleged cartelization. The Group submitted its reply
dated December 25, 2020, However CCP passed an order dated August 13, 2021 and on the basis of
revanues of financial year 2018 imposed a penalty of Rs.650,000 thousand on the Group. Against the said
arder of CCP, the Group bas filed an appeal befors the CCP Appellate tribunal. The CCP Appeflate
tribunal has granted stay order against the CCP's order dated August 13, 2021. The case Is pending

adjudication,

The Group has letter of guarantes facilities aggregating Rs 50 millien (2023; Rs 50 milion) availabie from
Bank Al Habib. The amount availed on these facilties as at September 30, 2024 is Rs 4 millien (2023: Rs
4 million), These facilities are secured by master counter guarantee and 100% cash margin,

The Group has obtained letter of cradit facilities aggregating Rs 415 million (2023: Rs 365 milllon) from
Rank Al Hablb, The amount availed on these facilities as at September 30, 2024 (s Rs 249 million (2023

Rs 221 million). These facilities are secured by lien on shipping documents.

The Group has cash finance faciiity avallable from various banks aggregating to Rs 19,850 million (2023:
Rs 10,825 million), cut of which Rs 3,898 million (2023: Rs 2,968 million) has besn-availad by the Group
as at Seplember 30, 2024 These facilities are secured against pledge charge over crysislline sugar
inclusive af margin of 10 - 15% and wheat stock Inclusive of margin of 16 - 25%.

Hie




258

25.8

25.10

25.11

25.13

26

-38-

The Group has Export Re Finance/Finance Against Packing Credit (ERF / FAPC) facility from varkous

commercial banks for Rs 5,900 million {2023; Rs 3,950 million), out of which Rs 5,448 million (2023 Rs
1,524 million) has been avalled by the Group as at September 30, 2024. These facilities are secured by
the joint parri passu hypothecation charge over curent assets of the Group and lien over export
documents.
The Group is defending its stance bsfore the courts of law against varlous parties Including Individuals,
corporate entities, federal and provincial revenue / regulatory authorities etc, The management of the
Group is of the view that the ultimate outcome of these cases are sxpected to be favorable and a lisbility,
if any, arising on the settiement of these cases is not likely to be material. Accordingly, no provision has
been made in the financial statements in this regard.
During the penad, the Holding Company has issued further corporate guarantee amounting to Rs. 667
million in favour of UWFL in gonnection with finencing arrangements with a financial institution. The
financing facility is expecled to be seltled by Dacember 31, 2027 and accordingly, the guarantee [ssued by
the Company will be releasad by December 31, 2027
2024 2023
(Rup=as in thousand)
Commitments
The Group has following commitments in respect of-
Forslgn letter of credit for perchase of plant and machinery 285,663 -
Logal letter of aredit for purchase of plant and machinery - 143,881
Capita! expenditure other than for Ietters of oredit 25515 14,386
UWFL has entered into an ljarsh arrangement with OLP Modaraba (formery Orix Modaraba) for the
procuremeant of machinery and laboratory equipment. As part of this arrangemant, a security deposit of
Rs. 5.7 million has been paid to OLP Modaraba The disclosure of current and non-current portions of
fulure (jarah commitments will ba made once the delivery of the machinery and Isboratary squipment s
completed by the Modarala,
Gross sales Mite 2024 2023
{(Rupees in thousands)
Local 35,704,043 20,874,057
Export 261 6,847 484 8.487 560
42 651,507 28371617
Export sales comprise of the sugar and sthanol sales made in the following ragions:
Singapore 561,377 361,818
China - 540,773
Spain 2,427,827  5262,047
Hong Kong 373,715 97,785
Switzerdand 2,675,212 2,182,182
Afghanistan - 52 987
Indonesia 396,691 -
United Arab Emiratas 412,642 ~

5.847 464 8.487 580

e
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Sales tax, other government levies and discounts

Indirsct taxes
Discounts

Cost of sales

Raw material consumed

Chemicals and stores consumad

Salarles, wages and banefils

Power and fus!

Repalr maintsnance and athers

Insurance

Depreciation - property, plant and eguipment
Diepreciation - right of use assets

liarah rentals

Adjustment of work-in-process:

Opening
Clesing

Cost of goods manufactured

Adjustment of finished goods:

Opeqing stock

Clozing stock (including write down to net realisabls
value of R, 5,977 thousand)

Note 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

4. 535928 2,884 342

24,814 11.658
4,560,742 2,885,800

28.1 30892934 18,397,886

B17,474 564,182
28.2 983,709 888,766
225 698 162,838
542 553 633,310
54,375 32,997
76 1845344 1,301,660
8.1 4,159 4,621
105 =
34,956,351 21,986,250
16,203 12,148
(21,768) (16,293)
(5.475) (4,147)

34,850,876 21,982,113

5,181 383 3,357,723

(3,958,600} | (5,181,383)
1.162.783 {1,783,660)

35,113,669 20,188 453

This includes loss on write down of raw matsrial - wheal to its net realisable value amounting to Re

278,765 thousand (2023: NIlj,

Salaries, wages and bensfits Include Rs 25 253 thousand (2023: Rs 20,780 thousand) In respect of

ratirement benafits.

Selling and distribution expenses

Salarles, wages and benafits
Laading and stacking

Export development surcharge
Export sales commission
Freight and other expenses
Depraclation - right of use assel

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs 858 thousand (2023

benefits.

Mole 2024 2023
{Rupees in thousand)

291 30,824 19,8491
43,366 33,63

19,106 18,466

331,211 416,357

496,288 358,065

8 1 17,453 19,446
938,248 866,016

Rs 532 thousand) in respect af rstiremant
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Administrative and general expenses

Salenes; wages and benafils
Travelling and conveyance
‘ehidles running and maintenancs
Rent, rates and taxes
Communication

Printing and stationary

Insurance

Fepair and maintenance

Fees and subscription
Depreciation - proparty, plant and equlpment
Depreciation - right of Use asset
Auditors' remunerafion

Legal and professional charges
Meal and entertainmant

Litilities

Others

MNote 2024 2023
(Rupeas in thousand)
30 TO2 677 BAZ 21T
93,381 77,341
59,860 48 BES
14,031 10,505
30473 17,325
17,274 14,3585
13422 10,087
120,854 50,122
18,053 4,794
78 206,513 B0, 148
B.A 58,251 51818
30z 8275 g,0a3
15,871 15,560
2,820 1,763
8,158 4,149
124,495 1057898
1,500,244 1,140,085

Salaries, wages and bensfits include Rs 21.250 fhousand (2023: Rs 17,120 thousand) in respect of

retirement beanefits.

Auditers' remuneration

Statutory audit

Statutory sudit- subsidiaries

Half year review

Consolidation

Ceriifications-and group reparting
Dut-of-pocket expenses

Other incoms

Incame from financlal assets
Retumn on bank deposils
Mark-up earmad on term deposilory receipts

Income from other than financial asssts
Sale of press mud - net of sales tax
Sale of fusel oil - net of salas tax
Gain on disposal of operating fixed asssis
Sorap sales - net of expenses
Rental Income
Inoome against insurance claim
Others

Other expenses

Danations - without dirsctors’ interest
Workers' profit participation fund charge
Workers' welfare fund charge

Others

Nate 2024 2023
(Rupeas In {housand)
3.222 2,929
2,908 1,285
762 803
336 aos
1,961 G&8
agd 200
9.275 6,083
8,231 10,237
B&.758 31,313
7,218 5.879
3o 3,378
15,729 8,445
52,818 63,372
115 115
- 118,462
17,413 -
96,394 200,652
164,383 242,202
21 1,032 2042
- E3, 168
- 28,097
15,350 (3.545)
18,388 108,360
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This Includes donation paid to Al-Sira] Welfara Foundation amounting to Rs 1,000 thousand (2023 Rs

2,042 thousand). N i 5133
ole 2024

(Rupees In thousand)

Finance cast

Mark-up on:
Long term finances 1,223,112 922,756
Leans from related parties 40,185 41,598
Sher term borrawings 3239332 1,645 662

4,502,639 2,610,016

Unwinding of inlerest on lease labilitizs 20 54,710 45,028
Amortization of deferred governmeant grant 21,3 {26,565) {23.046)
Interest on workers' profit participation fund 7.418 1,438
Bank charges 20,827 11174

37.184 137,403

Exchange loss - nat
4595293 _ 2783013

Minimum tax - lavy

This represents the minimum taxas and final taxes paid undsr section 5 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
(ITQ), representing levy in terms of requirerments of IFRIC 21/1A8 37,

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

Reconciliation of current tax charge as per income tax
faws with the current tax recognized is as follows: 404 661 351,298

Current tax labllity for the year as per fax laws
Partion of current tax iability as per tax law, representing
income tax under [AS 12 = 50,473

Portion of current tax liablity as per tax law, representing
levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37 404 661 300,825

Diffzrence -

The aggregate of final tax and minimum tax, amounting fo Rs 404667 thousand (2023: Rs 351,208
thousand) represents tax liability of the Company caleulated under the relevant provisions of tha Income
Tax Ordinance 2001.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Taxation
Currant:
- for the yaar - 8,535
- prior year - 41,838
. 50,473
Deferred - credit;
On account of temparary differences {1,830,800) (457,232}

1,830,800 (406,759)
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2024 2023
{Rupees in thousand)

351 Reconciliation of taxation with accounting profit
(5.564,174) 1,162,323

Profil befars laxation

Tax rate 28% 28%

Tax an profit (1,613,610) 337,074

Tax affect of:
Effsct of income taxable at reduced rates 247 401 (362,218)
Prior year charge - 41,838
Dus to incremental depreciation (380,253) (271,803)
Reversal of deferrad tax on impariment loss 29,714 .
Minimum tax: (326,432) {224 385)
Cthers 112,380 72,733

1,830,800 408,750

38, Non-coenirolling interests

Following is the summarised financial information of Ultimate Whole Foods {Private) Limited that has 16%
{2023: 28%) and Pramier Grain Ethanol Limited that has 100% ownership Interest held by non-contralling

intorests. The amounts disclosed are before Inter-company eliminations:

361 Ultimate Whole Foods | Private ) Limited

NCI percentages post further acquisifion 16% 28%

NCI percantage pre further acquisition 28% 49%
Summarized financlal position

MNon-current assets 3,684 253 2.740,530
Current assels 1,083,817 226,630
Non-current fabilitles {1,429,700)] | (1.366,568)
Currant liabilitizs (2,604,988) {852,748
Met assels 733,482 647 844
het assets atiributabla to NCI 117,357 181,356

Summarised statement of comprehensive incoma

et Revanue 5727410 -
Loss for the year (B77.7048) (41,147}
Othier comprehensiva income (OCI) 417,053 .
Total comprehensive loss (280,745) (41,147)
Loss allecatad to NCI {142 850) (14.058)
CCl aliocated to NCI 86,728 -

e %




36.1.1 UWFPL has a net current liability position of Rs 1,072 million as at September 30, 2024 (2023: Rs. 368

B2

7.

371

million), Loss befars tax for the year amountad to Rs 843 million (2023: Rs 38 million). The financial
performance has been adversaly impacted by Net Realizable Value (NRV) loss arising from a significant
declifie in wheat prices and elevatad Interest rates on borrowings, which together contributed to the
substantial loss during the year. The installation of the praduction unit was completed during the cumrent
year, and the Company has commenced ils operations. This progress refiects a transition from relance
on recurring financial support towards operafional sustainability, Currant obligations also comprise
payable to the Parent Company, Chashma Sugar Mills Limited of Rs. 382 million, and do not invalve

exiamal financing covenants.

Despite these challenges, the management believes the Company can continue as a going concem,
supported by the approved business plan, oparational improvements following the commissioning of the
plant, and continued financlal and operational support from the Parent Company. This support, combined
with management's focus on cperational efficiencles, |s expected to enable the Company to meel its

liabilities In the normal course of business.

Premier Grain Ethanol Limited

MNCI Percentage 100%:.
Summarized financial position

Mon-current assats - PGEL - -
Current assais §93.846 -
MNon-current liabilities - -
Currant liabilities (1,113) -
MNet assets 82.833 -
Net agsets atftributable to NG 82,833 -
Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Loss for the year (18,184) -
Cther comprehensive income (0C!) - £
Total comprehensive loss (18.184) -
Loss allocated to NC| (18,184) -
CCI allocated to NCI - -
Earnings per share

Profit / (loss) after taxation attnbutable to ownars of the Parent

Company (3,472 340) _ 1.584.041
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

year (No. of shares '000') 28 682 28.692
Earnings { (loss) per share (Rs) {(121.02) 55.21

Thera is no dilutive sffect on basic eamings par share,

e
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39 Financial instrumants
381 Financial assets and liabilities
As at Septembaer 30, 2024 Amortized
] Caib Total
Finaricial assats: —Rupees In thousand—
Maturity ugto one year
e : 440,419 £40.418

Trade debts - nat of loss allowancs

Loans and advances
Trade deposits and other receivables - net of joss allowance

Ceash and bank balances

127,383 127,383
102.018 102,018
1,042,136 1,049,135

Maturity after one year

Long term security daposits 15,343 15,343

1,734.288 1,734 2588

Financial liabilities:

Other financial liabilities
Maturity upto one year
Trade and other payablas
Unclaimed dividends
Current maturity of non current liabllites
Short term bormowings - sepured

1,108,158 1,106,158

15673 15,673
1,318913 1319913
0,514,950 9,514,950

Leasa liabiiities gg.5m 84,501
Malurity after one year

Long term financas - secured 5428 838 5426 839

Loans from refated parties - secured 148,097 148,087

Lease |iabifities 158, 879 158,879

17,781,116 17,781,118

As at September 30, 2023

Financial assets:

Iaturity upto one yesar

Trade debts 1,214,104 1,214,104

Loans and advances 26,163 26,163

Trade deposits and other recelvalilas 369,248 369,248

Cash and bank balances 822,656 B22 G5B
Maturity sftar one year

Long lerm sacurity deposits 15,084 156,084

2447.255 2,447,255

Firancial liabilities:

Cther financial llabiiities
Maturity upto one year
Trade and other payabiles 1,080,443 1.080,443
Unclzimed dividends 14,572 14,572

1,685,669 1,685,668

Curranl maturity of non-currant liabiliies
4,994 853 4994 853

Short term borrowings - secured

Lease liabilifies 80,332 80,832
Maturity after one year

Lang tarm finances - sacurad 4673542 4673542

Loans from ralated partias - secured 163,064 163,064

167.894 157.984
12,861,089 12,661,069

Le=ase lisbilities

It
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Financial risk management

Financial risk factors
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- cradit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk

The Board of Diractors {ihe Board) has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's risk maragament framewark

The Group's risk managament policies are estabiished to identify and analyze lhe nsks facad by the
Group, to sst appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to imits. Risk
managament policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changss in market conditions and the
Group's activities: The Group, through its training and management standards and procadures, alms to
devalop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employses understand their rolas
and obligations.

The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policias
and procedures, and reviews the adsquasy of the risk management framewark in relation o thie risks
faced by the Group. The Board Is assisted In |ts oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management conirols and procedures, the results of which are

reportad to the Board

a) Credit risk

Credit risk represants the risk that ane party to a financial instrument will cause a financlal loss far the
other parly by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group attempts to control credit risk by monitaring
credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the credit

warthingss of countarpartias,

Concentration of cradit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar busingss
activities or have similar sconormic features that would cause their abllities to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes In econamiz, political ar other conditions. Concentration of cradit risk
indicates the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance fo developments slfecting & particular

industry.
‘Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, loans and advances, other recejvables and balances. with

banks. To manage exposurs to credit risk in raspect of trade debts, management perfarms credit reviews
taking into account the customer's financial positien, past experience and other relevant factors. Whers
considersd necessary, advancs payments are obtained from cerain parties. The management has setan
allowad credit psticd to reduce the credit risk. Cradit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter
pafties are banks with reasanably high credit ratings. In respact of ather counter parties, due to the
Group's long standing business relationship with them, management does nat expsct non-parfarmance by
these counter parties on their obligations to the Group.

The Group recognizes ECL for trade debis using the simplified approach as explained in note 4. 19, As per
the aforementioned approach, the loss allowance was detsrmined as follows:

181-365 More than
1-180 days days 365 days Total
Rupsas in thousand

September 30, 2024

Gross carrying valus 448 457 2 481 10,493 461,431
Loss allowance g.178 1,340 10,483 21,012
Septamber 30, 2023

Gross camying valus 1,215,486 223 1,728 1.217.438
Loss allowanoe 1,381 223 1.728 3.333
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ECL on other recsivablss is calculated using general approach (as explained In note 4.19), As at the
reporting date, Group envisages that defauit risk on account of non-rezlisation of other receivables |s
minimal and thus based on historical trends adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information
inss allowance has besn estimated by the Group using a range of probahle recovery pattern of related
other recelvables and assigning a time value of maney ta same, As par the aforemeantioned approach, the
loss allowance for ather recelvables is determinsd as follows:

2024 2023

(Rupess in thousand)

September 30,
Grosa carrying value 127,383 26,163
l.oss allowance 805 8305

Basad on past experisnce, the managament belisves that no further impairment allowance is necessary In
tespect of trade debts, loans and advances and other financial-assats,

Net impairment losses on financial assets recognised in statement of profit or loss account:

2024 2023
(Rupees in thausand)
Loss allowance for doubtful trade dabts 17,879 1.551
Loss dllowancs for export subsidy 148,737 65413
Loss allowances on doubtful advancss 12.412 -
178,828 56,964

Met impairment losses on financial asssis

The credit quality of Group's financial assets have been assessed below by reference lo extarnal cradit
ratings of counterparties determined by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and JCR -
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS). The counterparties for which external credit ratings wers
not Gvailable have bean assessed by refsrence to Intermal credil ratings determined based on their
histarical infarmation for any defaulls in meeting oblipations:

2024 2023
Rating (Rupszs in thousand)

Counterparties without external credit rafing
Trade dabls
L.oans and sdvances
Trade deposits and other receivables

440,418 1,214,104
127,383 16,007
102,018 369,248

653820 1,508,338

Counterparties with external cradit rating

Bank balances
A1+ 042 536 235287

A1 4,750 20.853
047,285 258.140
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b) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group's spproach to manage liquidity s to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabllities when due, under both narmal and stressad conditions, withoul Incurring
unaccepiable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The Group uses differant methods
which assists it In manitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing its cash return on investments.
Typically the Group ensurss that It has sufficient cash an demand to mest axpected operational expenses
for a reasonable period, including the serviging of financial abligation; this excludes the potential impact of
extreme circumnstances that cannol reasonably be pradicted, such as natural disasters

The table below analysas the contractual maturities of the Group's financial lizbilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position data to the maturity date.
The amounts disciozed in the table are undiscounted cash flows

Carrying  Contractual Lessthani Between1 §5yearsand
amount cash flows Yaar to 5 years above
{Rupees in thousand)

Ag at Septembar 30, 2024
Laong term finance - securad 5840313 6.640,313 1213474 £.428,839 -
Loans from relajed partles 254 537 254,537 106,440 148,087 -
Lezsa [Ebilitizs 249 480 248 480 88,50 158,979 -
Trade and other payables 1,108,158 1,106,153 1,106,158 - -
Linelaimed dividend 15878 15,679 15,678 = -
Short term borrowings &,514.850 8,514,950 9,514,950 - -

As at September 30, 2023
Long term finance - secured 6,251,738 g,281. 738 1608197 4,873,542 -

Loans from refated parties 240,535 240,536 77.472 163,064 -
Leass |iabilities 248 8256 248,928 a0.e32 157 984 -
Trade and other payables 1,060,443 1080443 1,080,443 - -
Unelaimed dividend 14,572 14,572 14,572 . -
Short term borrowings 4 B804 B53 4 994 353 4,994 853 - -

The cantractual cash flows relating to tha abovs financial liabilifies have been determined on the basis of
interest { mark-up rates sffsctive sl the respective year-ends. The rales of interest / mark-up have besn
disclosed in the respectjve notes to these financial statamants.

It is net expectad that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earfier or at
significantly different amourits.

&) Market risk

Market risk s the risk that the value of the financial instrument may flucluate as a result of changes in
market interest rates or the market price due to change in cradit rating of lhe ssuer or g instrument,
change In market senliments, speculative activiies. supply and demand of sscurities and liquidity in tha
market The Group incurs financial fabiliies to manage its market risk, Al such activities are carriad out
with the approval of the Board, The Group is exposed to intersst rate risk, currency risk and market price

risk,
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i) Gurrency risk
Currency risk is the nisk that the falr value or future cash fiows of a financial instrumant will fluctuate

because of changes In foreign exchange rates, Currency risk arisas mainly from future commercial
transactions or recelvables and payables that exist due lo fransactions in forsign currencies. Financial
assats [nclude Rs 44,112 thousand (2023: Financial assels Include Rs 972,202 thousand) which wera

subject to currency risk,
2024 2023
Rupees per USD
Average rale 28333 259.03
Eeporting date rete 278.05 286.60
Sensitivity analysis

As at September 30, 2024, if the currency had weakened/strengthened by 10% against US dollar with all
other variables held constant, profit after 1ax for the year would have been Rs 4 411 thousand {(2023: Rs

97 220 thousand) lower/ higher.

it} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future c=sh flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changss in market interest rates. The Group has no long term interest baaring
financial assets whoss falr value or fulure cash fiows will fluctuate because of changes In market inferest
rates. Financial assets and liabiities include balances of Rs 816,551 thousand (2023; Re 748,750
thousand) and Re 16,019,002 thousand (2023: Rs 9,714,000 thousand) respectively, which are subject to
Interest rate risk Applicable interest rates for financial assets and liabilites have bean indicated in

respactive notes.
Sensitivity analysis

As at September 30, 2024, If interest rates had been 1% higher! lower with al ather variables hald
constant, profit after tax for the year would have been Rs 107,937 thousand (2023: Rs 84 530 thousand)
higher{ lower, mainly as a result of higher! lower interest incornal expenss from thess financial asseis and

liabilities.

ili} Price risk

Prics risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate rigk or cumency risk),
whethar those changes are caused by factors specific to the Individual financial Instrument or its Issuer, of
factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market,

At the year end the Group is not axposed to price risk since there are no financial instruments, whose fair
value or futre cash flows will fluctuste becausa of changes in market prices.

40.1.2 Capital risk management

The Group is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and markst confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Board monitors the retumn on capifal and the level
of dividend to ordinary sharshalders. In arder to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid lo shareholders and / or issua naw shares. Thzre was no change to
the Group's approach to the capital managemant during the year.

The Group is not subject to extemnally imposed capital requiraments except for the maintenance of dabt lo

squity and current ratios under the financing agresments. Accordingly, the liabilities under theze financing
agreements have bean classified as per the repayment schedule applicable in respact of the aforasaid

financing agrezments.
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The Group menitors capital using a gearing ratio; which is calculated as net debt divided by total capitl
plus met debt. Met debt iz calculated as amounts payable by the Group less cash and bank balances
Capital signifies equity as shown in the statement of financlal position plus net debt The Group's gearing

ratio is as follows:

2024 2023

{(Rupeas in thousand)
Long tarm finances - securad 6.640,313 5281738
Loans from related parties - sscured 254 537 240 538
Lzase lfabilities 249 480 248,828
Total debt 7.144 330 6,771,201
lssusd, subseribed and pald-up capitasl 286,920 286,820
General reserve 327,000 327,000
Unappropriated profite 2,398,947 || S428872
Total capital 3.012.837 6,040,882

Capitat and total debt 10,167 187 12,812,083

Gearing ratio T0% 53%

Eair value of financial assots and liabilities

The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair value,

Fair value hierarchy

Cerlain property, plant and equipment of the Group was valued by independent valuar 1o determing the
fair value of property, plant and equipment as at September 30, 2024, The revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment was credited to other comprehensive income and is shown as 'surpius on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment’. These are classified as level 2 fair values, Further, the fair
value less cost to ssll of property, plant and equipment of WFPL was determined by an external valuation
expert as at September 30, 2024 using cost approach, For valuation, the curant markel price or
depreciated replacemant cost method was used, whereby, current purchase { construction cost of similar
iterns in similar locations was adjustad using suitable depreciafion rates to arrive at present market value,
These are also classified as level 2 fair values. For all other assets and liabilities of WFL, the camying
values of assets and liabilites approximate their falr value, These are classified as lavel 3 falr values.

- Leval 1

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical asssty/ liabilities.

- Levsl 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither
directly (that Is. as pricas) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

- Level 3

Inputs for the asset or liabliity that are not based on observable markat data (that s, unabservable inputs).
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43. Transactions and balances with related parties

431 The Premier Sugar Mills & Distlliery Caompany Limited holds 47.93% (2023 47.93%) shares of the
Company at the year end, Therefore, all subsidiaries and associated undsriakings af The Premier
Sugar Mills & Distillery Co. Limited are related parties of the Company. The related partizs also
comprise of directors, major shareholders, key managsmant personnel, entities: over which the
directors are able to exercise significant influence on financial and operating policy decisions and
employees’ funds. Amount dus from and due to these undertakings are shown undar receivables and
payables. The remuneration of Chisf Exacutive, Direclars and Exeoutives (s disclozed In note 44 1o

the statement of financial statements.
2024 2023

(Rupses in thousand)

The Premier Sugar Mills and Distillery Company Limited

Purchases . 773,026
Sales - 2428
Issuance of store items 8,208 25,685
Adyanes for purchase of building 50,885 -

Expensas paid by the Group 560,287 78,242

Expenses paid on behalf of the Group 5438 7,025
Dividend pald 68,775 .
115 115

Rent income

Syntronics Limited

Purchase of store itams 11,893 163,068
Dividend paid 17.952

Syntron Limited

Purchase of store ftems 220,513 94, 780

Aziak Enterprises (Private) Limited

Services on behalf of the Group 48,780 2B,018
Mark-up charged to the Group 19,507 17.605
Expanses paid on behalf of the Group 3,385 1.831
Dividend paid 7.487 -

s




2024 2023
{(Rupees in thousand)

Phipson & Company Pakistan (Private) Limited

Expenses paid by the Group 32 413
Diividend paid 1,538 -
Arpak International Investments Limited

Mark-up charged to the Group 51874 7.528

Fremier Board Mills Limited

Mark-up charged to the Group 14,860 16,463

Provident fund

Contribiution o provident fund 38,854 32,810

Directors

Dindends paid 28,721 -

432 Following are the related parties with whom the Group had entered inla transaclions or have
arrangement/agreement in placa

- Aggregate
SrNe Company Name A:E ﬁ:?ﬂ:‘m % of
Shareholdi
1 The Premier Sugar Mills and Distillery Company Holding Cempany 47.83%
Limited
2 Pramier Board Mille Limited Common directorship -
3 Azlak Entsrprises (Private) Limited Commaon diractorship 515%
4 Arpak International Investments Limited Common directorship -
5 Phipson & Campany Pakistan (Private} Limited Common Holding Company 1.07%
5] Syntronics Limited Comman directorship 1251%
7 Premier Construction and Housing Limited Common directorship -
B Earth Securities (Private) Limited Common directorship -
8 The Frontier Sugar Miils & Distillery Limited Comman directorship -
10 Syntron Limited Common directorship -
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Remuneration of Chiel Execulive, Directors and Execufives

The aogregate amount charged In the financial statemants for remuneration, including all benefits, to Executive
Directars and Chief Executives of the Group & as follows:

Chigl Exzoullve Directors Exscutives
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
{Rupess in thousand) s

Manaoenal remuneraton 34,814 2258 34814 38,258 76,976 59,648
Bonus - 7.580 - 7,580 1,815 44 B2
Housing and utilities 6,624 4,044 6,138 1,851 46 446 45,432
Group's contribution to provident fund - = - - 3,545 4,214
Medicat 4,781 4 345 - 136 2,386 BT
Oher expenses 3073 13628 38,027 20.042 8,087 -

49,382 61,868 T79.07T &7, 877 139,265 166,003
Mumber of persons 1 1 2 2 F1 29

In addifian to ahove, the Chief Execulive and Exeoutives were provided with the Group maintainad cars for officisl and
parsonal use. All the Execulives based at factory compounds ere afso provided with free housing wilh the Group's
genersted electicily, letephone and cartain househald tems in the residential colony within the factory compound.

Mr. Abbas Sarfraz Khan, Director of the Company, holds office of profit for performing estra services, for which
approval was oblained vide Extracrdinary general mesting dated June 21, Z018 under seclion 171 of the Companies
et 2017, His remuneration includes monthly saiary, bonus 35 per company policy, company maimtained vehiclo and
reimbursement of all travelling and medical expensas. The Board of Directors are also entitied to reimbursemsent of all
travelling, telephone and medical expenses, as approved vide 31st annual general meeling of members dated March
28, 2019, The mmuncration of Direclors was increased vide Exiraardinary Genaral Mesting (EOGM) dated August 25,
2023

DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO SHARIAH COMPLIANCE

Bslow is the disclosure as required by the paragraph VIl of the 4th Schedule o the Comparies Acl, 2017 determined
by Shariah expert appointed by the Company:

2024 2023
{Rupeess in thousand)

Mats

Risclosures in refation to the Statement of Financial Position - Liability Side

Financing abtalned as per |slamic mode

Lang term 18 358,037
Shaort temm 23 2,583,081
Lease financing 20 8,828
Interest ar mark-up accrued on any conventional loan or advance 18, 16, 20 & 23 547.364
Disclosures relation to the Statement of Financial Position - Asset Side

Short-term Shanah compliant Investments -
Lang-temmn Shanah compliant Investments .
Shariah-compliant bank deposits, bank batances, and TORs 15 179,603

Disclosures in relation to the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Revenue esmed rom a Sharah-compliant business segrment 28827 30,765,888
Break-up of late payments of liguidated damages -
Gain or loss or dividend eamed on Shkanah compliant investmeants -
Profit earned from Shariah-compliant bank deposits, bark  balances, or
TORs £y 2,057
Exchange [loss) gain earned from aclual currency aa (37,184)
Exnhange gans earned using convenlional dernvative financial instruments -
Profi pad on Islarmic mede of finenaing 33 831,782
iy 96,6898

Total Interest eamed on any conventional loan or advancs

695,493
1,341,354
18,266

537,729

54,571

18,346,403

1
(137.403)
581,746

41 548
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Source and detailed breakup of other incoma:
Shariah compliant income
Profit eamed from Shariah-compliant bank depasils
bank balances, or TDRs
Sale of press mud - nat of =alas tax
Sale of fusel oll - net of sales tax
Galn on disposal of aparating fiked asssts
ain on derscognition of right of use assats
Scrapsales - net of expenses
Rantal income
Mon-Sharan compliant income:
Mark-up earned on bank deposits. bank batances, or TORs
imzome against Insurance cigim

Other Disclosure

Nota

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

2,057 1
7,218 5,879
3am 3,378
16,729 8,446
52,818 53,372
115 115

86. 698 41,549

- 119,462

Relatlonship with Shariah-compliant financial Institutions, Including banks, takaful operators and thair windows:

= Meszan Bank Limied

= Al Bamka Bank Limied

- MCE lslamic Limited

- Bark lslami Limited

- Dubal islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

- Nationai Bank of Pakistan - Aitemazd [slamic Banking
- Sonerl Mustageem |slamic Banking

General

Geographical location and addressas of business unils
Thes business units of the Group Include the following:
Business Units

Sugar-unit |
Sirgar - umit |l
Etharal fusl plant
Storage tacility
Whisat

Capacity and production

Sugar planis
Rated crushing cepacity (Metnc Ton / day)
Cin the basis of average number of 99 days {2023, 105 days)
Actual cane crushed (Melric Ton)
Sugar produced [Metrie Ton)

Ethanol fusl plant
Rated production capaaity (Litrea ! day)
On the basis of aversge numbser of 347 days (2023; 343 days) {Lifres)
Actieal production (Litres)
Slorage facifity
Slorage capacily (Mafnc tones)

Whigat
Production capacity {Tonas)
HActual productions (Tones)

Location

2024

18.000
1,782,000
1,726,610

171,531

126,000
43,375,000
43,052,990

20,000

102,600
58,481

Uinivessity Road, Dera lsmail Khan, KPK
Ramak, Dara lsmail Kran, KPK

Ramak, Dera lsmail Khan, KPK

Layyah and Bhakkar, Punjsb

Ramak, Dera lsmsil Khan, KPK

2023

18,000
1,880,000
1,963,169

211.871

125,000
42 575,000
42,374,200

20,000




F----------

~55-

Days worked Days
Sugar--unit | ] 106
Sugar = unit Il L] 1063
Ethanal fual plant 3a7 343

Sugar division performad &t mare than installed capacity 1o the extent of availability of sugar cang, Capacity of ethanal
units werne slso over-ulilized on cariain days.

2024 2023
45.3 Number of mploysss
Numbsr of smployees af S=plamber 30 _
Permanant 1,242 1,066
Ciontractual 1,037 1,047
2379 2,113
Average number of employess far the year
Pafmaneant 1,200 1,147
Conlractual 1,387 1,518
2587 2 BE5

454 Providen! Fund

Inveestmants out of provident fusd have boen mads in accordance with the pravisions of secbon 212 of the Companies
Art, 2017 and the rules formulsted for the purposa.

485 Cotraspanding Figues.
Cormesponding figures [or the pror pencd have been reamengsd and meclassifed whare necessary for mers

appropriste. presentation of transactions end balances for the purpose of comparson, Refer note 4.15 for
reclassifisation related to adoption of ICAP Guidance on soceunting of minkmum taxes and final takes. Thers are no

other materisl reciagsiflications /reamangements.

484 Reunding off
Figuras have baen rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupses unless othervise staled
47. Date of authorisation for issue
These financal sialemanis have baon authorised for issus by the Board of Dirsctors of the Company en

/ Directol

In the absence of Chiet Execulive. Inese Fnongial Statements have oeen signed by two Directors along with Chiel Financial Office.




